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VISION

Making an impactful contribution to build a sustainable and environmentally friendly
world.

MISSION

To be a global market leader in resources recycling and environmental protection,
earning a quality return to shareholders through the provision of quality products and
services, by a group of motivated and diversified staff force.

CULTURE

We are committed to building a long-term and win-win partnership with our customers
including suppliers.

We provide a safe workplace and career development opportunities for our employees.

We are devoted to achieving a quality, stable and continuous return for our
shareholders.

We meet our corporate social responsibility, making continuous contributions to social
well-being and environmental protection.
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A Snapshot of
CEG in 2017

—E-LFBESRREBRE

ABOUT CEG
ARESERR

We are the only listed metal
recycling corporation with major
operation bases across three
continents (Asia, Europe and
North America) in the world. The
Group is one of the largest metal
recyclers globally.

B RHRE——REZZER
MM ~ B AL SR =K B
BEFBEE AKREEEKEAX
BRI E .z —-
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Taizhou production site

AMNEERN

& Largest importer of copper based scrap metal in China
PERAHRS RO

& Largest global scrap motor buyer in 2017
CE A FRREANEERAER

& > 2,000 skilled dismantling workers
2,000% 4 B g 2 BRI A2 T A

Yantai production sites

BEoEEREN

€ Metal recycling operation: mainly engaged in metal
trading

CBEWER FENECBES
€ Waste-lubricant oil recycling operation: purification,
distillation and addition of lubricant additives to

produce lubricant base oil for lubricant oil production
plants

JEE i B M S 75 < JFE ~ 2R ER AN DR R N AN - A
A TEE M A E R A R AR R
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& Group headquarters
SR

€ HK$120 million had been invested in installing two
automated processing lines in 2017
R FREE2,0008FTREMGAD T
EER

€ One of the few operators in Hong Kong that recycles
material within a closed-loop system
FRREAZ aE 1 — (E A IR (e 5 v @ Uy 3 7 A
MR B —

&€ Largest privately owned and most diversified and
comprehensive e-waste recycling centre in Hong
Kong
EERAERBERZ T2EMNLEEFEY DB H
I

& Operates 90 yards covering South-West, Central and
Eastern Germany
B0l Ti5  BEZEAmEE - F kR

& Strongest region of operation in Europe
BN B o8 #) 4 1 3 [

& Covering full scope of collection, sorting and
processing with all types of equipment including
the most advanced post-shredder material recovery
technology
RMEMBRERENRE YEREEXHEIE &
FE &R I M O PR 12 W ) B WO il

Technical Equipment

B &
Shredder: 4
1 TR -
Shears: >15
S0
Employees: >1,900
EE:

BEABREEGRAT —E—tEFH 3
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—EtFBRERRELRE

& 9 yards
9fEl T 15

€ 100% subsidiary
2EFRE

& Business model includes brokerage and yard business
(including feeder yards)
¥BEATBEHRITIHER (BIFEHEHS)

& Supplier base with robust market position in selected

areas
HFE 7 TE I8 TE MR /O T 35 3 i 2

Technical Equipment
s e ]
Shredder: 3
B
Shears: 3
5T
Employees: >300
’E:
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& Operates 7 yards covering central and south Poland,
the most industrialized and scrap rich areas
LEVELYS BERKWIECEESRS MEEVR
LR

& Operations covering full scope of collection, sorting
and processing with all types of equipment
EEGEREMAHREREBEONE DEREREE
Thae

Technical Equipment

BT R

Shears: 5

B L) -
Employees: >140
EBE:



& Operates 15 yards
EIE15E %

€ Market leader for ferrous scrap trading
RPEECEBEENMSRES

&€ Joint venture with steel mill Voestalpine Group
s SR R R B L AR

& Strong track record in project business (e.g. power
plant dismantling) and strategic initiative for online
trading platform
EEHE® (fINEERIFR) LG 85T atBmg
BEHRFHR

Technical Equipment

Al %
Shredder: 2
D
Shears: 6
EoRIIk
Employees: >300
EE:
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& 100% subsidiary
Eak- S aVNC]

€ 61 yards mainly situated in northern Bohemia and
Prague area
EIE X BN A RDILE RN R & #9618 T
%

& A very strong market share in ferrous market
(covering both old scrap and new scrap market)
REEEETS CREEREN RHENTS)FG™
510 REIB (5 7R

&€ Business model is comparable with Germany with
a dense yard network including a large number of
feeder yards and several processing yards
HEHFBENEBREN RIS MRS B2F
LA R ZEN TS

Technical Equipment

BT R
Shredder: 2
R
Shears: 5
BT
Employees: >300
E&:

EeRREBERAT
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& 100% subsidiary
2EFRA

&€ Operates 18 yards
&IE 18 Ti5

& Strong non-ferrous operations

FesREBRRE

& Well equipped with yard network, transportation
assets and processing capabilities to cover all
suppliers (industry and old scrap)

RBERHNTISEE EREEMMIENANEEZS

WA (TEREER)

& Footprint for paper and plastic recycling
W R A IR & 2B B B

Technical Equipment

S ]
Shredder: 1
R
Shears: 3
Y -
Employees: >300
EBE:
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& 27 yards in operation
EiE27E TS

& Joint venture with two experienced local business
partners
HREEREENEMEBRBHERIAEDE

& Covering the heavily populated and well
industrialized areas in this country
BEZBAOWE R EILE R

& Market attractive due to strong supply from industry
as well as presence of old scrap
TEREREHMNHEBREAR  #URX T IHED

& Proximity to Turkey enables significant scrap exports
ABAE T HE - AT RS H HEER

&€ High non-metals share of sales (including significant
portion of wood, paper and plastics)
FEB(BERBYARM MRRER)HHEHEEG
b

Technical Equipment

BT R
Shredder: 2
B
Shears: 6
BT ) # -
Employees: >600
E&:



A Snapshot of CEG in 2017
—EtFBRERRELERE

& 4 yards in operation
EEAE %

€ 100% subsidiary
2EFRA

& Business model with feeder and production yards
FAMRESREETISHEBER

& Medium potential in non-metals
ERIFCBEBNENAE

& Efficient production
=R E

Technical Equipment

Bl R
Shears: 2
BIEIH
Employees: >35
’E:

& Owns 14 yards
B 14ETS

€ 50% joint venture with a local co-shareholder
B — 2 g HFARER L B BS0%Em A& &b

& Strong presence in northern part of Mexico, with
strong industrial supplier base
MBI TIHIEA TR ERBE TEM
e

& Strong supply from industrial accounts made
operations more robust than peers in North-America
RERZTIEEFPHHESEBEERREILEMN
—MRAZEE g

Technical Equipment

TR

Shredder: 1

B

Shears: 2

B ) 1 -
Employees: >300
EE:

EERREEGRRLE —Z-tFER



Financial
Highlights

B REE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—-HLEE

Increase/
2017 2016 (Decrease)
—E—tF —T—XF #ENS CR)
Operating results (HK$M) KEEE (BBET)
Revenue g
Greater China NG S 4,813.6 3,211.4 49.9%
Non Greater China ERFEM R 13,677.4 - N/A i 3
Total #Et 18,491.0 3,211.4 475.8%
Gross profit EH 2,329.0 218.6 965.4%
Segment profit (loss) 7 Em A (Es1E)
Greater China A EM R 295.9 (243.5) 221.5%
Non-Greater China FERFEM @ 457.8 - N/AT 3 A
Unallocated RAOM 169.8 (166.0) 202.3%
Profit (loss) before interest and B A B K BT AY
tax (EBIT) A (&) 923.5 (409.5) 325.5%
Finance costs, net R IS (377.3) (34.1) 1,006.5%
Profit (loss) before income tax BETISHANR A (E18) 546.2 (443.6) 223.1%
Income tax (expense) credit Fris® (Fx)#E% (110.6) 0.4 27,750.0%
Profit (loss) for the year FrmEN (E1E) 435.6 (443.2) 198.3%
Financial position (HK$M) MR (BEEET)
Cash generated from operations REXEBEENRS 850.3 91.9 825.2%
Cash and pledged bank deposits Re REERRITER 1,071.4 2,079.4 (48.5%)
Total assets HEE 12,093.7 11,785.7 2.6%
Equity attributable to RAFRERELER
shareholders of the Company 5,073.1 4,117.2 23.2%
Per share data (HK$) FRER (BT
Earnings (loss) per share NSV E N 3
attributable to shareholders of EREF (EE)
the Company 0.26 (0.27) 196.3%
Shareholders’ funds per share FERRES 3.15 2.55 23.5%

8 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2017



Financial Highlights
g S

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=Z+-HLHFE

Increase/
(Decrease)
2017 2016 in basis points
Eehigm,/
—E—+tF ZTE—RF OR2)
Key ratios (%) FEP B E(%)
Gross profit margin EXIES 12.6 6.8 5.8%
Net profit (loss) margin’ Fom A (EE) X 2.3 (13.7) 16.0%
EBIT/Revenue R B R IR AT
w W 5.0 (12.8) 17.8%
Return on shareholders’ funds? &R & & Bl ) K2 9.3 (10.2) 19.5%

! Net profit margin is calculated as profit attributable to shareholders of the Company 1

as a percentage of revenue

2 Return on shareholders’ fund is calculated based on the profit/(loss) attributable to 2
shareholders of the Company as a percentage of average shareholders’ funds

Group Revenue in Last 5 Years

BERFAEERE
HK$'M

AEBT
20,000

18491.0

31366 32114

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Group Gross Profit (Loss) and

Gross Profit (Loss) Margin in
Last 5 Years
BELFAEEERN (BE)R
EF (F5E) =

HK$'M
AEBT
2,500

23290

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

238 -174 453

S
03% O
-1.4%

-0.3%

-500

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

3k e 2 AR R 21 AR TR R M
®itH
BEALERERRBADTAREREEF (5
B HFHREASOLEHH

Profit (Loss) and Profit (Loss)
Margin in Last 5 Years
BELEEN(FE)R

A (EE) X

HK$'M
% HBBT %
25 600 15

435.6
20 400

5 -400

-1,071.2
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

-1,200
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Chairman’s
Statement

ERWE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Chiho Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”), | present
the audited consolidated financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”, "we”
December 2017.

or "our”) for the year ended 31

The Board's aspiration on the Group, as indicated on the cover page
of our annual report, is “Surpass, Transform and Excel”. 2017 was
undoubtedly a year that we surpassed our previous achievements, and
at the same time transformed the Group into a truly multi-cultural,
diversified, global group. With a strong foundation now, we will
ultimately excel to help shape the sustainability development of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC" or “China”) and play a leading role
in the global resources recycling industry.

The Group's revenue in 2017 surpassed the ten billion Hong Kong
dollar mark, achieving record revenue of HK$18.5 billion. It increased
substantially by approximately 4.8 times when compared to last
year, and the Group achieved a strong profit turnaround. The Group
completed the acquisition of the entire share capital of Scholz Holding
GmbH (“Scholz Holding” and together with its subsidiaries, “Scholz
Group”), a world leading mixed metal recycling giant at the end of
2016, and presented consolidated financial statements from 2017
onwards. The outstanding turnaround efforts by the management,
coincided with the gradual recovery of the commodity market,
contributed to the Group's strong performance in 2017.

The Group implements a “Go Global” strategy and seeks to establish
a sustainable business model through vertical integration. This is to
ensure the Group's greater participation in the industry while reducing
its dependence on any single market and maximizing the synergy
between different regional segments. Currently, the Group is the only
listed metal recycling corporation with major operation bases across
three continents (Asia, Europe and, North and Central America) in the
world. The Group is one of the largest metal recyclers globally. The
objective of the Group is to become a global leader in the resources
recycling and environmental protection industries.

10 chiho Environmental Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2017
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Established in 1872, the Scholz Group is based in Europe, with a
business presence spanning Europe, North and Central America. It is
one of the largest mixed metal recyclers in the world with advanced
end-of-life vehicle ("ELV") processing capability. With over a century of
history, Scholz Group has developed several advanced technologies to
become one of the few companies capable of handling and recycling
multiple types of materials. With the acquisition of Scholz Group, the
Group has proudly become one of the top global players in the metal
recycling industry.

During 2017, lots of efforts had been put into strengthening the
leadership capability of the Group.
executive management team, with rich industrial and professional
experience, will be able to bring the Group to a even higher level of

| am confident that the new

performance.

2017 ANNUAL RESULTS

The operating revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$18,491.0 million (2016: HK$3,211.4 million), which
increased substantially by approximately 4.8 times when compared to
2016.

The annual profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$426.8 million, achieving a
turnaround from the loss attributable to shareholders of the Company
of HK$439.9 million in 2016. The basic and diluted earnings per share
for 2017 are HK$0.26, representing a substantial increase of 2.0 times
year-on-year (2016: loss per share HK$0.27).

REGIONAL PERFORMANCE
Europe and America

The performance of our operations in Europe and America in 2017
was good and encouraging. The Group’s optimisation measures on
the financial situation of the Scholz Group including deleveraging,
balance sheet restructuring and improving liquidity were effective and
helped boost its processing volume. This coincided with the commodity
price recovery since the end of 2016, contributing to the substantial
improvement in its profit and earnings when compared to last year.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

In 2017, Europe and America recorded a revenue of HK$13,677.4
million and an segment profit of HK$457.8 million.

The Group's European and American operations possess excellent
business managers who have been supporting its operation. With
accumulated rich professional knowledge and experience in the
industry, these staff members are the Group's important assets. The
Group will take further improvement measures to strengthen the
region’s management and organisational efficiency.

In addition, the synergy among different geographical segments are
gradually shown, especially with Hong Kong as an important trading
hub for the far east and access point to the Chinese markets.

Greater China

In 2017, the revenue of the Greater China region increased by 49.9%
to HK$4,813.6 million when compared to last year, and a segment
profit of HK$295.9 million was recorded, making a turnaround from
the segment loss of HK$243.5 million in last year. The impressive
results of the Greater China region were mainly attributable to the
strong performance of our Taizhou processing plant through efficiency
improvement, tighter cost control and a favorable rising price trend of
non-ferrous metals throughout the year.

Strongly supported by the Hong Kong Environmental Protection
Department, the Group has invested more than HK$120 million in 2017
in its processing plant located in Yuen Long to install two automatic
processing lines so as to comprehensively enhance the processing of
WEEE (Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment) and scrap cables.
These facilities will become operational in 2018.

Prospects

Recycling is not just about profiteering; it is for the benefit of the
environment as well as of all the mankind and future generations. As
the global population grows, the environmental footprints and demand
for resources increase. More recycling will help reduce our dependency
on natural resources from mining, thereby reducing impacts to the
environment and reducing our reliance on fossil fuels and non-
renewable resources.

Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2017
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For China, resources recycling plays an important role in the
development of its economy, security and society. As China is rapidly
growing with relatively insufficient resources, the most effective way
to support sustainable development is by enhancing the efficiency of
natural resources recycling and utilisation.

For the sake of environmental protection, the Chinese government
has introduced the Implementation Plan for Prohibiting the Entry of
Foreign Garbage and Advancing the Reform of the Solid Waste Import
Administration System as a more stringent system reform to further
regulate the market. During the summer time of 2017, there was
a large-scale inspection carried out by the Chinese government to
address illegal and environmentally non-complying operations in China.
Our Taizhou plant was one of the few that successfully passed the
inspection outright. Looking forward, we expect that there will be fewer
illegal and non-complying business activities in the market, giving more
opportunities to large-scale players like our Group.

Starting in 2018, China imposed stricter import restrictions on category
7 scrap motors. Instead of granting an annual import quota for the year,
the Chinese authorities have decided to determine the import quotas
to be granted on a quarterly basis. While our Taizhou plant is still the
company that has been granted with the largest share of the quotas
(58%), reflecting the leading position of the Group, we have to adopt
a cautious but proactive approach in dealing with this change. We will
thus increase our capacity in downstream processing of aluminium
ingots production, as well as expanding our trading activities through
leveraging our strong and large suppliers’ network globally. We also
look at this import restriction to be an opportunity for our Group to
leverage our off-shore processing capability in Hong Kong, Europe and
America to supply cleaner and processed materials into China, as well
as to plan domestic collection and processing business in China, backed
by the Group’s expertise and track record in Europe and America.

China will bound to become a market with an improved regulatory
framework. We expect that there will soon be proper government
policies that will favor the development of the end of life vehicles
processing activities. The Group will leverage on its industry-leading
expertise and technology to enter this area.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

While China will be the future engine of our growth, the Group's
operation in Europe and America is expected to continue to consolidate,
improve, and contribute a substantial source of revenue and profit of
the Group. Continuous efficiency improvement and cost management
will improve the margin of the business, while equal focus will be put
on cultivating cross learning opportunities across different countries.
Capacity and asset utilisation rate are expected to increase as we work
on top line volume and sales growth through strengthened key account
management focus and providing excellent customer service.

Going forward, while we will continue to drive organic growth, equal
attention will be put on looking for other merger and acquisition
opportunities, not only in metal recycling but also in other related
environmentally friendly operations, to enable the Group to realise its
mission as a resource recycling leader.

As a multinational company, we attach great importance to the cultural
integration among the Group’s different regions. We aspire to become
a multicultural global company with local wisdoms fully respected.

In July 2017, a dedicated public relations and investor relations
department was set up so that the Group can communicate and reach
out to the global investor community more effectively. During the year,
the Group won several awards including “the Most Valuable Medium-
and-Small-cap Stock Award” and “2017 China Financial Market Award
— Best Investment Value Award”. Going forward, we expect continuous
improvement in public and investor relations so as to improve the brand
image of the Company and its dialogue with the investor community.

In conclusion, in 2017, the Group had a successful year of turning
around the business from loss-making to profit-making. We are
delighted but not complacent with this. Our business is now back on
the right track.

14 chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2017
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Looking ahead to 2018, we will continue to implement stringent
financial and risk management policies on our business and adopt
prudent capital management for all investment activities, to enable
the Group to achieve its growth strategy while continuously improving
its cash flow. The Group is cautiously optimistic about the business
prospects. We strongly believe that a progressive implementation of the
Company's strategy is conducive to increasing shareholder value, and
we look forward to sharing fruitful results with all shareholders in the
future.

Last but not least, | would like to extend my gratitude to the loyalty,
effort, professionalism and valuable contribution of the Board and
all staff members of the Group around the world. | would also like
to express my sincere thanks to our customers, suppliers and other
business partners for their trust and faith in the Group.

Qin Yongming

Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2018
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

BB R DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 75 Bl B8
Financial Overview B E
Increase/
2017 2016 (Decrease)
—E-+t#F —E-RE  #mCED)
HK$M HK$M Percentage
BEBT BEBIT ERalsd
Revenue Wz 18,491.0 3,211.4 475.8%
Gross profit EH 2,329.0 218.6 965.4%
Gross profit ratio ERE 12.6% 6.8%
Other income HAth Y A 113.9 15.2 649.3%
Other income as a percentage H W A RS BB
of the Group's total revenue Bt 0.6% 0.5%
Other gain/(loss), net Hiblkss / (E518) F58 237.1 (335.1) 170.8%
Net other gain/(loss) as Hiblkzs / (B518) F58
a percentage of the Group's EAREEBWENE D
total revenue 1.3% 10.4%
Share of profit of JEEE R R Al B E D
an associate and joint ventures il 108.8 0.4 27,100.0%
Total operating expenses LB REE (1,865.3) (308.6) 504.4%
Total operating expenses as KEBERBELEASE
a percentage of the Group’s B RO BE DL
total revenue 10.1% 9.6%
Profit/(loss) before interest and BB RBERER, (EE)
tax (EBIT) 923.5 (409.5) 325.5%
Profit before interest and B LB R B I8 A& ) 2
tax margin 5.0% (12.8%)
Finance costs, net B TSRS F R (377.3) (34.1) 1,006.5%
Net finance costs as a percentage 875K AN FRE(H A &£ [H
of the Group's total revenue mENBE DT 2.0% 1.1%
Profit/(loss) before income tax BTSRRI ALER, (EE) 546.2 (443.6) 223.1%
Income tax (expense)/credit gt (FX) & (110.6) 0.4 27,750%
Effective tax rate BB E 20.2% (0.1%)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF (EE) 435.6 (443.2) 198.3%
Net profit margin o Al 2.4% (13.8%)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: ATR&H EERF, (BE)
Shareholders of the Company ZiNNE] 1851 426.8 (439.9) 197.0%
Non-controlling interest FEFE AR A 2 8.8 (3.3) 366.7%
435.6 (443.2) 198.3%
! Included distribution and selling expenses, and administrative expenses ! BIES I R E ST MITHRA X
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Revenue

The Group recognised a record-high revenue in the year ended 2017, which
was mainly attributable to the financial performance of Scholz Group being
fully accounted for in this year together with ferrous and non-ferrous metal
prices recover gradually after it bottomed out in the fourth quarter of 2016.
The Group's revenue was approximately HK$18,491.0 million in 2017,
representing a significant increase of approximately 4.8 times compared to
approximately HK$3,211.4 million in 2016.

EEEN Rk
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BET BT NFE2FH32E1,14088
TCRIEIE IN404.815

Increase/
2017 2016 (Decrease)
—E-tf “E-RF #8i/ (Bd)
Asa As a
percentage percentage
HK$M of revenue HK$M of revenue HK$M
BEBET HUENBEDL BEET HUEMBEAL BEAET
Greater China R ER 48136 26.0% 32114 100% 1,602.2
Non Greater China FERFEMR 13,677.4 74.0% - 0% N/AT i B
Total it 18,491.0 100.0% 32114 100% 15,279.6
LME Copper LME Aluminum
LMESR LMESR
US$/ton US$/ton
e e
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7 e 7 7
LME Steel Rebar LME Steel Scrap
LMESR 4 8 LMEE $§
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ey eyl
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEETWN DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit for the financial year ended 2017 was HK$2,329.0 million,
an increase of HK$2,110.4 million or approximately 9.7 times compared
to the HK$218.6 million recorded in the previous financial year. Gross
profit margin for the year also increased from 6.8% to 12.6%. The
increase in gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly attributable

to:

o newly acquired Scholz Group contributed additional gross profit,
with a higher gross profit margin

o synergistic effects between the European, US and Greater China
operation

o Greater China region enhanced the production efficiency through

skills transferring from European and US

o favorable price trends of ferrous and non-ferrous metals in this
year

Profit before interest and tax (EBIT)/Margin

EBIT for the year ended 2017 was HK$923.5 million, a significant
increase of HK$1,333.0 million or 325.5% compared with the previous
financial year. EBIT margin also increased from negative 12.8% to
positive 5.0%. The increase in both EBIT and EBIT margin was mainly
due to:

o the stable improvement in global economic environment with less
commodity price volatility helped the metal recycling industry to
recover gradually

o Improvement of operational performance in all regions
o Last year's legal and professional expenses mainly for acquisitions

of Scholz Group and re-engineering of existing operations
decreased significantly during the financial year 2017

18 chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Profit before interest and tax (EBIT)/Margin (continued)

Total operating expenses were HK$1,865.3 million, an increase of
504.4% over the last financial year. Total operating expenses as a
percentage of the Group’s total revenue also increased from 9.6% to
10.1%.

Distribution and selling expenses increased from HK$15.1 million to
HK$562.3 million, an increase of 3,623.8% compared with the last
financial year. It was mainly attributable to a different business model
in Europe and America where local transport services were provided to
customers. As a percentage of the Group's total revenue, distribution
and selling expenses also increased from 0.5% to 3.0%.

Administrative expenses increased from HK$293.5 million to
HK$1,303.0 million over the same period last year. The increase was
mainly due to the consolidation of Scholz Group and the higher
employee related costs compared with the last financial year. As a
percentage of the Group’s total revenue, however, administrative
expenses decreased from 9.1% to 7.1%.

BEENWR DN

R El R (48)
BRASRBEADRR, HFIER (F)
KEBREER E—MREEEMNS044%%
18186,5308 B wo A BB EEAEES
WE=r B DL INH9.6% EFAZE10.1% °

SHERBEERIHII0EBB T AR
5862308 AT B EMEMBEE LA
3,623.8% £ E MR BUMNMEMNA TR 5
B g2 REAIERREEE, - H
MEERI A EEBARENE D LH05%
FHZE3.0%-

TTHF 2 2= F R HE H92189,3508 6 T £ A
Z13E300B B Lo mE ERANE FHER R
EENE THRBKAR F—F BT ERRTE
meER THRIEAEEEKRENE DT
B9 1% B ET 1% °

Increase/
2017 2016 (Decrease)
—E-tf “E-XF #Bm/ ()
Asa As a
percentage percentage
HK$M of revenue HK$M of revenue HK$M
BEET HUENESL BEAT HUEMESL BEAT
Distribution and selling expenses PIERHERT 562.3 3.0% 15.1 0.5% 547.2
Administrative expenses TBAX 1,303.0 7.1% 293.5 9.1% 1,009.5
Total b 1,865.3 10.1% 308.6 9.6% 1,556.7

Profit Attributable to Shareholders and Earnings/(Loss)
Per Share

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017 was HK$426.8 million, increased substantially by
HK$866.7 million or 197.0% as compared to the last financial year. Net
profit margin also rose up from negative 13.7% to positive 2.3%.

BREEEFRERER, (BE)

HE_Z—+HF+-_A=+—HILEE &Q
AR FE(R A A 41E2,6808 8 T 8 £ —Bf
B E S A8 18 IN81E6,6708 7 T8 197.0% °
FHFMRIABA13.7% EFEEF23% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEETWN DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Profit Attributable to Shareholders and Earnings/(Loss)
Per Share (continued)

Taxation charges increased from tax credit HK$0.4 million in the last
financial year to HK$110.6 million in the financial year 2017. The
effective tax rate increased from negative 0.1% to positive 20.2%.

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
HK$0.26 as compared to basis loss per share of HK$0.27 in the previous
financial year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Shareholders’ funds as at 31 December 2017 were HK$5,073.1 million,
an increase of 23.2% from HK$4,117.2 million in the last financial year.
Shareholders’ funds per share increased by 23.5% from HK$2.55 to
HK$3.15.

The Group's financial resources remain stable and steady. As at 31
December 2017, the Group had cash and various bank balances and
pledged bank deposits amounted of HK$1,071.4 million, a decrease
of 48.5% as compared to HK$2,079.4 million as of 31 December
2016. It was mainly due to redemption of all outstanding convertible
bonds matured in March 2017 and the needs in the working capital for
expansion of business operation.

As a result, the current ratio decreased from 1.31 (as restated) as at
31 December 2016 to 1.12 as at 31 December 2017. Total external
borrowings were approximately HK$4,155.2 million (31 December
2016: HK$5,017.9 million (as restated)). Such borrowings were mainly
utilised for the purchase of mixed recycle metal and working capital,
and denominated in Euro, U.S. Dollar and Renminbi. Approximately
HK$2,412.7 million (31 December 2016: approximately HK$2,243.3
million) of borrowings are at fixed interest rates.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2017 was 34.36%
(2016: 44.33% (as restated)) which is calculated based on the total
borrowings divided by our total assets.

The Group is actively seeking to refinance existing borrowings to a
lower financing cost with long-term loans.

20 chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2017

Bi7 ol e (48)
BREEEFNRERER, (FE) (&)

BMIAS HA E— P BFENFRIBR 24085
TEE T —EHREEMNE 0608 87T
BEREHB01%IENEIT20.2% °

HE_Z—t+tF+-_A=+—HILFE 8k
EARBNR0.260ETT - 1 L —MBFERIAE
i B A E180.27/8 7T °

REBESHEGEER
RZE—+F+-A=+—H8 BREESLA50
87,3108 8 0 & E—BEFEEMN41181,720
BETLLEA23.2% - BRIRRE S H2.5587T
+F23.5%E3. 158 T °

REBMNYBERRBER - RZFT—LF
TZA=+—B AEEFENERS KEZER
T R EIRRITE R R20187,9408 %5
TLREI0E7 1408 B L REE-_T—~F
T A=Z+—BR485% L hEEHRRE
BffE—T—tF=AFHN BB ES R
EBKARRNEEESTEE-

Fitt mE R —_E—A"F+_A=+—
B3 (KB BALEZZT—EF+=
B =+—H/1.12 SN IBIE KRB E B LLE
550088 L (ZE—A"F+=A=+—8:
50181,7908 87T (L&) ) - ZEEREE
ARBEERABEESBNEEES WU
T ETTRAREGHE B K24181,2708
BIT(ZE—RE+ZA=+—08: L2218
4,3308 8 7T ) IR [E E R EET B »

AEBP-_Z—+E+_-_A=+—HHNEER
B R E3436% (ZF—/NF 144.33% (&
E5)) ) (RIEEREERNEELEE) ©

AEERESKERAERBRERRER
BRANREER-



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Analysis of Cash Flow from Operations

The Group's cash generated from operations for the year ended 31
December 2017 was HK$850.3 million, an increase of 8.3 times as
compared to HK$91.9 million in the previous financial year. The increase
was mainly attributable to the financial performance of Scholz Group
being fully accounted for in this year together with ferrous and non-
ferrous prices recover gradually. In addition, a higher working capital
investment compared with the previous financial year.

Working Capital Change

Inventories as of 31 December 2017 were HK$2,338.5 million,
increased from HK$1,773.5 million (as restated) as of 31 December
2016. The turnover days dropped from 132 days to 46 days. The higher
stock level was largely due to ferrous and non-ferrous metal prices went
up from 2016 to 2017 financial year end. The improvement in turnover
days was mainly due to the effect from Europe and US operations
having a shorter inventory cycle.

Provision for inventories of 31 December 2017 were HK$5.4 million,
as compared to utilisation of inventory provisions HK$76.0 million
as of 31 December 2016.

BEENWR DN

s (8)
REEBEELENRESOWN
BE-_Z—+F+-_A=1t—BILFE K&
B A EFE LIRS A8(85,0308 /87T &
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2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-XEF
As at 31 December +=A=+—8
All figures are in HK$M unless BB BHAN FFEERE
stated otherwise NB&BITERR
Inventories & 2,3385 1,773.5*
Average stocks as a percentage of FHEFEELMEERREBE ST
Group revenue 11.1% 33.6%"*
Turnover days ISER=R-13 46 days 132 days*
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Working Capital Change (continued)

Trade and other receivables as of 31 December 2017 were HK$1,992.4
million, increased from HK$1,751.1 million (as restated) as of 31
December 2016. Debtor turnover days also increased from 4 days
to 27 days. The higher receivable balance as at 31 December 2017
was mainly due to expansion of business operation and increased in
revenue in the fourth quarter of current financial year compared with
the corresponding period of the previous financial year. The overdue
balances greater than 90 days accounted for 2.7% of the gross
trade debtors as of 31 December 2017. The Group adopts a tight
management on credit exposure.

B ol (&)

HEES®L (F)

B RHEMERFEH-_Z—~"F+=A
= +—BM17E51108 B T (KL= i
E-T—+F+-A=+—HHM19E9,2408
BT EURERRAE A B Hm4R A E27R - =
T—tF+ A=+ HHERRES R
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HEZERBREITRSEE -

2017 2016
—E—+tF —EB—-RE
As at 31 December R+Z—A=+—~H
All figures are in HK$M unless REEHBAN FREERE
stated otherwise KB&BITRT
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b WK IE 1,992.4 1.751.1*
Average receivable as a percentage of TFHRKFIBEEARAEEREZB DT
Group revenue 7.5% 1.2%*
Turnover days IEECN=E 27 days H 4 days B ¥

Trade and other payable as of 31 December 2017 were HK$2,092.0
million, as compared to HK$1,487.1 million (as restated) as of
31 December 2016. Creditor turnover days increased from 19 days to
24 days.

B REMENFRBER-_ZE—tF+=A
=+ —HAE20{89,2008 Bt I =T —~F
+-A=+—HB1 4514188, 7108 BT (K&
Bl|) - fEMBE R AE A EARI19B A E248 °

2017 2016
e ia A ia
As at 31 December ®R+=—A=+—H”
All figures are in HK$M unless BB BB FREERE
stated otherwise LBEBBITERR
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A E I8 2,092.0 1.487.1*
Turnover days IEE=A=E 24 days H 19 days B
# These financial ratio were normalised to exclude the impacts from the acquisition of # ZEVBLEREMBR T —"F+-AAEEK

Scholz Group in December 2016.

* Comparative figures have been restated.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Treasury Policies

The Group’s treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact
of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates arising from the
Group’s global operations. The Group principally uses forward foreign
exchange contracts as appropriate to hedge the foreign exchange risks
in the ordinary course of business. It is the Group’s policy not to enter
into derivative transactions for speculative purposes. Details of such
forward foreign exchange contracts can be found under Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group invested HK$429.3
million in the purchase of tangible assets including machinery and
equipment, leasehold improvements, office equipment for the
improvement of production efficiency (31 December 2016: HK$127.2
million). All of these capital expenditures were financed from internal
resources.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had pledged certain plants and
buildings, land use rights, inventories, trade receivables and bank
deposits with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$4,344.6
million (31 December 2016: HK$3,692.3 million (as restated)) to secure
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital commitments in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and additions
in construction in progress but which are not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements and amounted to HK$175.3 million
(31 December 2016: HK$129.9 million).

As at the date of this report, save as disclosed below, the Board is not
aware of any material contingent liabilities.

The Group has contingent liabilities of approximately HK$42.5 million
(31 December 2016: HK$27.5 million) which consist of non-financial
guarantee in favour of investee entities.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

A writ of summons was issued by Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”),
as plaintiff, on 21 December 2015 in the High Court of Hong Kong
(High Court Action No. 3040 of 2015, “HCA 3040/2015"), followed by
an amended writ on 5 December 2016, against the Company and Mr.
Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) as defendants for a sum of HK$57.8 million
together with interest and costs. The claim relates to an alleged non-
payment of a portion of the loans advanced by Delco Asia Company
Limited (“Delco Asia”) to subsidiaries of the Company in accordance
with the terms of a shareholders loan assignment dated 24 June 2010
between, amongst others, Delco Asia and the Company. The case is still
in progress.

Each of Mr. Fang, a former director of the Company, and HWH Holdings
Limited (“HWH"), undertook to the Company to indemnify and hold
harmless on demand (on an after-tax basis) the Company against all
losses arising out of, inter alia, HCA 3040/2015 in accordance with the
terms of a letter of indemnity signed by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour
of the Company on 17 December 2015. Further, HWH has also agreed
that a sum including the amount of HK$57.8 million be held in escrow
as security for any liability of the Company in respect of, inter alia, HCA
3040/2015. As such, the Board does not consider HCA 3040/2015 to
be a claim of material importance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

A writ of summons was issued by Delco as plaintiff on 10 November
2016 in the High Court of Hong Kong (High Court Action No. 2939 of
2016, “"HCA 2939/2016") against the Company as the 1st defendant,
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited (“CTHK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the 2nd defendant, HWH as the 3rd defendant, and Mr.
Fang as the 4th defendant. So far as the Company and its subsidiaries
are concerned, Delco claimed against the Company for damages for
an alleged breach of a letter of undertaking dated 3 March 2015 in
relation to a convertible bond issued by the Company and subscribed
for by Delco on 1 March 2012. Delco further claimed against CTHK for
a sum of US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to CTHK
on or around 16 April 2009. Delco further claims interests, costs and
further or other relief. The Company and CTHK filed their defence on
24 March 2017 and the Plaintiff filed its reply to the Company and
CTHK's defence on 20 June 2017. The case is still in progress.

Whilst the Board does not consider HCA 2939/2016 to be a claim
of material importance for the reason set out above, details of HCA
2939/2016 are disclosed herein for the sake of completeness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Revenue by Products
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
The Group’s performance

We successfully achieved an important milestone by acquiring the entire
share capital of Scholz Holding in December 2016. The Scholz Group
is one of the world’s largest mixed metal recyclers with advanced ELV
processing capability. It has developed several advanced technologies
to become one of the few companies in the world capable of handling
and recycling multiple types of materials. We act as a pioneer to
consolidate the fragmented recycling industry while integrating our
business operations worldwide.

The Group sold in aggregate over 5.1 million tonnes of recycled products
in 2017. This represents a remarkable increase of more than 10 times
when compared to 0.5 million tonnes being sold in 2016. During 2017,
the Group continued its usual practices of consistently buying mixed
metal scraps and selling its recycled products in accordance with its
processing ability. Moreover, the Group made efforts to streamline and
improve the inventory cycle so as to mitigate the short-term impact of
price volatility on the overall performance of the Group.

Operation Performance

The Group has extended the metal recycling business from its original
operation base, Greater China, to Europe and America, becoming a truly
global player ranking among top few in the world. Management has then
reorganised the Group’s business segment for the purpose of reporting and
analysis, with specific commentaries made on its major operation base.

Europe and America

Our European and American operations provide all steps in recycling
mixed metal scraps and is equipped with the one-stop shop service
for collecting, gathering, sorting and processing. We are among the
processing and technology leaders in ferrous and non-ferrous metal
recycling worldwide. We own many advanced processing technologies
in scrap metal shredding and post-shredding.

Our scrap metal shredding services, including cleaning, sorting,
shearing, shredding, and pressing, constitute a “One-Stop-Shop”
process for all customers and cater to any metal supply needs. In post-
shredding technologies, we are able to achieve approximately 97%
recovery rate for ELV, ranking as a world leader (95% recycling rate is
the existing recovery target under the European Union directive).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Europe and America (continued)

Our supplier base is well diversified. The largest supplier of ferrous
and non-ferrous materials only represents 3% and 4% respectively
of our total purchase quantities, and our top 5 suppliers of ferrous
and non-ferrous products in aggregate only covered 9% of our total
purchase. Our key suppliers comprise top tier automotive manufacturers
in Germany, the largest railway company in Germany, the largest
automobile component manufacturer in North America and the world’s
second largest automotive component manufacturer.

Our customer base is also very diversified, with no single customer
occupying a material share of our sales. The largest customer of
ferrous and non-ferrous products only weights 5% and 7% respectively
of total sales quantities, and top 5 customers of ferrous and non-
ferrous products in aggregate only covered 18% and 26% of total
sales respectively. Our key customers are the leaders in the metal
industry including: the world’s largest steelmaker, European top rail
manufacturer, a key manufacturer of flat-rolled steel and stainless steel
in Europe, largest steelmaker in Europe, and second and third largest
steelmakers in the USA.

Other than metal recycling, we also provide excellent customer services
through value-added services such as total waste management services
for some industrial customers, non-recycling services such as collection,
sorting and bailing of paper and plastics, logistics service and so on.

Globally, we have approximately 500 employees specifically committed
to trading, sale and purchase of metal scraps. We will continue to strive
for top line sales/volume growth through more organised key account
management and expansion of new customers/suppliers in Asia and
South America.

In 2017, we sold around 4.7 million tonnes of recycled ferrous and
non-ferrous products through its business activities in Europe, North
and Central America (whereas for 2016, around 4.4 million tonnes).
We have a global network of about 250 collecting and processing
yards with a major focus in Germany, Poland, Austria, Slovenia, Czech
Republic, Denmark and Romania, as well as America including Mexico.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEETWN DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Europe and America (continued)

In 2017, our European and American operations recorded a revenue of
HK$13,677.4 million, or approximately 74.0% of the total revenue of
the Group in 2017. Both their processing tonnage and average selling
price of their metal scrap products increased as a result of the gradual
recovery of commodity pricing, the strong demand from electric arc
furnaces, blast furnace and steelmakers in various regions for steel
scrap from Europe and USA, and the increased purchase of steel scrap
in USA by metal traders.

Europe Region

In 2017, the European market showed a recovery from 2016 with a
stable steel scrap demand and improving prices where the price level
bounced back to that in the first quarter 2015. Demand from electric
arc furnaces, blast furnaces and steel mills, especially in Europe and
Turkey, supported the improvement with higher demands for steel scrap
from USA and Europe.

As a result in 2017, sales tonnage and revenue in Europe increased by
approximately 2.5% to 4.1 million tonnes and 33.5% to HK$11,626.4
million respectively as compared to the previous year. The operational
restructuring with strict margin control brought higher cost efficiency.
Together with the positive impact from market price improvement in the
ferrous scrap, it resulted in an increase of gross profit by approximately
11.1% in 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
America Region

There are 9 and 14 processing yards in USA and Mexico respectively.

The American region had a remarkable turnaround in business in 2017
with the revenue of metal scrap increased by approximately 30.4% to
HK$2,051.0 million despite the sales tonnage remained flat at 0.65
million tonnes. The gross profit also increased by 5.2% to HK$291.2
million in 2017.

Significant improvement in performance was mainly driven by:
o more favorable market conditions in 2017 compared to 2016

o positive effect of liquidity provided by the Group in December

2016

o improved yard management efficiency under the new unified
operation structure

o successful revitalisation after consolidating control over the
business

Greater China

In Greater China, including outsourced workers, we have a workforce
of about 2,700 staff. Our major production facilities are situated in
Yuen Long (Hong Kong), Taizhou (Zhejiang) and Yantai (Shandong).

Unlike Europe and America where the major products are ferrous
products, the Greater China region, led by Taizhou, mainly focuses
on non-ferrous metal. Like the ferrous metal price development, non-
ferrous metal pricing, especially that of copper, has been rising in 2017.
This, together with operational efficiency improvement and stringent
cost control, resulted in significant turnaround of profitability from a
loss of HK$243.5 million in 2016 to a profit of HK$295.9 million in
2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEETWN DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Greater China (continued)

With increasing awareness of the importance of environmental
protection and sustainability, the Chinese government is becoming
more stringent in combating illegal and non-complying operations, as
well as in scrap importation. More regulated framework will definitely
be established. This development will provide more opportunities to
large-scale and environmentally complying companies like the Group.
We will also focus on establishing a domestic collection network for
metal recycling.

Taizhou Production Site

According to the statistics from Ministry of Environmental Protection on
approved import of mixed scrap metals and the actual import volume,
the production site in Taizhou is the largest importer of copper based
scrap metal in China and the largest global scrap motor buyer in 2017.
After the purchase of scrap metal, mainly from around the world,
we split, separate and disassemble mixed metal scrap, and produce
various recycled metal products such as scrap copper, scrap steel,
scrap aluminium and scrap pig iron; we also manufacture high-quality
aluminium-alloy ingots from recycled metals which are widely used in
the manufacturing of automobiles, electronics, and other industries.

Taizhou production site possesses a unique set of standardised
operating procedures to handle various types of wastes. It has
more than 2,000 skilled dismantling workers and owns customised
dismantling equipment, metal processing and smelting equipment
(producing aluminium ingots, copper granules), which can enable
more than 90% recovery rate of raw material from recycling. Taizhou
production site can adjust its production processes to adapt the
versatile changes in market situation and to fulfil the particular needs
of different customers. In 2017, Taizhou processed 359,000 tonnes of
scrap motors.

Looking ahead, Taizhou will diversify its activity to include more
downstream aluminium ingots production, continue to work on
environmental policy compliance and to increase efficiency in processing
and price management of material purchase.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Yuen Long Production Site

In Hong Kong, about HK$120 million had been invested in installing
two automated processing lines in 2017. Yuen Long will be positioned
as a centre of excellence in waste electrical and electronic equipment
(WEEE) processing. With the automated lines up and running in 2018,
capacity will be increased. We also offer value-added services for
corporate confidential data destruction and corporate and household
electronic waste recycling solutions.

In 2017, the Yuen Long operation obtained the License to Dispose of
Chemical Waste and the Permit for Export of Waste Printed Circuit
Boards from Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department. We are
one of the few licensed recyclers in Hong Kong to dispose of and export
chemical waste with the all-rounded capabilities to process printed
circuit board in Hong Kong. Yuen Long site is one of the few operators
in Hong Kong recycle material within a closed-loop system, compared
to the conventional linear recycling chain concept of other local WEEE
recyclers in Hong Kong. It is currently the largest privately owned and
most diversified and comprehensive e-waste recycling centre in Hong
Kong.

Yantai Production Sites

There are two production sites in Yantai, the metal recycling operation
and the waste-lubricant oil recycling operation.

In 2017, the metal recycling operation mainly engaged in metal trading.
It will be used as a base to support the China domestic collection
network establishment.

The waste-lubricant oil recycling operation had a good development
in 2017. The operation purchases or collects waste-lubricant oil from
vehicle repair shops, producers of such waste lubricant oil (such as
machining factories) and waste-lubricant oil collectors in the Shandong
Province. After purification, distillation and addition of lubricant
additives, the finished products (lubricant base oil) are sold to lubricant
oil production plants mainly situated in Shandong and Liaoning
provinces. It received the Permit for Operation of Dangerous Wastes in
the second half of 2017, and is ramping up production in 2018. It is
expected that the operation will further diversify our business portfolio
and will contribute positively to the earnings of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWR DM

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market risks
such as commodities price risk, foreign currencies risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's risk management strategy
aims to minimise the adverse effects of these risks on its financial
performance.

On 7 March 2018, the Board adopted a commodity price risk
hedging policy which the Board believes is more suitable for the
current operating conditions of the Group. Details of the commodity
price risk hedging policy is available on the Company’s website,
www.chihogroup.com.

As part of its foreign currency hedging strategy, the Board will closely
monitor the Group’s foreign currency borrowings in the view of the
volatile exchange rate for EURO and Renminbi to U.S. Dollar and other
currencies and consider various measures to minimise the foreign
currency risk, such as foreign currency forward contracts.

With the relatively low interest rates in 2017, the Group has entered
into insignificant amount of interest rate hedging contracts or any
other interest rate related derivative financial instruments. The Group
continues to monitor its related interest rate exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure when the need
arises.

As for credit risk, the Group continues to follow the trade practices of
cash on collection for sales of most of its recycled products in order to
minimise the carrying amounts of the financial assets in the Group’s
financial statements. In addition, the Group will continue to monitor
closely its trade debtors to minimise potential impairment losses.

With regard to the liquidity risk, the Group will continue to maintain a
balance between the continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a workforce of 4,401
employees. In addition, we engaged approximately 2,003 separation
and selection workers through local recognised contractors. We have
not experienced any strikes, work stoppages or significant labor
disputes which have affected our operations in the past. We have
not experienced any significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining
qualified staff. We continue to maintain good relationships with our
employees.

The Group's total staff costs for the year was approximately
HK$1,135.3 million. The remuneration package of staff consists of
basic salary, mandatory provident fund, insurances and other benefits
as considered appropriate. Remuneration of the employees of the
Group is determined by reference to the market standard, individual
performance and their respective contribution to the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are subject to the recommendations of
the remuneration committee of the Company and the Board'’s approval.
Other emoluments including discretionary bonuses, are determined by
the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, abilities, reputation
and performance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group considers that investor relations are important to a listed
company. The Board believes that maintaining a good relationship
with investors and keeping them up-to-date on the latest corporate
communications and business development in a timely fashion would
enhance transparency and strengthen corporate governance of the
Group. With the support of the Board, Mr. Chong, Ming John, the
head of public relations and investor relations of the Group has been
assigned to take responsibility for all matters relating to investor
relations of the Group.

Going forward, the Company will continue to make effort to keep our
investors abreast of the corporate and business developments, and to
introduce the Group’s strengths and strategies in order to gain support
and recognition from them and also the market in general.
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Profile of Directors and
Senior Management

EENSHEEANEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #TE %

Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), aged 54, is an executive Director of the Company. He was appointed as an executive Director
on 29 April 2015. Mr. Tu is a member of the executive committee and the strategy and investment committee of the
Company and he is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tu was appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company during the period from 16 February 2016 to 31 March 2016. He has been the chairman of
USUM Investment Group Limited since April 2014. He has been the director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (B EZES£EER
2 A1) since January 1996 and the director of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd (&A% B R A 7)) since January 2003. USUM
Investment Group Limited, Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (BZ&£E B R A7) and Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (RZIZERBR A
7)) are controlling shareholders of the Company.

He served as the chairman of the board of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (&2 AR A 7)) in the period from January
2003 to July 2010 and from February 2013 to December 2013, the executive director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (£
£ E AR A A]) from January 1996 to January 1997, and the chairman of the board of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (2 £ £
EABR A F]) from January 1997 to December 2013. He served as the general manager of Chongging Loncin Gasoline
Engine Company (SinoAmerican Joint Venture) (& B EEE & /7 /m# A 7)) , a company that used to be controlled
by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1995 to 1996, and served as the chairman of Chongging Loncin Transportation and
Machinery Factory (EER Z X BIEM M) , a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from
1993 to 1995. He served as the chairman of Chongging City Jiulongpo District Loncin Metal Factory ( E & m fLEEH &
FEESBM) , a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1991 to 1993 and the factory
director of Chongging Cinhua Metals Factory (EE&ZEE & B & M) , from 1983 to 1990.

Mr. Tu graduated from the Economic Management (4% & 2 5 %) of the Open College in Chongging City Municipal
Party School (EEMZ ER KIZZEPT) in December 1998. Mr. Tu previously acted as the deputy to the 11th, 12th
National People’s Congress, the deputy to the 2nd, 3rd and 4th Chongging Municipal People’s Congress and the
member of the Finance Committee. He currently serves as a Member of the National Committee of the 13th Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing Committee Member of the Executive Committee of the 12th All
China Federation of Industry & Commerce (2B T#5t) , the president of Chongging City Industry and Commerce
Federation (&= E M L) , the President of Chongging City General Chamber of Commerce (EE TR E), the vice
president of Chongging City Charity Federation (EE M =4 ) and the vice president of Chongging City Private
Entrepreneurs Confederation (EEMRETERBA D) .

Mr. Tu is a non-executive director of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.* (BES M AR AT ) , a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 3903), and a director
of Loncin Motor Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603766).

The annual salary of Mr. Tu is HK$2,300,000, He is also entitled a discretionary bonus. The annual salary and discretionary
bonus of Mr. Tu are determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company, qualifications,
experience, the prevailing market conditions and the Company’s remuneration policy and is subject to annual review by
the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin”), aged 54, is the chairman, chief executive officer and an executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Group on 1 June 2016 as executive vice president, and was appointed as an executive director
on 30 June 2016. He was re-designated to chief executive officer of the Company on 24 October 2016, to the chairman
of the Board of the Company on 17 July 2017, and was appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company on 11
October 2017. Mr. Qin serves as the chairman of the executive committee, the nomination committee, the strategy and
investment committee and the pricing committee of the Company. He is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Qin was appointed as the president of USUM Investment Group Co., Ltd. on 22 January 2018. From 2004
to 2016, Mr. Qin worked with LafargeHolcim group and his last position with LafargeHolcim group was the purchasing
director of the China region, with a particular focus on raw materials and cementitious materials. Mr. Qin served as the
head of the purchasing department of Tianjin Henkel Detergent Co. Ltd. from 1996 to 1999 and the finance director of
Tianjin Philips Sy Catering and Entertainment Co., Ltd. from 1994 to 1996. Mr. Qin has extensive experience in corporate
operation management, process and budget control, strategic materials procurement and supplier management. Mr.
Qin holds a bachelor degree of Finance and Accounting from Renmin University of China and a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Southampton.

The annual salary of Mr. Qin is HK$4,415,244. He is also entitled a discretionary bonus. The annual salary and discretionary
bonus of Mr. Qin are determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company, qualifications, experience,
the prevailing market conditions and the Company’s remuneration policy and is subject to annual review by the Board and
the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Mr. Wong Wun Lam (“Mr. Wong"), aged 53, is the chief financial officer and an executive Director of the Company. He
joined the Group on 10 August 2017 as chief financial officer, and was appointed as an executive director on 11 October
2017. Mr. Wong serves as a member of each of the executive committee, the strategy and investment committee and
the pricing committee of the Company. He is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Wong obtained
a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Calgary and received a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from Kellogg School of Management at the Northwestern University. He is also a Chartered Accountant of
Canada. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wong had more than 28 years of extensive experience in the field of financial
management. He was the Chief Financial Officer of Cargo Services Group and before that, Mr. Wong worked in Royal
Philips Electronics, Jarden Corporation and CLP Power and held senior positions in financial and business management.

Mr. Wong is not entitled any salary for the appointment as executive Director of the Company but he is entitled an
annual salary of HK$2,600,000 for his role as chief financial officer. He is also entitled a discretionary bonus. The annual
salary and discretionary bonus of Mr. Wong are determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the
Company, qualifications, experience, the prevailing market conditions and the Company’s remuneration policy and is
subject to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B IEHTTES

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (“Dr. Loke"), aged 68, is an independent non-executive Director. He was appointed
as an independent non-executive director on 23 June 2010. Dr. Loke serves as the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Dr. Loke has over 42
years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and public companies, financial consultancy and corporate
management. He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor
of Business Administration degree from University of South Australia. He is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors; The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director
Association. He currently serves as an independent non-executive director of the following companies whose shares
are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange: V1 Group Limited (Stock Code: 82), Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1005), China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 39), China Fire Safety Enterprise Group
Limited (Stock Code: 445), Winfair Investment Company Limited (Stock Code: 287), SCUD Group Limited (Stock Code:
1399), Zhong An Real Estate Limited (Stock Code: 672), Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 882),
China Household Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 692), Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 1619), Lamtex
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1041), Forebase International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2310), Hang Sang (Siu Po)
International Holding Company Limited (Stock Code: 3626), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2882) and Zhenro Properties Group Limited (Stock Code: 6158).

Dr. Loke is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$250,000 per annum, which is determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the market rate for his position as independent non-executive Director and is subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Mr. Zhu Dajian (“Prof. Zhu"), aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 17 December
2014. Prof. Zhu is a member of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company. He is a distinguished professor of the School of Economics & Management at Tongji University in Shanghai ( _E
YR AER) | a director of the Institute of Governance for Sustainable Development ( A] #3548 3% & B B IR A 5577 ) , the
head of the Department of Public Management and Policy (A& %), and the vice chairman of the Tongji University
Academic Committee ([R/E A EE4TZ E€ ), at Tongji University in Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China. He was
awarded the special allowance by the China’s State Council in 2000. He was also a senior research scholar at Harvard
University in 2005 and a senior visiting fellow at Melbourne University in Australia from 1994 to 1995. Moreover, he
is appointed as a member of The State Foundation for Social Sciences, a member of the Social Science Commission
under the Chinese Education Ministry, a member of the Experts Commission on Sustainable Development & Resource
and Environment (R[5 B E R ERMIRTE ZHERZE D) under the Chinese Construction Ministry, and a special
policy advisor (CRE A #MHFIEE K ) for the Shanghai Municipal Government. He is also a member of the International
Expert Committee of Enel Foundation in Italy, the Ellen MacArthur Foundation in the United Kingdom and Firmenich in
Switzerland, respectively. Prof. Zhu was appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Taiping Insurance
Holdings Company Limited on 21 August 2014, a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (stock code: 966).

Prof. Zhu is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$250,000 per annum, which is determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the market rate for his position as independent non-executive Director and is subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Ms. Qian Liping (“Ms. Qian”), aged 40, is an independent non-executive Director. She joined the Group on 24 October
2016. Ms. Qian is a member of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. Ms. Qian is currently a professor at the School of Economics and Business Administration in Chongging
University and a managing director of Marketing Committee, Chinese Research Council of Modern Management. She
was also a visiting scholar of the Chinese University of Hong Kong from 2010 to 2011. Ms. Qian has been appointed
as an external review expert of several journals including “Management World”, “Journal of Marketing Science” and
“Nankai Business Review"”, and was awarded “2015 Annual Excellent Review Expert” by “Journal of Marketing Science”.
She has more than 16 years of research experience in B2B Marketing and Marketing Channel Management and has
intimate knowledge of the marketing environment and management mechanism in mainland China. Ms. Qian holds a
doctoral degree in Management from School of Management of Xi‘an Jiaotong University.

Ms. Qian is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$250,000 per annum, which is determined with reference to her duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the market rate for her position as independent non-executive Director and is subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Mr. Zhu Hongchao (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Zhu is the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company and a member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company.

Mr. Zhu is one of the founding partners of Shanghai United Law Firm and a senior lawyer. He possesses a Juris Master
degree obtained from Fudan University and has rich litigation and non-litigation experience in terms of Contract Law,
Law of Torts, Company Law and other legal fields. Mr. Zhu has served as a permanent legal adviser or specially invited
adviser of a large number of state-owned enterprises, Global 500 enterprises and governmental departments for a long
time. As one of the first batch of lawyers with the qualification to practice securities law, he has participated in the
reorganisation and listing of over 40 large Chinese enterprises.

Mr. Zhu is currently the director and senior partner of Shanghai United Law Firm. He also serves as an arbitrator of
China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission, Shanghai International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission (Shanghai International Arbitration Center) and Shanghai Arbitration Commission, a mediator of Shanghai
Commercial Mediation Center, and a part-time professor of Shanghai University Law School and East China University of
Political Science and Law.

He once served as the third, fourth, fifth and sixth deputy president of All China Lawyers Association, the sixth president
of Shanghai Bar Association and the seventh chief supervisor of Shanghai Bar Association.

He is an independent director of the following companies: Shanghai First Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* ( L/ 5 — B8
AR F]) (Stock Code: 600833 (SHA)); Wonders Information Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 300168 (SHE)); Caitong Fund
Management Co., Ltd.; Jupai Holdings Limited (Stock Code: JP (NYSE)); and E-House (China) Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: EJ (NYSE)). He once served as an independent director of the following companies: Sinochem International
Corporation (Stock Code: 600500 (SHA)); E-House Holdings Co., Ltd.* ( 5 B2 DB R A F ), Shanghai Guangdian
Electric Group Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 601616 (SHA)); and Tengda Construction Group Co,. Ltd. (Stock Code: 600512
(SHA)). He now is also an external director of Bright Food (Group) Co., Ltd.
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Mr. William Thomas Bird (“Tom"”), is the chief operating officer of the Company. He also serves as a member of the
pricing committee of the company. He joined the Group on 20 November 2017. He is a ferrous board member of the
Bureau of International Recycling (the “BIR"), and was also elected as the interim president of the Ferrous Board of the
BIR in October 2017. In May 2016, he was elected as treasurer of BIR. He was also the former president of European
Ferrous Recovery and Recycling Federation.

Prior to joining the Company, Tom has more than 30 years of extensive experience in the field of metal recycling. From
2016 to 2017, he was the chief executive officer of Liberty Metal Recycling. From 2010 to 2016, Tom was the managing
director of Van Dalen UK Limited and Mettalis Recycling Limited. He worked with Sims Metal Management UK Limited as
a managing director from 1995 to 2009. From 1991 to 1995, he was the general manager in Allied Bird Fragmentation
and from 1986 to 1991, he worked with Bird Group of Companies as a Manager. Tom has extensive experience in the
operating and trading of international ferrous scrap sector and global business management.

Tom obtained a Bachelor’s Degree (Hons) in Business Administration in Plymouth University. He also completed the Senior
Executive Finance Programme in Templeton College Oxford University.
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Mr. Goh Kian Guan (“Mr. Goh”), vice president, chief investment officer of the Company and general manager of
the investment & development department of the Company. Mr. Goh also serves as a member of the strategy and
investment committee of the Company and he is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He joined the Group
since 1 January 2016. Before joining the Group, Mr. Goh was the managing director for investments at USUM Investment
Group Limited. Prior to USUM Investment Group Limited, Mr. Goh was the head of international merger & acquisition at
an investment firm in Shanghai. Before that, Mr. Goh served in Standard Chartered Corporate Advisory and BNP Paribas
Investment Banking Energy & Commodities team. Prior to his post at investment banking, Mr. Goh was with the strategic
investment team for Singapore Telecom working on merger & acquisition. Mr. Goh has many years of experiences with
both buy-side and sell- side, covering energy, commodities, transportation, telecom-media-technology (TMT) and high
end manufacturing. Prior to that, Mr. Goh served 6 years as an engineer, working on various projects, including oil
fields, refineries, petrochemical plants, pharmaceutical plants, power plants, oil rigs, real estates and advance equipment
manufacturing, covering technical, commercial and financial management.

Mr. Goh graduated with a Master of Finance degree from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology of Australia, and
a Bachelor of Engineering in Civil from the Nanyang Technological University of Singapore.
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Mr. Koon Wai Hung (“Mr. Koon”), the company secretary and deputy chief financial officer of the Company. He joined
the Group on 20 February 2016. He also serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Koon has on record over 24 years' experience in accounting, financial management and auditing. Prior to joining the
Company, he was the senior manager of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Mr. Koon was responsible in audit of Hong Kong
listed companies that engaged in manufacturing and real estate. He also was the manager of PricewaterhouseCoopers
and the staff accountant of Ernst & Young. Mr. Koon also was the finance manager of a Hong Kong Listed company.

Mr. Koon holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree, majoring in Accounting and a Bachelor of Information Technology
degree, majoring in Business Information and MRP System, both from Bond University in Australia. He is an associate of
CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Directors of the Company have the pleasure in presenting their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statement.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is set at in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group on
pages 120 to 121 of this Annual Report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 10 to 15 and pages
16 to 35 respectively of this Annual Report which also form part of this
Directors’ Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has implemented a number of resources conservation
initiatives in its operations and workplaces. It is our strategy to gradually
embed sustainability into our daily management, thus, we will continue
to improve environmental sustainability measures in all our facilities.
In 2017, we complied with all relevant environmental regulations
in Hong Kong and the PRC that have a significant impact on the
Group's business. There were no significant fines and no non-monetary
sanctions for non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations
during the year. Details of the above information will be set out in our
environmental, social and governance report which is scheduled to be
published within three months after the issuance of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group was not aware of any noncompliance with
laws and regulations that would have a significant impact on the Group
in relation to issues such as environmental protection, employment and
labour practices, operating practices and the community.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Maintaining and consolidating its relationship with customers is crucial
to increasing the profits of the Company. When carrying out business
with customers, the Group has adopted various methods to collect and
report their needs and expectations and taken corresponding measures
for improvement. The results of such measures were reviewed and
feedbacks were provided to the customers. The main duties include
conducting customer satisfaction survey by sending out questionnaires
to have their feedbacks, opinions, suggestions, complaints or praises to
ensure the service quality and to make improvement.

The Group's raw materials are required to be purchased in both
overseas and domestic markets. Maintaining a good relationship with
our scrap metal suppliers is one of the most important task in scrap
metal procurement. In addition, the Group continues to secure a group
of quality scrap suppliers by conducting regular evaluations, so as to lay
a solid foundation for the recycling and dismantling production of the
Group.

The Group has committed to providing equal employment opportunities
without regard to sex, age or national origin, and are in accordance
with anti-discrimination laws. We endeavor to ensure employees
are treated equally within our welfare system and are provided with
effective channels to freely express and communicate their opinions.

Our Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of ethical
and responsible conduct when doing business. A group-level Whistle-
blowing Policy is in place to deter corruption or any possible violation
of law or company policy and to promote standards of good corporate
practices.
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CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL IN THE YEAR

Details of the change in share capital issued in the year ended of 31
December 2017 are set out in note 27 in the consolidated financial
statements.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

There were no contract of significance with any member of the
Group as the contracting party and in which any of the controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries possessed direct or indirect
substantial interests, and which was still valid on 31 December 2017 or
any time during such year and related to the business of the Group.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE RULES
GOVERNING THE LISTING OF SECURITIES ON THE
STOCK EXCHANGE (THE “LISTING RULES")

On 19 December 2016, the Company as issuer entered into a
subscriptions agreement (“Subscriptions Agreement”) with an
independent third party institution (the “Subscriber”) pursuant to which
the Company agrees to issue and the Subscriber agrees to subscribe for
certain notes (“Notes”) in the principal amount of US$200,000,000 due
2018.

Pursuant to the Subscriptions Agreement, Mr. Tu and USUM Investment
Group Hong Kong Limited Jaifg#& & &£ B (B8 ) AR 2AF] ("USUMHK")
shall also provide a personal guarantee and a corporate guarantee,
respectively, in favour of the Subscriber to secure, among others, the
due and punctual observance and performance by the Company under
the Subscriptions Agreement and other documents.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE RULES
GOVERNING THE LISTING OF SECURITIES ON
THE STOCK EXCHANGE (THE “LISTING RULES")
(continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the Notes, it will be an event of default if,
among others, (i) USUMHK ceases to beneficially own (directly or
indirectly) at all times a shareholding in the Company representing the
single largest shareholding in the Company, or (i) USUMHK ceases
at all times to be controlled by Mr. Tu and Mr. Tu ceases to be the
single largest shareholder of USUMHK. For the purposes of this clause,
“control” of each person means (whether by way of ownership of
shares, proxy, contract, agency or otherwise): (a) having the power to
cast, or control the casting of 40% of the votes that might be cast at
a general meeting of such person; or (b) having the power to appoint
a majority of the board of directors or remove any director of such
person; or (c) having the power or ability to influence the management
and financial policies of such person. If any event of default occurs, the
Subscriber may require the Notes to be repaid immediately. As at the
date of this report, USUMHK owns 62.85% of the total issued share
capital of the Company and Mr. Tu indirectly owns 42.10% of the total
issued share capital of USUMHK.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Qin Yongming
(Chairman, appointed on 17 July 2017)
(Chief Executive Officer, appointed on 11 October 2017)

Mr. Tu Jianhua
(resigned as Chairman on 17 July 2017)
Mr. Wong Wun Lam
(appointed on 11 October 2017)
Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong
(appointed on 7 April 2017 and
resigned on 11 October 2017)
Mr. Liu Huaiyu
(resigned on 7 April 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Loke Yu
Mr. Zhu Dajian
Ms. Qian Liping

* Mr. Zhu Hongchao was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 18 April 2018. Mr. Zhu Hongchao shall hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and then being eligible, offer himself for re-
election.

Following the appointment of Mr. Zhu Hongchao, in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company:

(i) Mr. Tu Jianhua shall retire from office and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company under articles 84(1) & (2); and

(i) Mr. Wong Wun Lam and Mr. Zhu Hongchao who were appointed
under article 83(3) shall hold office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and then being eligible, offer
himself for re-election as well.

(iii)  Mr. Zhu Dajian shall retire from office and he has informed
the Board that he would not offer himself for re-election and
accordingly will retire as Director upon the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Start Expire Duration of contract
R Elp AHEH
Executive Director Qin Yongming 17 July 2017 NA (open contract) NA (open contract)
niTEE L —E—tF TER TEA
tA+tR (FEBREH) (FEBREH)
Tu Jianhua 29 April 2015 28 April 2018 3 years
REE —E-1F —E-N\F =F
mA=t+hB mA=+N\B
Wong Wun Lam 11 October 2017 10 October 2020 3 years
AR —Z-+E+TA+-H ZZ-ZETATA =
Independent Non- Loke Yu 24 June 2016 23 June 2019 3 years
Executive Directors gk —E-RF —E-NF =
BUkHTES NAZTEA ~AZt=H
Zhu Dajian 17 December 2017 16 December 2020 3 years
#HRE —E—tF —Z-ZF =F
+ZA++tAH +=ZA+~A
Qian Liping 24 October 2016 23 October 2019 3 years
BB —ZRE —2-NE =%
+A=+tmA +A=+=8

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any services contract with the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

* Mr. Zhu Dajian will retire upon the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. Mr. Zhu Hongchao was appointed on 18 April 2018. The
duration of Mr. Zhu Hongchao's service contract is 3 years, which commenced on 18
April 2018 and will expire on 17 April 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are set at
on pages 36 to 46.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes
in information required to be disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules after
the publication of the Interim Report 2017 of the Company are set out

below:

Experience including other directorships

(a)

Mr. Tu Jianhua, an executive Director of the Company, was
appointed as the President of Chongging City Industry and
Commerce Federation (E E ™ L) and the President of
Chonging City General Chamber Commerce (EET AR &)
with effect from 7 July 2017.

Mr. Tu Jianhua was appointed as a member of the National
Committee of the 13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference with effect from 24 January 2018.

Mr. Qin Yongming, an executive Director of the Company, was
appointed as CEO of the Company and the Chairman of the
pricing committee of the Company with effect from 11 October
2017.

Mr. Qin Yongming was appointed as the president of USUM
Investment Group Co., Ltd. with effect from 22 January 2018.

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Zhenro Properties Group Limited (Stock
Code: 6158) with effect from 15 December 2017.

Dr. Loke Yu resigned as the company secretary of Minth Group
Limited (Stock Code: 425) with effect from 8 February 2018.
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DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business (including those to which the Company’s
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was a party) in
which a director of the Company or an entity connected with a director
had material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
against liabilities (to the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622)) incurred by him as such Director in the execution of his
duties or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any such director.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs

associated with defending any proceeding which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” on
pages 61 to 62 in this Annual Report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or which subsisted at the end of the
year.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 61 to 62 of this Annual Report, during the year, none of
the Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings, including the maturity profile, currency
and interest rate structure of the Group are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company purchased
a total of 14,586,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange (“Share Repurchase”), all of which have been cancelled.
Details of the purchases are set out as follows:

WE - BEXEEAAT FHES

HE-Z—+tF+-A=+—"HLFE A2
A A B X BT B [B] K R A4 ££14,586,0000% &
R (TROED]) ZEROHEDHEHE-
BOFEHIOT

Number of
shares Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
purchased paid per share paid per share price paid

ENER 28R

Month/Year T/ BERGHAE R E=E gl =i o #EE
April 2017 —E—+tFMA 10,526,000 5.27 3.91 49,553,000
May 2017 —E—+FhHA 4,050,000 4.80 3.34 15,975,000
June 2017 —E—tFNA 10,000 3.74 3.68 37,000

14,586,000

The Board believes that the Share Repurchase reflects the confidence
of the Board and the management team in the long-term strategy
and growth prospects of the Company and considers that the Share
Repurchase is in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole.

Saved as disclosed above, there were no other purchases, sales or

redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. As at 31
December 2017, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$4,511.3 million.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any donations during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2017, the Group's largest supplier accounted for 8.66% (2016:
10.85%) of the total purchases. The five largest suppliers comprised
31.80% (2016: 38.41%) of the total purchases.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were
less than 30% of total revenue in 2017 and 2016.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their respective
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers or five largest customers during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company’s business were entered into or subsisted during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11 January
2017, a number of connected transactions have been entered into
and will continue to be carried out between the Company, members
of the Group and Loncin International Limited (“Loncin International”)
(the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) according to the sales
framework agreement (the “Sales Framework Agreement”) entered
into between the Company and Loncin International on 11 January
2017. Pursuant to the Sales Framework Agreement, Loncin International
shall purchase and the Company shall supply, or shall procure
relevant member(s) of the Group to supply, certain products to Loncin
International for a term commencing from 11 January 2017 and ending
on 31 December 2019.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under
the Sales Framework Agreement for each of the financial years ended/
ending 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 are US$150.0 million,
US$250.0 million and US$350.0 million respectively. The total amount
of the transaction for the year ended 31 December 2017 was US$76.0
million.

Mr. Tu, a Director and controlling shareholder of the Company, holds
98% equity interests in Loncin Group Limited, which in turn holds 98%
equity interests in Loncin Holdings. Loncin International is wholly-owned
by Loncin Holdings. Therefore, Loncin International is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules by virtue of being an
associate of Mr. Tu.

Accordingly, the Sales Framework Agreement constitute a continuing
connected transaction for the Company and was subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 17 February
2017, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company was convened
and the Sales Framework Agreement was duly approved.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Continuing Connected Transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions
have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)
independent third parties;

() in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and

(d)  within the respective cap amounts as disclosed in the previous
announcements in which the relevant Continuing Connected
Transactions were disclosed.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”

Apart from the aforesaid Continuing Connected Transactions, no other
related-party transactions disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements entered into by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2017 constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. The Company confirms
that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the Directors
(except Mr. Tu Jianhua, details as set out below) has interests in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing
Rules:

BEERBRFRFTFWES

RBE-2—+F+=A=+—BILEE:
RIE LR BHREE ORRER LRI
BRI T) R EA KB EE R
PR 5 B R AT ) T R e

Description of businesses of the entity which

Name of entity which businesses are
considered to compete or likely to
compete with the business of the Group
BRARAEEEBBARER
THBRAENXBERER

Name of Director the Group

EEpg

are considered to compete or
likely to compete with the business of

Nature of interest of
the Director in the entity

BREARAREEBBA AT T8
BERAFNEBUASNERNHL

ESRAERNEEME

Mr. Tu Jianhua Chongging USUM Recycling Resources
Development Co., Ltd. (“Chongging

Usum”)

According to the business scope as registered
with the State Administration For Industry
& Commerce of the PRC, this entity may

Substantial Shareholder

engage in, inter alia, recycling, processing,
marketing and sale of recycling resources,
scrap metal related businesses.

ERREBLER
REERAR ([2BEE])

REERE

RERPEERIATREERELHLLR
B uBEEANE (HTeR)BLER B

TERR

BB MIREEZABES-

Although the scope of business of Chongging USUM allows it to
engage in businesses that are considered likely to compete with the
business of the Group, Mr. Tu lJianhua reported to the Board that
Chongging USUM is currently only engaged in the disintegration
of automobile and trading of steel scrap in the PRC, which are not
the same as nor compete with the businesses of the Group. Further,
Chongging USUM has no intention to engage in businesses that
compete with or are likely to compete with the Group's businesses.

The Board and management team of the Company and the above
entity do not overlap with each other and are independent of each
other. Therefore, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
Chongging USUM in which Mr. Tu Jianhua has declared interests.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 23
June 2010 (the "Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme was approved by written resolutions of the shareholders
of the Company and as approved by the listing committee of the Stock
Exchange is valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
23 June 2010. It is a share incentive scheme established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants have
or may have made to the Group. Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, the Board may, as its discretion, offer to grant an option to any
director, employee, advisor, consultant, distributor, contractor, supplier,
customer, agent, business partner, joint venture business partner,
promoter, service provider of any member of the Group.

When the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted on 23 June
2010, the original scheme mandate limit in respect of which share
options could be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was
100,000,000 Shares and it was refreshed during the 2013 extraordinary
general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and in
compliance with the provisions in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules,
the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 161,973,829 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at
17 February 2017, being the date of the 2017 extraordinary general
meeting (“2017 EGM"), when the scheme mandate limit was last
refreshed.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme to eligible participants in any 12 months period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
grant, any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be
subject to the approval of shareholders in a general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not be less than
the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the date of grant; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five trading dates immediately preceding
the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the participant at the time of
making an offer for the grant of share option.

The total number of securities available for issue under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme under the refreshed Scheme mandate limit,
and all other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
161,973,829 shares, representing 10.09% of the total number of
Shares of the Company as at the date of this report.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed from
the date of the scheme limit last refreshed to 31 December 2017 under
the Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, no share options have been granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme since the refreshment of the
Scheme Mandate Limit on 17 February 2017. An offer of the grant of
a share option shall be accepted by the eligible participants within a
period of 28 days from the date of offer of grant of share option. The
consideration paid by each grantee for the acceptance and grant of
each share option is HK$1.00, which has to be paid within 28 days.

There were no options outstanding as at 31 December 2017 and no

share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
Reporting Period.
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REDEMPTION OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 17
January 2012, 1 March 2012, 5 March 2012 and 18 March 2012,
respectively and the circulars dated 8 February 2012 and 11 April
2015, respectively in relation to the issue and the extension of maturity
date by the Company of five-year 4% coupon convertible bonds due
2017 in the aggregate initial principal amount of HK$815,800,000
("Convertible Bonds”).

The Convertible Bonds matured on 1 March 2017 and the Company
redeemed all outstanding Convertible Bonds on the same day. The
aggregate amount paid by the Company for the redemption of all of
the remaining outstanding Convertible Bonds in the initial principal
amount of HK$815,800,000 is approximately HK$115,000,000. All the
certificates of the Convertible Bonds have been cancelled immediately
upon the redemption.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

B R
EEREETHRABREDARLAMEE
WD MBI R ESRA D AWEMH
EERTHEERAR

N-_ZE—tHF+-_A=+—H ARFES
NEBITEABRAR A S A X E
(EER (BHERBERA) (1BFRAEK
Bl 1) EXVER) R - R RESTHES
RRABEREFS KBS GHIE352EET
FE R &M ATt 8RR IR _E AR RIFT &%
TERH EMBEITAZTESETESFIHNRE
SPR([T22SPR ) BRE AR R REBHA
R BIRAT ([EZ]) = ZORE I
™

Long positions in Shares: R WEFE:
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
Total number of (Note 1)
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interested (ERNNEID Y
BEEpA B, REmtE BHERGNROAE S8 ()
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
REERE MEESER 2 #a (B3E 2)
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations (continued)

Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2017, the total number of issued Shares of the Company was
1,605,152,291 Shares.

(2) The 1,008,885,181 Shares were held by USUM Investment Group Hong Kong Limited
("USUMHK"), a company in which Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”) was indirectly interested.
USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Investment Group Limited (“USUM
Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single largest
shareholder of USUM Group is Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Holdings”), with
an equity interest in USUM Group of approximately 42.1%. The remaining equity
interests in USUM Group are held by 22 individuals and 30 companies, all of whom
are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu, and they each hold
between 0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin Holdings is 98%
owned by Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Group”) and 2% owned by Mr. Tu. Loncin
Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms.
Tu Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK held 1,008,885,181 Shares as at
31 December 2017. Therefore, Mr. Tu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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EEERE

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) Em W EE (&)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in FERRRAQRAMRMD RAARER G R
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company 589

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the RIZE—+F+-—A=+—H BREARIES
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, ~ R EZFTBABSN AT ALTRAR AN K&
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in  AERAAR () ¥R BIRIEZE 5 K BB 165155336
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as B FF B Z SR At sre i m AR

follows: UNNE
Long positions in Shares: gl op S
Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company
Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested AR RERRE
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BEREEN BHBES
RREW B EatE IR 1 (HE5E1)
USUM Investment Group Beneficial owner 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
Hong Kong Limited
AEREREE (FE)ERAT EalE (MF5E2)
USUM Investment Group Limited Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
MEREEBRNHER AT REIEGEE 2 (MF5E2)
Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
fEEERERAA REEGER 2 #Ea (Mf5E2)
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
EEEEERAA REEGERZ #a (MF5E2)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%

REESLLE

corporations

REEGER 2B
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions

in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)

Directors’ Report

ER KR ()

EEEWME

FERRAARD TR XKD DS

k%kE (&)

Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested AR RERE
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BEREEN BHABES
RREB B EmtE IR 17 8 (HE3E1)
Tai Security Holding Limited Beneficial owner 98,773,990 (Note 3) 6.15%
Tai Security Holding Limited Em kR (FF3E3)
Good Union Hong Kong Beneficial owner 44,700,000 (Note 4) 2.78%
Investment Limited
BEBBKRAEBRRAA EmRE (MtsE4)
Mr. Zhang Mingjie Interest in controlled 143,473,990 8.94%
corporations (Notes 3 and 4)
SREAZNSE A M ZESER 2 #a (PfF5E3 %2 4)
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Person having a security 92,158,000 5.74%
interest in shares
FRESKREEGREERAR BEEROEFERZ AT
China Construction Bank Person having a security 92,158,000 5.74%
Corporation interest in shares
FEERRITRODBRAA BERMERER 2 AL
Pengda Value Fund SPC (acting for  Beneficial owner 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%
and on behalf of DTC SP)
Pengda Value Fund SPC EmlE (BF5E 5)
(RDTC SPITH)
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) I 2 1 BE ((

)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions FERRAZR QTR0 RIEEER D R
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company Rixm (&)

(continued)

Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested EARD T RAE
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BEREEN BHBES
BRRERB B, kY B3 EH (FFEET)
Cinda Asset Management Interest in controlled 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%
(Cayman) Limited corporations
Cinda Asset Management MEESER 2 #a (HfEES)
(Cayman) Limited
Cinda (BVI) Limited Interest in controlled 97,250,000 6.06%
corporations
Cinda (BVI) Limited MNEEGERE 2
Cinda International Holdings Limited Interest in controlled 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%
corporations
FEBBRZERERAF REZEGER 2 = (FF3ES)
Sinoday Limited Interest in controlled 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%
corporations
Sinoday Limited R ZESER 2 #a (Hf5E5)
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Interest in controlled 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%
Limited corporations
FEEE (BB IEREBRARA REZEGNERE 2w (Hf5ES)
China Cinda Asset Management Interest in controlled 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%

Co., Ltd.* corporations

TEEZEEEEERNARAT RIENEIEZ#ER

* For identification purpose only
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

Q)

)

3)

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of issued Shares of the Company was
1,605,152,291 Shares.

The 1,008,885,181 Shares were held by USUMHK, a company in which Mr. Tu
was indirectly interested in. USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Group, a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single largest shareholder of
USUM Group is Loncin Holdings, with an equity interest in USUM Group of 42.1%.
The remaining equity interests in USUM Group are held by 22 individuals and 30
companies, all of whom are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu,
and they each hold between 0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin
Holdings is 98% owned by Loncin Group and 2% owned by Mr. Tu. Loncin Group
is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms. Tu
Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK held 1,008,885,181 Shares as at 31
December 2017. Therefore, Mr. Tu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.

The 98,773,990 Shares were held by Tai Security Holding Limited (“Tai Security”)
as beneficial owner and Tai Security was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang Mingjie (“Mr.
Zhang") as at 31 December 2017. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares as held by Tai Security pursuant to the SFO.

The 44,700,000 Shares were held by Good Union Hong Kong Investment Limited
("Good Union") as beneficial owner and Good Union was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang
as at 31 December 2017. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares as held by Good Union pursuant to the SFO.

The 97,250,000 Shares were held by Pengda Value Fund SPC (acting for and on
behalf of DTC SP) (“Pengda”) as beneficial owner and Pengda was wholly-owned
by Cinda Asset Management (Cayman) Limited (“Cinda Asset Management”). Cinda
Asset Management was wholly-owned by Cinda (BVI) Limited which was in turn
wholly-owned by Cinda International Holdings Limited (“Cinda International”). Cinda
International was held as to 63% by Sinoday Limited which was wholly-owned by
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited, which was in turn wholly-owned by
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. Therefore, China Cinda Asset Management
Co., Ltd, Cinda International and Cinda Asset Management were deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares as held by Pengda pursuant to the SFO.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
senior management of the Group based on their performance,
experience, and prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent
employees.

The emolument of the Directors is decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company's operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the

g ()
EBRRAR A ARG RAABERG GRS
R%A (#)

B EXHHEN R _T—tF+-_A=+—
B ARARWFHABEEMAL (RRAREER
FEBITRABRIN) RAA B IR0 S AERIAL D
FEBERERES RS RAIEXVERZE2 K3
DEEXIRE FTAB B AR RRIEFES R
HEGHIFE3361B TFEME MR
ERBORE ©

5
FEFENEREEBREAEEESNRE
KBRERBTERENRIFMBRAKRE R
BENESE -

FHEZEESKERANFNREER AKX
RAREBHSBEETEFTNHMH-

ARFCEMBRESFEERABEERE

Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in ~ ERES  HEIF BN AFREC1E62E ©
page 61 to 62 of this Annual Report.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY BAND %,&%ﬁ/\g 2 Fr4E Rl
The remuneration of the Company’s senior management by band for RZ-Z—+F+-_A=+—HEFEEARAm
the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out below: REBABZFHMERIZNT

Number of individuals

AE

Remuneration Band: FEAE R
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 0 7T Z 1,000,000 &t 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 &7t 2 1,500,000 & -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & T2 2,000,000 & T 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 /BT ZE 4,500,000 & JT 1
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME, LOGO, STOCK
SHORT NAME AND WEBSITE

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 24 May 2017, a Certificate of Incorporation
on Change of Name was issued by the Registrar of Companies in the
Cayman Islands on 25 May 2017 and a Certificate of Registration
of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was
issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 12 June 2017
confirming its registration of the new name of the Company “Chiho
Environmental Group Limited B & R{REE B R A" under Part 16 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Accordingly, the English name of the Company had been changed
from “Chiho-Tiande Group Limited” to “Chiho Environmental Group
Limited” and its dual foreign name in Chinese from "B & Xt =B AR
NE"to "BEERREBMARRAR".

FERR

A new Company logo has been adpoted to & Eihn” on 21 June
2017 to reflect the Company’s new name. With effect from 9:00 a.m.
on 23 June 2017, the stock short name for trading in the Shares on the
Stock Exchange has been changed from “CHIHO-TIANDE"” to “CHIHO
ENV” in English and from “Z& X" to "ZA&IRIR" in Chinese. The
stock code of the Company remains unchanged as “976".

The website of the Company has also changed from www.chiho-tiande.
com to www.chihogroup.com with effect from 23 June 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this Annual
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2017 and as at the date of this report.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 303 of the annual
report.

AUDITORS

The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”).
The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte with effect from 16
January 2017. PricewaterhouseCoopers was re-appointed as the auditor
of the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
24 May 2017. The Company's financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. Save for
the above, there were no other changes in the Company’s auditor in
the past three years.

For and on behalf of the Board
Chiho Environmental Group Limited
Qin Yongming

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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INTRODUCTION

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance. The Company believes that an
effective corporate governance practice is fundamental to enhancing
shareholder value and safeguarding the interests of Shareholders and
other stakeholders. The Board sets appropriate policies and implements
corporate government practices appropriate to the conduct and growth
of the Group's business. The code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
"CG Code”) have been adopted to shape the Company's corporate
governance structure. This corporate governance report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 December 2017 under different aspects.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability and is committed to achieving a high standard of
corporate governance. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the CG code and Corporate Governance Report, contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules with exceptions as explained below:

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Qin Yongming currently holds the offices
of chairman (“Chairman”) and chief executive officer (“CEQ") of the
Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman
and CEO in the same person provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies. Accordingly, the
Directors consider that the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the Code is
appropriate in such circumstance.

The Company will, from time to time, review the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance structure and consider whether any
changes, including the separation of the roles of Chairman and CEO,
are necessary.

Corporate
Governance Report
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DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors of the Company. All directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiries made by the Company, that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
the Board comprises three executive Directors (including the Chairman
of the Board) and three independent non-executive Directors, whose
biographical details are set out in the “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” section on page 36 to 46 of this Annual Report, namely:

ERETESFRS

ZAUNCIIRE S AR ib UL =S oo W s
TABEETEFRR 5 2BETH ([1FES
AIDERARRERETEFRR S ZITRT
Al RRRBMER B ESHAR MEEECHE
BRBE_TF+_A=+T—"RILFE
MY —BHETRETRIZHRTE

¥
E=amEN

RAFRTIBANZAERAITAE E5g
MER=BRRTES (BREZSER) =
BRI TE SRR - BEZBEFBEHRN
REREIZI6E [EERaRERAER
Bl —fiN-KEBE:

Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
to the Board as Director
Name of Director BREZEMA E-rESEER
EEpA EsgxAH REZZHES
Executive Director HITES
Qin Yongming (Chairman of the Board) kA (EEEEF) 30 June 2016 24 May 2017
—E-REF —E—tF
~A=+H AAZ+IH
Tu Jianhua IR 29 April 2015 15 May 2015
—ET-RF —E-h%F
mAZ=+h AA+HA
Wong Wun Lam = IATR 11 October 2017 N/A
—ET—+F @
+A+—H
Independent Non-Executive Director BUFHTES
Loke Yu e g R 23 June 2010 24 May 2017
—E-ZF —E—+F
NAZ+T=R AAZ+H
Zhu Dajian N 17 December 2014 15 June 2016
—E—MF —E-RF
+ZA++H NATEHEA
Qian Liping Y 24 October 2016 24 May 2017
TE-RF Tt
+A=-+mH AAZ=+MA
* Mr. Zhu Hongchao was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 18 * KEBELDR - ZE— N\ENA+/ \BEEITA
April 2018. BAIEITES-
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition of the Board (continued)

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any
other Director and chief executive.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to discuss the overall strategies as well as operational and financial
performances of the Group. Certain matters are reserved for decisions
by the Board, including matters relating to: (i) the formulation of the
Group’s overall strategy and directions; (ii) any material conflict of
interest of substantial Shareholders of the Company or Directors; (iii)
approval of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results
and other significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes
to the Company’s capital structure; and (v) major appointments to
the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Group and implementation and
execution of policies and strategies decided by the Board to the
executive Directors and management of the Company.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including risk management, internal controls, those under D.3.1
of the Corporate Governance Code and relevant compliance issues
relating to the business operation of the Group.

The Board reviews and monitors the training and continuous
professional developments of directors and senior managers; develops,
reviews and monitors the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. All Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices

All Directors have been given sufficient time and support to understand
the affairs of the Group and they have full and timely access to all
relevant information regarding the Group's affairs and have unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary (“the
Company Secretary”). The Directors may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 28 Board meetings and
2 general meetings of the Company were held. The meetings are
structured to allow open discussion. At the board meetings, the
Directors participated in discussing the strategies, operational and
financial performance, corporate governance policy and internal control
of the Group.

Set out below is the attendance of the Directors at the Board and
general meetings held during the year:

ES (#&)

EE2SBENESEEER
PREEBECHHEHERELETE EREAEE
=R FERAERNEREBEUAEEESH
BBz — Y ] - se &S 2 Al
E([REWE]) 2EZLRB M AZEMR
Hl- EEEBITRE RS SR B HE
ER BRAAARQREIE-

i

—+tF+-A=t+—BHLFEY
28/A§$EEH§&Z/}\Z’S G EPN
Lo EENmE T 75A§$E
CEEHELHENRAEE K &
ERVERE  DEERBERARRENE %\J

1}@ b
y

e

Bk
I_r

fgi 1 1 D X
;E;

EEHERAFERTZESFESA MR
REHIBERTIELT -

No. of meeting attend/ Eligible to attend
BHE/RERLESERY

Regular General
Name of Director Board Meeting Meeting
EEpg 883 BRRAE
Executive Director YTES
Qin Yongming FkH 28/28 212
Tu Jianhua REE 28128 22
Wong Wun Lam HRR 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 11 October 2017) (RZE—tE+AT—HEZT)
Zhu Patrick Xiangdong x ﬁﬁﬁ 23124 171
(appointed on 7 April 2017 and (RZZ—tENA+REZAR
resigned on 11 October 2017) EG,T tﬁﬂ'ﬂ +—HET)
Liu Huaiyu AEF 1/4 171
(resigned on 7 April 2017) (R=—Z—+FMWALHET)
Independent Non-Executive Director BUFHTES
Loke Yu FE A 28/28 22
Zhu Dajian FRE 26/28 212
Qian Liping BEY 28/28 22
Zhu Hongchao (appointed on 18 April 2018) Kt# (RZE-N\EWNATN\BEZE) 0/0 0/0
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices (continued)

The Company Secretary or the staff of the company secretarial
department of the Company prepared and kept detailed minutes of
each Board meeting and, within a reasonable time after each meeting,
the draft minutes were circulated to all Directors for comment and the
final and approved version of the minutes were sent to all Directors
for their records. The same practices and procedures as used in the
Board meetings had also been adopted and followed for the Board
committees meetings. All the minutes of the meetings recorded
sufficient details of the matters considered and decision reached are
available for inspection by the Directors at anytime.

Notices of Board meetings were given to the Directors at least 14 days
prior to the date of the relevant meeting. Briefing papers were prepared
for all substantive agenda items and were circulated to the Directors
at least 3 days before each Board meeting. The company secretary is
responsible for providing accurate, timely and clear information to the
Directors prior to the Board meetings so as to ensure that the Directors
are able to make informed decisions regarding the matters to be
discussed in the meeting.

If any of the Directors has a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, such Director(s) shall abstain
from voting in relation to that particular matter. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest in such matters would
be present at the Board meetings to deal with such conflict of interest
issues.

Access to sufficient information of the Group

The management is committed to providing the Board with appropriate
and sufficient explanation and information of the Group’s affairs
through financial reports, business and operational reports and budget
statements, in a timely manner, to enable them to make informed
decisions.

The Directors are also provided with access to the Group’s management
and Company Secretary at all times to obtain relevant information for
carrying out their duties as Directors of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, since the
resignation of Mr. Tu Jianhua as Chairman has been effected on 17 July
2017, the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Qin Yongming, has taken up the
role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer simultaneously.

Mr. Qin Yongming is responsible for providing leadership of the Board
and ensuring that all Directors are properly informed on issues to be
discussed at Board meetings. In addition, he is responsible for ensuring
that all Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate, complete and
reliable information in relation to the Group’s affairs. The Chairman
also encourages Directors to actively participate in and to make a full
contribution to the Board so that the Board functions effectively and
acts in the best interest of the Company.

Mr. Qin Yongming is also responsible for the strategic planning,
administration and management of the business of the Group. He is
also responsible for the formulation and successful implementation
of Group policies and assuming full accountability to the Board for
all operations of the Group. Mr. Qin Yongming oversees the Group’s
compliance and internal control matters and maintains an ongoing
dialogue with the Chairman and all Directors to keep them fully
informed of all major business developments and issues. He has also
been focusing on strategic planning and assessment of mergers and
acquisitions opportunities for the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors were appointed for term of
three years. None of them hold any other offices in the Company or
any its subsidiaries or is interested in any Shares of the Company under
their respective letter of appointment. In the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings held during the year, constructive views and
comments are given from the independent non-executive Directors,
who have provided their independent judgment on the issues relating
to the strategy, performance, conflict of interest and management
process of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were three
independent non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. Among the three independent non-executive
Directors, one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications
in accounting or related financial management expertise as required by
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Director a written confirmation of his independence and the Board
considers all of them, namely Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Zhu Dajian and Ms. Qian
Liping, to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

On 7 April 2017, Mr. Liu Huaiyu resigned as the company secretary of
the Company. Ms. So Lai Shan and Mr. Koon Wai Hung (“Mr. Koon")
were appointed as the joint company secretaries of the Company on
the same day.

On 5 December 2017, Ms. So Lai Shan resigned as the joint company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Koon remains as the company secretary
of the Company and continues to perform and discharge the duties of a
company secretary under the Listing Rules.

Mr. Koon plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring
efficient and effective information flow within the Board and that the
Board's policy and procedures are followed.

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. All Directors may access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary who regularly updates
the Board on governance and regulatory matters and facilitate the
induction and professional development of the Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures
of the Board meetings are observed and providing the Board opinions
on matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures of the
Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company Secretary
had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is fully involved in the selection and appointment of the
Company Secretary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
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To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has EFERNEEELZEE (NTEET FX
delegated specific functions to six Board committees, namely ZEE RELZE® FHEEE BKHERK
the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination ZBZEG@MTEBZE®)ZRIETRE Ui
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Strategy and Investment ~ BIE E&#ITRIS  FFIEH N T :
Committee and the Pricing Committee, details of which are as follows:
Strategy and
Executive Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Investment Pricing
Name of Director Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
B
EEpE UTEER ENZEE REZEE FMzEE REZEE EEZEE"
Executive Director YTES
Tu Jianhua REE M M
Qin Yongming EE: C C C C
Wong Wun Lam (appointed on ~ ERF (A= —+F M M M
11 October 2017) TA+- El%é&)
Independent Non- BYFHTES
Executive Director
Loke Yu e K C M M
Zhu Dajian N M M M
Qian Liping BB M M M
* C - Chairman * C-F/&
M — Member M- K&
* Mr. Zhu Hongchao was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a * KEBEER-_ZT—N\FOA+/\BREZEEARAE
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the Company on REABULIDTESTURERZEGRIERZE
18 April 2018. He was also appointed as the chairman of the remuneration committee EXE WTHREABEZEARTHEEGERE -
on the same day.
# Other members of the pricing committee are certain senior management of the # TEZEGHMKEBEARARETAREBAE -

Company.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Executive Committee in March 2011 with
written terms of reference, which is responsible for the management
and administration of the business of the Company and any matters
which are within the ordinary course of the Company’s business under
the control and supervision of the Board and in accordance with the
provisions of the terms of reference of the Executive Committee for
ensuring a high standard of corporate governance and compliance
of the Company. The written terms of reference of the Executive
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange's website and the
Company's website.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board delegated certain corporate governance functions to the
Executive Committee, which develops and reviews the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
recommendations to the Board; reviews and monitors (i) the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company; (i) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and (iii) the code of conduct and Model Code applicable
to the Directors or employees.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director is provided with a comprehensive
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and
regulations.

Development and training of Directors is an ongoing process so that
they can perform their duties appropriately. During the year ended 31
December 2017, all Directors are provided with regular updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition,
all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that they continue to make contribution to the Board in an
informed and relevant manner. The Company updates Directors on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development
(continued)

The training received by the Directors during the year ended 31
December 2017 is summarized as follows:

HITERES (B)

EERIREXRER (H)

EENBE_T—tHF+-A=t—HLLF
B E 2B EN T

Directors Types of training
5= EINE R
Tu Jianhua IR B
Qin Yongming Z= KA B
Wong Wun Lam (appointed on 11 October 2017) ®&&EF (R -_T—+F+A+—BEZET) B
Loke Yu e g AR AB
Zhu Dajian AR AB
Qian Liping 23-p=a A,B
Zhu Patrick Xiangdong (appointed on 7 April 2017 KAE (R-Z—+tFNMALtAEZT R
and resigned on 11 October 2017) RZZT—+tF+A+—BET) -
Liu Huaiyu (resigned on 7 April 2017) AEF (RZE—LFEMNWALHEHT) -
A - attending seminars/conferences/forums/briefings/workshops relevant to the business A - PEEERRESRBAARZ TS ERES
or director’s duties W ENE TS
B — reading articles relevant to corporate governance, regulatory updates and directors’ B -BIENEMCRER KMEEATAETRALE
duties and responsibilities MR Z T

* Mr. Zhu Hongchao was appointed as a member on 18 April 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in June 2010 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee on 15 December 2015,
which has included changes in line with the amendments to the Main
Board Listing Rules relating to the risk management and internal
control section of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report which has come into effect for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The written terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are available on the Stock Exchange's website
and the Company's website. The Audit Committee has established a
whistleblowing policy of the Company in December 2012 and set out
the procedures on reporting possible improprieties in financial reporting
matters of the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs
and budget) and risk management as delegated by the Board, and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
engagement of the external auditor for the audit and non-audit
services. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.

Members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each member
are as follows:
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Role in Meetings Attended/

Name of Director Position Audit Committee Eligible to Attend
BiliEgE/

Ex=pg B EEREEEZH REREERE

Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Chairman 3/3

e g At BUFRITES £

Zhu Dajian Independent non-executive Director Member 313

#HRE BUFNTES &

Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member 3/3

=3 epea BUFRTESR 8

* Mr. Zhu Hongchao was appointed as a member on 18 April 2018. * KEBEER-_ZT—N\FOA+/\BREEERK

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the management the annual results, interim results and
related announcement including the disclosures, financial reporting and
the accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to the submission
to the Board’s approval; discussed with management on significant
judgments affecting Group’s consolidated financial statements and
approved the appointment of auditor; reviewed and discussed the
internal control report; reviewed and assessed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’ internal control and risk management;
and reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness during the audit process.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a
going concern basis. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company'’s
annual results and consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment in annual/
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had engaged the
Group’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), to provide
the following services and their respective fees charged are set out as
below:

BZ%ZEE (HE)
FEEEMANAGE 2 LRGN R
HALEH R RIEARRAENE

ZEGDERAARRNE T tF

T-RALFEZEFREREAM
SHmK EERBEELEETAYEFRHH
BE BEGRENAEREGYBRERE
Tl AWk EEZ A - EEATHERR
ERAIFERELER 2 ERNTRABAREE - A sEfE
ARRFEREZRNRINERNGH -

S+ o S
B
¢

+i
S m

H

BT B
ABE-F—tE+-A=+—AILEE
AEERARSAAGERH BB (B
R A SR SN BB - B R G IRA
RABBEAMT

2017
—E—tF
HK$M
BHEET

Type of services PR #5385l
Audit services EE RS 20.9
Non-audit services (Note) FEFET ARG (FIE) 19.9
Total Bt 40.8

Note: Mainly related to the advisory services provided on the restructuring and refinancing of
Scholz Group which was included in the legal and professional expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had also engaged
other auditors to provide audit services and non-audit services to
certain subsidiaries of the Group and the aggregated fees charged were
HK$1.7 million and HK$0.4 million respectively.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
Board’s Responsibilities for the Accounts

The Board is responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period, which gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.
In preparing these accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow for that period. The Directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with all appropriate
accounting standards and requirements and reflect amounts that are
based on the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent
judgment of the Board and the management. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 110 of this
Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control procedures of the Group and nominating and
monitoring external auditors. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in June 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set
of the revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on
15 August 2013. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company's website.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include:

1. formulating nomination policy for consideration of the Board and
implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

2. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company'’s corporate strategy; and

3. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Qin Yongming,
Executive Director, and Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Zhu Dajian and Ms. Qian
Liping, Independent Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired by Mr. Qin
Yongming.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee convened three meetings during the year
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REZEERBE-T—LFT-A=+—
%3

ended 31 December 2017 with the attendance of each member as HIEFERHEXBR=ZREHE SKHEHENT :
follows:
Role in Meetings
Nomination Attended/
Name of Directors Position Committee  Eligible to Attend
B:4-¢ V4
EEpg B EREEEEZHE REREERE
Qin Yongming (appointed on 17 July 2017) Executive Director Chairman 17
FXR(RZE—tFELATHAEZME) HTES TR
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Member 3/3
Fe g BUFRITESR mEa
Zhu Dajian Independent non-executive Director Member 313
#RE BUFNTES &
Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member 3/3
j23: pea BUFRITES 8
Tu Jianhua (resigned on 17 July 2017) Executive Director Chairman 3/3
REE(RZZ—tFLATHAEE) HTESE IE
* Mr. Zhu Hongchao was appointed as a member on 18 April 2018. * KEBEER-_ZT—N\FOA+\BRBZEERK

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the composition, size and
structure of the Board, the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, re-election of Directors and appointment of Mr.
Qin Yongming, Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong and Mr. Wong Wun Lam
as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director respectively.

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will
propose the candidates to the Nomination Committee, which will
review and make recommendation to the Board on the expertise, skills
and experience of the candidates appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company.

The composition of the Board has a significant element of diversity,
in terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and
gender.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company has established a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 15 August 2013 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Nomination Committee considered the age, education background and
working experience of the candidates when selecting the executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in June 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Stock Exchange's website
and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all directors and senior
management of the Company, and the remuneration packages for all
executive directors and senior management of the Company.

The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic salary,
allowance and discretionary bonus.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration Committee
takes into account performance, contribution and responsibilities of the
individual. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors and employees
are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account
factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual’s
performance during the year.

The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of
executive Directors and senior management.
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Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
E2c B 40 KRS
Basic salary To reflect the market value of Cash payment monthly Reviewed annually

each individual with market trend
EX%e REMEEAZTISEE FRABESMNR BFETSBYELRE
Allowance To attract and retain employees Reimbursement Market conditions
==Bh Wal RRE RS wE M5 ER

Discretionary
performance bonus

To motivate employees to deliver
high levels of performance of
the Company and individual
performance goals

15 RIBIELL HENEE RARFHEL R/KER
RIBARZERBEARIRBIZ

BE2R

Cash payment

— Individual performance

- Company performance
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued) YMEEE (8)
The following table shows the breakdown of the Directors’ TRIIFEFHE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2017: BIEFE &5 BED -
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
BARER
Be  HEREE KRR AR 2 EF @t
(Note (a))
(M)
Year Ended 31 December 2017: BE-E-tE+t-A=t-HLEE:
Executive Directors BES
Mr. Tu Jianhua RBERE - 20 23 - - 43
Mr. Qin Yongming FABEE - 44 28 - - 75
Mr. Wong Wun Lam BRRRE
(appointed on 11 October 2017) (RZF—tF
TA+-HEZHE) - 0.6 0.5 - - 11
Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong (appointed on KRREE
7 April 2017 and resigned on (RZF—tF
11 October 2017) MALREZAR
RZE—+E+AT-H
BHE) - 12 - - 04 16
Mr. Liu Huaiyu (resigned on 7 April 2017) ARTiL
(RZZ—t%
WA+ REfL) - 05 - - 02 0.7
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFYTES
Dr. Loke Yu EEMEL 02 - - - - 02
Mr. Zhu Dajian ERBRAE 0.2 - - - - 02
Ms. Qian Liping BESRT 02 - - - - 0.2

Note a:  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company paid retirement benefits ~ fiita: HE-Z—tF+-A=+—HLFE ARA

to Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Qin Yongming, Mr. Liu Huaiyu, Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong DRIFREE A FokALAE  BlEFEAE -
and Mr. Wong Wun Lam with HK$18,000, HK$18,000, HK$6,000, HK$10,500 R A 3R 5 A R B A AR S A 32 R IR A 7118,0007%
and HK$4,500 respectively (2016:HK$18,000, HK$10,000, HK$5,000, HK$Nil and 7T+ 18,000/ 7T + 6,000/ 7T * 10,500/% 7T 24,500
HKS$Nil respectively) I (ZZ—7RF : 5 5418,000/ 7T * 10,0007

75,0008 FETREET)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings. The Remuneration Committee
determined the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors’,
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of directors
and assessed the performance of the executive Directors. Members of
the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of each member are
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as follows:
Role in Meetings
Remuneration Attended/
Name of Director Position Committee  Eligible to Attend
EFEMEES BiHiEEE/
EEpng B 2B RERLERE
Mr. Zhu Dajian Independent non-executive Director Member 2/3
FRERE BUFRTESR %8
Dr. Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Member 3/3
gL BUFNTES &
Ms. Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member 3/3
BB L BUFRITES B8
* Mr. Zhu Hongchao was appointed as the chairman on 18 April 2018. * KHEBEER-FT—)/\FOA+N\BEZEEAE
}_}% °
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration MREBZE_Z—+tF+_A=+—HILFEE
Committee has discussed and recommended to the Board for approval ~ EXHifH - M?EQEJ REFEEgitE

of the Directors’ and senior managements’ remuneration of the Group
for the year of 2017, the service contracts and remuneration for
the appointment of Mr. Qin Yongming, Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong
and Mr. Wong Wun Lam as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director respectively, the bonus
payments to the Directors and senior management, and the renewal
of service contracts of Mr. Zhu Dajian, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, and senior management of the Company in
2017.
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

In order to cope with the Group’s development needs, enhance
scientific planning and decision-making, promote the effectiveness
of material investment decision-makings and improve the corporate
governance structure of the Group, the Company established the
Strategy and Investment Committee in December 2015. The written
terms of reference of the Strategy and Investment Committee have
been subsequently adopted on 2 February 2016 and are available on
the Company's website.

The duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee include the
following aspects:

(i) to act as a delegate for the Board generally;

(i) to make decisions and pass resolutions, and to exercise all powers
of the Board on all matters of the Company in relation to its daily
operations and investment activities, including any non-connected
transaction if the applicable percentage ratios calculated under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules less than 5%; and

(ili)  to make recommendations to the Board concerning matters
of corporate significance not otherwise dealt by any other
committees of the Board, recommendations must be submitted
to the Board for approval in respect of all transactions if the
applicable percentage ratios calculated under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules equal to or are more than 5%.

The Strategy and Investment Committee currently consists of Mr. Qin
Yongming, Mr. Tu lJianhua, Mr. Wong Wun Lam, and Mr. Goh Kian
Guan and is chaired by Mr. Qin Yongming. Mr. Liu Huaiyu resigned and
ceased to be a member of the Strategy and Investment Committee on 7
April 2017. Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong was appointed as a member of
the Strategy and Investment Committee on 7 April 2017 and resigned
and ceased to be a member of the Strategy and Investment Committee
on 11 October 2017. Mr. Tu Jianhua resigned as the chairman and
ceased to be a member of the Strategy and Investment Committee on
17 July 2017. Mr. Qin Yongming was appointed as the chairman of
the Strategy and Investment Committee on 17 July 2017. Mr. Wong
Wun Lam was appointed as a member of the Strategy and Investment
Committee on 11 October 2017.
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TEERRE

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE -_= —‘tiiﬂﬁ HIEELZE g%
MEETINGS ATTENDANCE 2017 ZHEFIE
Role in
Strategy and Meetings
Investment Attended/
Name of Committee members Position Committee  Eligible to Attend
ERMRRE [BF:)-3-+ V4
ZERZEHE B ZEECHE RERLHERY
Qin Yongming (appointed on 17 July 2017) Executive Director Chairman "
FXB(RZZE—+F+AT+HEZHA) HiTEE £33
Wong Wun Lam (appointed on 11 October 2017) Executive Director Member 0/0
BEAR(RZZ—tFE+AT—REZAE) HITEE 8
Goh Kian Guan Chief Investment Officer Member 01
RER BRERERE 8
Tu Jianhua (resigned on 17 July 2017) Executive Director Chairman "
REE(RZZ—tFLATHREHE) HiTEE £
Zhu Patrick Xiangdong (appointed on 7 April 2017 and Executive Director Member 0/0
resigned on 11 October 2017)
KAR(R_E—+FNA+BEZET HTES &
RZE—tFTA+—HEHT)
Liu Huaiyu (resigned on 7 April 2017) Executive Director Member "
BEF (R_E—tFNALAET) HiTEE &
PRICING COMMITTEE EEZE®
The Company established the Pricing Committee in June 2010 to review ARRER_Z—ZFARUEBZEE
and determine the offer and selling prices of the Group's physical EBEBEZEHRETAEESGHZREEARE
stock, the Group's inventory level and hedging positions requirements — HIf& - RAEEHFE 7}<$LA&1EI£FHE§§LE'J
on a daily basis; to enhance the risk management of commodity price 23X MRS EmERKBHRELER - I

fluctuations and to ensure an effective risk monitoring system. The
Pricing Committee currently comprises Mr. Qin Yongming, Mr. Wong
Wun Lam, Mr. William Thomas Bird and Mr. Udo Langhans and is
chaired by Mr. Qin Yongming.

BREBERZFENRE - EEZESREE
FEROKRFSAE | SL A - William Thomas
Birdst & & Udo Langhans?t 4 - 17 F & 7k B 5E
EETER-
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TEERRE

PRICING COMMITTEE (continued)

The Pricing Committee convened one meetings during the year ended

31 December 2017 with the attendance of each member as follows:

FTEZEZ (&)
RBE-—T—+F+-_A=+—HIEFE T
BELEeHARA—RgR SHEHFENOT:

Role in Meetings Attended/

Name of Committee members Position Pricing Committee  Eligible to Attend
EEEZES BHEER/

ZERZENE B e REREERE

Qin Yongming (appointed on 11 October 2017) Executive Director Chairman 0/0

FXR(RZE—tETAT-REZM) HITEZ £

Wong Wun Lam (appointed on 28 August 2017) Executive Director Member 0/0

AR (RZE—tENAZT\BEZHE) HITER &

William Thomas Bird (appointed on 4 January 2018) Chief Operating Officer Member 0/0

William Thomas Bird (R =F—/\F— AN AEZE) BER2ER K8

Udo Langhans (appointed on 4 January 2018) Member 0/0

Udo Langhans (R=E—NE—- AMBEZE) &

Zhu Patrick Xiangdong (resigned on 11 October 2017) Executive Director Chairman "

KAR(RZE—tF+AT—HEH) HITEE £

Goh Kian Guan (resigned on 4 January 2018) Chief Investment Officer Member "

RER(RZZ-NF-AMBEFT) BERREE &

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Pricing Committee REE-ZE—+tF+-A=+—-HBHIFE"

has reviewed the Group’s monthly physical stock price and commodities FEZESGCEHNAEETAREERLE

transactions. The Pricing Committee held review meetings with the mXH - N_T—+F TELZEQHEFE

Board of Directors in 2017 to review and discuss the Pricing Committee BITEZGZ UEHLIREEZESH

Report. In the review meetings, the Pricing Committee and the Board %ﬁé ZEET TEZEGKEFEZEEE

of Directors reviewed and discussed the Group’s commodity future BIRFWAEENR —"T—t+FEFEHNEmMm

contracts’ exposure level, the corresponding procurement and inventory

management strategy of each quarter in 2017, and reviewed the

Group'’s Policy regarding dealings in metal futures contracts.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board and management

The Board is responsible for overseeing and ensuring the Group
has established and maintained an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems where management is
responsible for the design and implementation of the risk management
and internal control systems.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to assist the Group in meeting its strategic objectives. The Company
leverages on the expertise offered by internal and external professionals
to develop its internal control system, which includes a well-established
corporate structure and an organisation with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and authority.

The Group’s risk management framework includes the following key
elements:

- identify significant risks in the Group's operation environment and
evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group’s business;

- develop necessary measures to manage those risks;
- monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The implementation of the Group's risk management framework was
assisted by management, the Group’s Pricing Committee, Strategy
and Investment Committee and Internal Audit Department. These
framework and setup enables the Group to ensure any new and
emerging risk relevant to the Group’s operation is promptly identified
and managed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Pricing Committee

The Pricing Committee which, as referred to earlier in this report,
comprises the Group's executive Directors and senior management
with appropriate qualifications and experiences, has been established
and delegated with the operations of the Group's policy regarding
dealings in metal futures contracts (the “Policy”). It determines the
range of metal futures contracts that the Group may enter into during
the month. On a daily basis, the Pricing Committee reviews the open
positions of the Group and determines (i) the offer and sell price of our
physical stock and our hedging requirements; and (ii) the quantity and
the price of the metal futures contracts that the Group is going to buy
or sell.

The Board receives a report from the Pricing Committee on the Group'’s
metal futures activities carried out. Should the Pricing Committee
determine that any positions are to be taken, it must inform the Board
and provide supporting reasons in its report. In addition, the Company's
finance department assesses and reports to the Board on the open
positions of the Group based on the Group's cash position.

In the event the report from the Company's finance department
demonstrates that the Group is not in strict compliance with the
hedging limit and the daily limit, the Group will put in place and
implement a plan to decrease the open positions of the Group within a
reasonable time in order to comply with the limits.

Following a review of the current business operations, internal controls,
risk management and policies and practices regarding dealings in metal
futures contracts of the Group, on 7 March 2018, the Board adopted a
commodity price risk hedging policy which the Board believes is more
suitable for the current operating conditions of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Strategy and Investment Committee

The Company established the Strategy and Investment Committee on
21 December 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The principal functions and responsibilities of the Strategy and
Investment Committee are to (i) study on the development strategies
and planning; and (ii) advise on the decision-makings on material
investments and capital operation of the Company.

Notwithstanding that the Strategy and Investment Committee is
entitled to exercise all powers of the Board on all matters of the
Company in relation to its daily operations and investment activities,
recommendations must be submitted to the Board for approval for
all transactions with a percentage ratio equal to or higher than 5%
according to the testing result of the Stock Exchange.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Department is to provide independent
assurance to the Board and executive management on the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal controls for the
Group. The Group's Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-and-
control based audit approach. The annual work plan of the Group's
Internal Audit Department covers major activities and processes of
the Group’s business units whilst audit plan is reviewed and agreed
by the Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of
work, the Group's Internal Audit Department conducts other review
and investigative work as may be required. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee and key members of executive
and senior management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for
proper implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
executive and senior management periodically. The risk management
and internal control system of the Group is reviewed and assessed
on an on-going basis by the Executive Directors, and will be further
reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the Audit Committee
and the Board.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2017, covering the
material financial, operational and compliance controls, and considered
the Group's risk management and internal control systems effective and
adequate.

The Audit Committee has also annually reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications, experience and training programs of the
Group's internal audit staff and accounting and financial reporting
staff and considered that the staffing is adequate and the staffs are
competent to carry out their roles and responsibilities.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) in March 2012 for
setting out the policies, communication strategies and practices of the
Company for communication with its shareholders. The Shareholders’
Communication Policy enables the shareholders (the “Shareholders”)
of the Company to obtain comprehensive and plain information of
the Company, to exercise their powers on an informed basis and to
strengthen their communication with the Company.

The Company has established and maintained a dialogue with
Shareholders by conveying information to the Shareholders and
investors through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
reports); annual general meeting and other meetings that may be held;
and all the information submitted to the Stock Exchange for disclosure,
as well as corporate communications and other publications which shall
be posted on the website of the Company.

The Company undertakes to convey information to the Shareholders
and investors in a timely and effective manner at all times. If there are
any questions about the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, it shall be
delivered to the Company Secretary or the Head of Investor Relations
Department of the Company.
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EERERRE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Shareholders general enquiries
Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to

the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Procedures for putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time forward enquires to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as
follows:

The Company Secretary

48 Wang Lok Street

Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587 7799
Email Address: cosec@chihogroup.com
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company
("Articles of Association”), the Listing Rules and the applicable laws
and regulations, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the following procedures:

1. One or more Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the Requisitionist(s)”) may require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (an
"EGM") by depositing a written requisition (the “Requisition”) at
the registered office of the Company at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and a copy thereof at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or
the Company Secretary.

2. The Requisition must clearly state the name(s) and shareholding in
the Company of the Requisitionist(s), specify the purposes of the
EGM and the details of the business proposed to be transacted in
the EGM and be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
the Requisitionists.

3. Upon receipt of the Requisition, the Directors shall verify the
Requisition with the Company’s branch share registrar and upon
this confirmation that the Requisition is proper and in order, shall
forthwith proceed duly to convene the EGM, and such EGM
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of the
Requisition.

4. If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date
of the deposit of the Requisition proceed duly to convene the
EGM, the Requisitionist(s), may himself or themselves convene the
EGM in the same manner and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings (continued)

5. Under the Articles of Association and pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, a notice specifying the time
and place and the general nature of the proposed business to be
transacted at the EGM shall be given to all Shareholders entitled
to attend the EGM for consideration in the following manner:

(i)  notice of not less than 21 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, if a special resolution is to be
passed at the EGM; and

(i) notice of not less than 14 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, in all other cases, provided
that a EGM may be called by a shorter notice if it is so
agreed by a majority in number of the Shareholders having
the right to attend and vote at the EGM, being a majority
together holding not less than 95% in nominal value of the
issued shares of the Company giving such right.

The notice period is exclusive of (i) the day on which the notice
is served or deemed to be served; and (ii) the day on which the
EGM is to be held.

Procedures for Shareholders to Make Proposals at
General Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws and regulations, Shareholders may
propose a resolution at general meetings of the Company by following
the "Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” to
convene an extraordinary general meeting and propose a resolution
to be resolved at that extraordinary general meeting. Please refer to
the document titled “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings” on the Company’s website.

Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2017

BRAER (48)
BRABERAAGZREF (4)

5. RESBAMEETRAUNZEE —H
AR RN ERRSRAE
BRI 2 BIEZ —RILE 2 B EERIRIA
THAAMBEEREFEBRRERIRNE 2
PRERE M

() HBRBERERAE LEBE R
RER BABHTLR21ER
FI0ATBEXAMNBES (AR
RERE) R

iy MREABHEAMBERT AL
RI4EBESRI0ATELE X BB
E(URREAE) HWEKXKS
HEREFERRERFINAGTRE
FERERIBR (ZRAZEE
RERBBTLORE FZERNZ
RRATEEITRMD ZEEIS%)
BEE AT ASESENES FH
B ERAFRIRG o

BE T BRR()RE R EHRE R KE
20 RMBTBRREIAEGER -

BRERABRRAELREZEBZEF

RBABEZAANOGE EHRANRERE
PIRSER  BRATER [BRREARRAGZ
BFIRARBBRRAE LIR2RER LB
FRIRRENAE ME2RRRRENAE L
REBHRFBR - BRERRR R [IRIRAFH
BRAG 2T —ER XX Mo



SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing Rules
and the applicable laws and regulations, the Company may from time
to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to be
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director.

1. Shareholder(s) may propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at general meeting in accordance with the
following procedures:

(@ a Shareholder or a group of Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may requisition an extraordinary general meeting
to propose the Candidate to be elected as a Director in
the manner provided in “Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene General Meetings”; or

(b)  Election of directors whether by rotation or otherwise in
the place of those retiring would be considered ordinary
business at an annual general meeting of the Company (the
"AGM") and if the notice of an AGM includes the election
of Directors, any Shareholder may propose the election of
any person as a Director at the AGM;

Provided that, in each case, no Candidate other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless:

(i)  a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such Candidate for election; and

Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

R RAEF (48)
BRARZEHE-BALRESZRF

RIBEMERZARG - ETAR RIS E AR
FER AR BRI AR RA S BB EBA
BRENTMATRRES NEMRRZ
HIERFIEESE -

1. BEARBATEFIRREAE L&
HE-ZAL(MREARES:

() BWATIRERTENNARG
BRAE LREZARRBRK
AtH2—H—R2RZHBERA
ERBEFHIARER R EH
BRERERAGZEFIMBREZTR
EREEREARESR X

() RARFRBRFBAFAE ([BRE
FREDLBRBESR TwEBR
WEHAEMTARREREZE
F BRRR—REBRMAER
BEAGBREEEEREE (£
MERARERBFASG LiEZ
HEEMALRES:

REBRT MRIEREEHEESRE T
AIREERRRAE LRES BER
BAREBRRNERABRRAG L2E K
e

() AEARBERHFEARSULURNE
RRZBEER (BRSEALIN R
ERE EXAZBERALBRE
ABEZEM: R

ESBREEEREAT —E-—tE£% 103



Corporate Governance Report

TEERME

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued) IR ERRER ()

1. (continued) 1. (%)
(i) a notice signed by the Candidate of his willingness to be iy HEEAFERTHEELEZA

elected, &

shall have been lodged to the Company at its principal place REERRAgRERAMEDERT
of business in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long MARETERZBERANGEERITAY
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong within the period of at least seven A RERZBBRN  ZE2AXRFTE
(7) days commencing on the day after the despatch of the notice BEEEEME I ARB TR
of the general meeting and ending no later than seven (7) days YRR R4S ) o

prior to the date appointed for such general meeting.

2. In addition, the notice must contain the information as specified 2.  Ut5N ZBEABE EHHAIE13.512)
EA

in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules about the Candidate, EAEEREREACER  BEETR

including but not limited to the following: RATAR :

(i) full name; i =%

(i) age; (i) Fhe

(i) business and residence addresses; (i) FEERJEE AL

(iv)  principal occupation or employment; (v) FEBEXZEIE:

(v)  experience including (a) other directorships held in the v) KB BE@QBA=-FNHE
last three years in public companies the securities of EEBXEIMEMWEBESFME L
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or MZARRBEEZHMES
overseas, and (b) the major appointments and professional B - ROEENFmEREES
qualifications; and B R

(vi) interests in shares of the Company within the meaning of (vi) T—ir'ﬁzl—‘”ﬂZHWﬁ%\_‘ (ExER
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 576 BHERHAEEMEXVE (BBE
of the Laws of Hong Kong). 1§‘J%576§) ) e
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no change in the
Company's constitutional documents.

CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board strives to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders of the Company. Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and
vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to attend
the meetings. The process of the Company's general meeting are
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes
will be made to ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served. The
Company uses annual general meeting as one of the principal channels
for communicating with the Shareholders. The Company ensures that
Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board.

At the annual general meeting, each substantially separate issue has
been considered by a separate resolution, including the election of
individual Directors. The Chairman of the Board, chairmen of the
respective Board committees and the external auditor usually attend
annual general meetings to communicate with and answer questions
from the Shareholders.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2016 annual
general meeting (the “2016 AGM") which was held at 23/F, Infinitus
Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 24 May
2017 at 10:00 a.m.

All resolutions put to Shareholders at the 2016 AGM were passed.
The Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar were appointed as
scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at that meeting.
The results of the voting by poll were published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS (continued) AR KRS (&)

Percentage of

Resolutions proposed at the 2016 AGM votes in favor
REB-XRNERRBFASRENRER RENENBEDL
1. To review and approve the audited consolidated financial statements, the report of the

Directors of the Company and the report of the independent auditor of the Company for

the year ended 31 December 2016. 100%

BERMERRBABE_T-RNFT _A=ZT - RALFENEERGEAUBTHRER NAF
EEERERBURHMBRE -

2. To re-elect Mr. Qin Yongming as an executive Director. 100%
BERKALEERMITES -

3. To re-elect Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong as an executive Director. 100%
BERARECERNTES

4. To re-elect Ms. Qian Liping as an independent nonexecutive Director. 100%
BEERBY AL RBYIENITES

5. To re-elect Dr. Loke Yu as an independent nonexecutive Director. 99.92%
BEEEMELRBIIENTES-

6.  To authorise the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration. 100%

BREEaETEEHM-

7. To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company and to authorise the
Board to fix its remuneration. 100%

BREESBKBEAMEBARRATNZHYM UREEESBETHEM-

8.  To grant a general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with any additional
shares in the Company which shall not in aggregate exceed 20% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution. 99.76%
HEEFRRHE BTLEREADRMEMEIIRG Z —RIEE  ERHEBE &KX BRRZ
RBBERARFIEEITRO AR Z20% °

9.  To grant a general mandate to the Directors to exercise all the powers of the Company
to repurchase its own shares not exceeding 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution. 100%
HWEEBETEARRFMAEN BOARRRN Z —MRIEE  HERHEE NHBRERR
BEBARRBDETRNDBEZ10% °

10. To approve the extension of the general mandate granted to the Directors to allot new
shares by adding to it the number of shares repurchased, if any, pursuant to the share
repurchase mandate. 99.76%
HEBAR TERRIBBRROEEEMEORNDEE (0F) ME BN 2 —RIXE-

11.  To approve the change of Company’s name to “Chiho Environmental Group Limited” and
adoption of "E&IRREEFRAF" as Chinese name. 100%
AR QB ZTBE LA [ Chiho Environmental Group Limited | * W # [ BARREE R
PR VERPICATE -
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper
investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent internal
control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws
and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equal access to
information. To strive for effective communication and transparency
of the Company, the personnel in charge have frequent contact with
Shareholders and investors through various channels such as via
interviews, presentations, internet, telephone and email.

In addition, the Company has during the year ended 31 December
2017 organised numerous site visits to the Group's facilities with several
fund managers and equity market analysts. Through the site visits,
the visitors managed to have a better understanding of the Group’s
operations and an opportunity to know more about the Group's
development strategy.

We will continue to establish communication opportunities in order to
enhance investors’ understanding of and confidence in the Company.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

To deter wrongdoing and to promote standards of good corporate
practices, the Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy in
December 2012. This policy aims at encouraging and enabling
employees of the Group at all levels and others to report violations
or suspected violations and to raise serious concerns about possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters of the
Group.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the securities
regulations of the Stock Exchange, and publishes periodic reports
and announcements to the public in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations. Our primary focus is to ensure information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
Shareholders, investors as well as the public, to make rational and
informed decisions.
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Major Events of
CEGin2017

BERR-E-—tFRSET

1. The Name of the Company

Has Been Changed to “Chiho
Environmental Group Limited”
("CEG")

AR AAE SRR

The name of the Company has been changed
from “Chiho-Tiande Group Limited” to “Chiho
Environmental Group Limited” (“CEG").
AAEEE [BaRMEBBERAR] Bl [E
ERREEBER DT o

2. CEG Obtained Both Waste Disposal License and
Export License for Chemical Wastes
EaRREELCEEYRIEERNLD OER

The Group's operation in Hong Kong’s Yuen Long which is dedicated
to waste electrical and electronic equipment processing, has obtained
both Waste Disposal License and Export License for Chemical Wastes.
CEG has become one of the few licensed recyclers in Hong Kong to
dispose of and export chemical wastes.

SEEERE

FEAOKEEXENEBTHA TR AT ERBTZH

FANER(CEEYRERRBRANLEOEROBEEREWEER — -
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3. CEG's Yuen Long Base
Completed an Upgrade to Become
Hong Kong's Largest, Most

Diverse, Integrated Privately Owned
Electronic Waste Recycling Centre
EaRRITAEMARBRRNKE
ZT LR EEFEEEFEAEKE
L

The two automated production lines namely

electronic waste processing line and cable
processing line have higher production efficiency.

ZEMAABHMIGEDCEER-BEETED
BHESIERBEIBERBERE BEERNE
EXEK-



5. CEG was Awarded “2017 China
Financial Market Award — Best
Investment Value Award”

”“Aiaﬁé RE2017FHF R g & K& —
B EEER] R/ MERAR] K1

CEG won the “2017 China Financial Market Award
— Best Investment Value Award” organised by China
Financial Market, a renowned financial magazine
in Hong Kong. The award shows capital market's
recognition of CEG’s overall performance, value creation
and brand building.
SEEE B A IR
R E K AT
BEHREEmML R
DRATERTIS
HEEGEE N

BEAIE & mhEE
REBESEER

Ao

(hERE) EHM[20174F

Major Events of CEG in 2017
BERR_-_E—tLtFKRSER

4. Scholz, CEG's Wholly Owned
Subsidiary, was Granted a Seniority
Award by VDM (Association of German
Metal Traders)

=& IRR 2 & W B A 7] Scholz& VDM
(EHeBE7Rumhe) REEEANE

In VDM's annual session, Scholz Recycling GmbH was
granted the seniority award. Mr. Qin, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of CEG, received the award.

FEVDME € £ Scholz Recycling GmbH48 5% 17 & 78 3
MERAR EBEFERITREHE R KBAILERKRAA
SEi%o

6. CEG Won the “Most Valuable
Medium-and-Small-Cap Stock” Award
in the “2017 Golden Hong Kong Stocks

Awards Contest”
EABIRLE 20175 8B REABE
IZFI JW‘U{EHR;\TJ j(;{

After a comprehensive review and screening by
professional assessors, CEG has won the “Most Valuable
Medium-and-Small-cap Stock” Award in the “2017
Golden Hong Kong Stocks Awards Contest” based on
its outstanding results and internationalized layout and
positioning.
FE2017F" "B K"
ABFER KBE
F A EBENREER
REEGHE BEaR
RBEEBENLERE
B R 2RI H ERLM
B RET2017F &
BRZAEEFR /DT
BERAE] K-
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Independent Auditor’s
Report

B XA R

_E
pwec

To the Shareholders of Chiho Environmental Group Limited
(Formerly known as Chiho-Tiande Group Limited)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Chiho Environmental Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 120 to 302, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017,
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

R R K 1B
HEEEREEARATRR
(BIBELF W EBERRAA)
(REE BB T HRA )

=z

EMEESAHRAR
BEERAREEBERAR (ATHREIERF])
REKBAR (ATHEIEEE])FIHR
FE120E302EMRAMB®RE B

e RIZ—+HF+ZA=+—HHES
BERER:

. FaPBEHRME BRIZSEE

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

ALK T AT F B - AR BRR PR
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Finalisation of purchase price allocation of the acquisition of
Scholz Holding GmbH (”Scholz Holding” and together with its
subsidiaries, “Scholz Group”)

o Impairment assessment on goodwill

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key Audit Matter
HREGFEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESTNAEEBEREITSER

Finalisation of purchase price allocation of the
acquisition of Scholz Group

ERBEAWBIEFLAESEANBEES LR

Refer to notes 2.2.1 and 39(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.
FELHGE M HmEMET2.2.1%39) °

In December 2016, the Group completed the acquisition
of the entire equity interest of Scholz Group. As at 31
December 2016, the Group recognised a goodwill arising
from the provisional purchase price allocation amounted to
HK$833.7 million. Upon the finalization of purchase price
allocation process in 2017, measurement period adjustments
were made on the fair value of certain identifiable assets
and liabilities resulting in a reduction of goodwill by
HK$157.8 million, as compared to the provisional amount
previously disclosed, to HK$675.9 million.
RZTE-—RF+-H BEETKEBIERAEENZS
HRE-R_ZE—RE+_A=+—H0  EXEBRER
BEEIKEE ZHESE3370BE L ZE—EFRTHK
BRHRESESIIEFE . BREDRETA#NEER
BEMNDTEELT SMEAE SEHBARNBERE
ZETERFERA1ES 7808 BT E6187,5908 8 T ©

Management evaluated and assessed the new information
obtained were related to facts and circumstances existing
as of the acquisition date upon the finalisation of the
purchase price allocation, and was supported by a valuation
performed by independent professional valuers. The
valuation involved unobservable inputs such as revenue
growth rate, gross profit margin and discount rate.
ERBNTRREBEESRK FEREMES AR
HEWREBMAFENSERBERAZFER WESTEY
EXEGHEMETZHEXF ZHESREEHEH AR
B Pl asERE  EMNE LR K-
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In assessing management’s accounting of the business
combination,the following audit procedures have been
performed by us:
FHEERERERA M 2t RIER  RADETUT
BERIEF

Understanding and reviewing management’s assessment
on new information for finalisation of purchase price
allocation by obtaining and reviewing those new
information and related supporting documents;
FREMREBEEZZANTKEEES LA ER KB
BRI TRRESEERBYMER 271

Understanding and assessing the rationale of
management and the independent professional
valuers on the identification of intangible assets and
methodologies used based on our knowledge of the
business and by comparison with external information
about other comparable companies in this industry;
BERMHEF 2 RE WEBLEZITAEAMAI L
BARZIMNEER THEFGERBMBELEXGE
R SE a8 Rl BT B M PTR 7 0E 2 1B 15

Assessing the competency, capability and objectivity of
the independent professional valuers by considering their
qualifications, relevant experiences and relationship with
the Group;

FREBEBUREMGEMZES HHELRKE &5
B BE OB EEAEMZER e REEMN



Key Audit Matter
HRESFEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZE RS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BN ETNAERBARESNEE

We focused on this area as it is a significant acquisition,
and the assessment of new information and valuation of
purchase price allocation required significant judgements
and estimates by management.

BT ZEFEEHNEREARRBEEIE - AL E A
LMBFEBORGESFEEREEDERHE kst

Together with our internal valuation specialist, we assess

the appropriateness of key assumptions applied in the

valuation by comparing the data inputs such as revenue

growth rate, gross profit margin and discount rate

used in the valuation model to market data, historical

financial data and our knowledge of the business and

industry; and

BPERR MR EERFEBL R EEN PR
A28 ABE - IR EIE R R EM R KRR K HEZ%
EBRITE TSR BEMBRE  WRERMAY
EBRROTEZRB FEZEEMAZEIERRZAE

155 &

Evaluating management’s assessment of contingent

consideration in particular the probability of estimated

cash outflow for the acquisition by examining relevant

terms set out in the acquisition agreements and

assessing the uncertainties of crystallising the contingent

consideration.

BRFGAWBHRMB BB FREEEBRIA
REZFE FHERAEBER S 2B RERE Z T8

M FEFEIRARBEZTAREER-

Based on the procedures described, we considered the

judgements and estimates applied in the completion of

purchase price allocation of the acquisition of Scholz

Group to be supportable by available evidence.
RAE AR Fr - AR TE R S A WS B R % S 3 2 B
BEDRMA B R AR EM o BE -

EaRREBERAT
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Key Audit Matter
HREGFEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESTNAEEBEREITSER

Impairment assessment on goodwill

A& ZRE L

Refer to notes 2.11 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
F2HGEMBmEMTE211 k17 ¢

The carrying value of goodwill of the Group as at 31
December 2017 was HK$791.7 million. Majority of goodwill
arose from the acquisition of Scholz Group in December
2016.

EEER T —tF+A=Z+—HZBEEEREEARTE
91708 L ERAMOZEBHREN —E—REF+ =
RUEIER R =B 2325 -

Management performed an assessment on impairment
of goodwill as at 31 December 2017 to determine the
recoverable amount using value-in-use calculations. These
calculations used pre-tax cash flow forecast based on the
financial budget covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using an
estimated long term growth rate.

EEERBFREAEFER T —+tF+_A=+—8z2
B EEITRERN M AEE P RE S5 - &t EERARE
HFHPUBRERER ZHAIR S RIEN - AFHRR R
SRRAMTRAEREHES-

The assessment required the use of management’s
judgements and estimates about future business
performance including revenue growth (sales volume and
metal commodity price forecast), gross profit margin and
discount rate and accordingly, this was an area of our audit
focus.

ZAHE B EETEERARREBRBRED AE REE 21
Waik R (HELASERRERER) EMXRBERE
AtE fRMEZELEBE L —-
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In assessing the appropriateness of the goodwill
impairment assessment performed by management, the
following audit procedures have been performed by us:
RAEERE 2 HBERMEN G 2 EEE B2 EITNA
TEZEF

Comparing the current year actual cash flows with the
prior year cash flow forecast to assess the reliability of
management'’s forecast;

HAFEERBeRER FFERENEBAEITY
8 ARMAEE R BRI S

Evaluating management’s financial budget and
discounted cash flow forecast by understanding the
process by which they were drawn up, and testing
mathematical accuracy of the underlying calculations;
AREREB s VMBEARMRESRETEN  THEHR
RERF RIS B E 2 Bl Lt

Assessing the appropriateness of key assumptions used
in the discounted cash flow forecast for the projected
5 years by comparing (i) projected sales volume to
available production capacity and historical sales volume,
(i) metal commodity price forecast to market research
and analyst reports, and (iii) projected gross profit
margin to historical profit margin. We also checked
these key assumptions against actual results in the
period subsequent to the year end;

FREROEAEEEAABAERMATHEE: (2B
% mn B AR TE R B T IS 9T R o AT R S 5 < 2 (i) TR £
REFLEFNE FERREFRRRRREHAS T
AzFE2R{[zaBE -BMTHRFELERARZ

EREE REZFIEZRR:
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HRESFEE EMHNE AR EREETSH

Evaluating the discount rate by assessing the cost of
capital of the Group and referencing the cost of capital
of other comparable companies in the industry; and
FiRFTE BEEECZERRE R2ETANEMAHELL
BRBZERKAE SRR R &

Evaluating the sensitivity of the Group’s discounted cash
flow forecast by considering downside scenarios against
reasonable possible changes to the key assumptions.
ERTEBRZCEEARESH c TIER T2 BS
ERIRIR SR ETEN Z BURE -

Based on the procedures described, we found that the
judgements and estimates made by management in
respect of the goodwill impairment assessment were
supportable by available evidence.

BIE LR F RMRAETEEEREREN TR AE
Z A R b ET BRI B 2 BE S R e
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A2 B AR

SHEN L ET AR A W15
MBI
RPN B RHGANBERAEREDR
NS SR T UL ECEPN L
REAREE DHABERMERLHEKE
s - RPER BT (ERA%E) BER
P EE B 2 SMARE B EHE A E -
BT ERARENATATAEMEALE
FREEEAEL ARRERSAFHR
B ETRERERR (BABHER) £1T
BB FE R — B AR B F AE RS A A
B SRR O] b B BRF R SRR - MRA
BEBTHEBRERERTLHEFAH
B RE B KRR A B IS R AT E L R0AS
BRTE - AU B0 B SRR P AR AR E K ©

IR AE

ERE (EBEER) ETTETNBIE
ToRMER T EXAE - RIS T ERREE
B > AT

o HRBIANERA R R SR S AR T B
AUBRRFEEAS SRR RS
Bt RITEAS AL AR

AR ERTE R B E WERERE 1R
BB RRER - X EFFAI 88 K&

womE BRER EREUL - B
RAEBES 2 £ FIREEEE AIREF
ﬁﬁ%@(é’]iﬁﬁ AR B B R = R

REERABRMEBMEAHERRA
B‘\JJ—LEM

fREEZRET R M ERIE S PARGTE

¥
EHEEF O EANLIEE EEHE
AEEHINAREERER -

e FHEEEFRASHBEWNBENLR
EH AR MEEREN GBI -

EaRREBERAT

—z—tEFER 117



Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEMHE

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of

Profit or Loss
melEEk

For the Year Ended 31 December 2017 HE_-Z—tF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—LtF —E—REF
Notes HK$M HK$M
=2 BEBTT ABEETT
Revenue W = 5 18,491.0 3,211.4
Cost of sales SHE A 8 (16,162.0) (2,992.8)
Gross profit EH 2,329.0 218.6
Other income H g A 6 113.9 15.2
Other gains/(losses), net Huhlezs,/ (F518)F58 7 237.1 (335.1)
Distribution and selling expenses DHEREERY 8 (562.3) (15.1)
Administrative expenses ITHAX 8 (1,303.0) (293.5)
814.7 (409.9)
Finance income IR N 10 38.8 47.9
Finance costs 5 R AR 10 (416.1) (82.0)
Finance costs, net B B R AN 58 (377.3) (34.1)
Share of profit of an associate FE(REE & R &l A 18 0.2 0.4
Share of profit of joint ventures JE(RE &R 18 108.6 -
Profit/(loss) before income tax BAETSRANEFR, (Ei8) 546.2 (443.6)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frig®i (FZ) K& 1M (110.6) 0.4
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF, (BE) 435.6 (443.2)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: A& FESEFR, (BE)
Shareholders of the Company ViN/NET S8 426.8 (439.9)
Non-controlling interests FEE A b 2 8.8 (3.3)
435.6 (443.2)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to 722 & i% 52 fE 15 45 A
shareholders of the Company for the SRXZEF|, (EIE)
year (expressed in HK$ per share) (AEFRETLIIR)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREXRAF, (EE) 13 0.26 (0.27)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share FRESERN(EE) 13 0.26 (0.27)

The notes on pages 128 to 302 are an integral part of these 128302 E WM AL LA HEBREN
consolidated financial statements. :
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

mezHERER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2017 #HE—-Z—+F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Notes HKS$M HK$M
P 5 BEAT AEBT
Profit/(loss) for the year ERBEN(FE) 435.6 (443.2)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) EftZHEUW A, (EiE)
Items that may be reclassified RGBT D E R
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Currency translation differences ENHZEZ5 609.5 (40.6)
Item that will not be reclassified to TEEN S EEERIEA -
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of post-employment EF T 2R E & RREE
benefit obligations ZEAEE 0.4 -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FRNEMEEWRA (EIE)
for the year 609.9 (40.6)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREEEA (BE)BE
for the year 1,045.5 (483.8)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) T &EFEEFEFAZEBZA
for the year attributable to: J(Bi8) s
Shareholders of the Company ZAN/NSIL§ 1,033.3 (483.3)
Non-controlling interests SRR = 12.2 (0.5)
1,045.5 (483.8)

The notes on pages 128 to 302 are an integral part of these 1287302 E WM AL LA iEHREN

consolidated financial statements. — 5
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122

Consolidated
Balance Sheet

meBEERER

As at 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F+-_HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Notes HK$M HK$M
ihg=2 BEBTT BEET
(restated)
(&E5)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB MR E 14 3,559.3 2,873.4
Leasehold land and land use rights T 4 i Jo - Hb {5 A 4 15 412.9 529.3
Investment properties "EME 16 3.5 81.8
Intangible assets mEEE 17 1,207.7 1,008.3
Investments accounted for using FRAEREARZIRE
the equity method 18 591.2 447.9
Other non-current assets HiERBEE 20 128.8 65.3
Deferred income tax assets IRIEFTISTE = 31 168.1 177.4
6,071.5 5,183.4
Current assets REEE
Inventories 5B 22 2,338.5 1,773.5
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H M EWKIE 23 1,992.4 1,751.1
Fixed return investment & 5E B 3% & 24 339.0 316.8
Amounts due from related parties JE W Fa B 5 IR 37 205.6 262.5
Derivative financial instruments TESHTAE 25 6.1 7.9
Tax recoverable AR B Fi I8 25.8 23.1
Pledged bank deposits BRI RITFR 26 95.0 422.7
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESFEIEE 26 976.4 1,656.7
5,978.8 6,214.3
Assets classified as held for sale NEARIEEHENEE 21 43.4 388.0
Total assets EEHE 12,093.7 11,785.7
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BREREE
Equity attributable to shareholders Zx7A B IR 3R fE {5 #E %5
of the Company
Share capital &2 27 16.1 16.2
Other reserves H Ath (7 1% 32 7,018.9 6,485.9
Accumulated losses RETEIE (1,961.9) (2,384.9)
5,073.1 4117.2
Non-controlling interests JEVE R = 30 (26.0) (32.8)
Total equity HRER 5,047.1 4,084.4

Chiho Environmental Group Limited

Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEEAER
As at 31 December 2017 WZZE—+F+-_A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF
Notes HK$M HK$M
B 5 BEBTT BEET
(restated)
(gE5)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings a3k 29 1,133.0 1,960.2
Derivative financial instruments TEemTE 25 - 11.9
Retirement benefit obligations RIKEFET 35 26.7 24.1
Other payables H h fE T RRIR 28 105.2 292.8
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISHBE 31 416.5 379.4
1,681.4 2,668.4
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & HE M RIE 28 2,092.0 1,487.1
Current income tax liabilities BNVEARTIS B BB 113.2 108.4
Borrowings R 29 3,022.2 3,057.7
Amounts due to related parties JE < BA B 77 5RIE 37 110.9 360.1
Derivative financial instruments TESHMTA 25 26.9 19.6
5,365.2 5,032.9
Total liabilities EEHEE 7,046.6 7,701.3
Total equity and liabilities REBEREE 12,093.7 11,785.7
The consolidated financial statements on pages 120 to 302 were #H N F1208302E 446

MBHRENR_E
—N\F=HA= -H\Ei?%é%‘@tt/ﬁ&%* /N
&ﬁ ’ Im?ﬁ‘]ﬁ%fﬁﬁﬂ

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Qin Yongming REELRE FXKPARE
Director Director EaEa E=3

F128E3NEMM T AZELRAMBREN

consolidated financial statements. — &

The notes on pages 128 to 302 are an integral part of these
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

GARREDE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2017 BEZ-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE
Attributable to shareholders of the Company
KARRRER
Other Non-
Share reserves  Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 32) losses Total interests equity
Akl
BAR - (ME32) ZitEE @it FEERER BiEL
HK$M HK$M HK$M HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEBTL BEBTL BEBTL BEBTL BEBTL BEBTL
At 1 January 2016 \ZE-R"F—-A-H 15.9 6,418.1 (1,946.0) 4,488.0 (74.1) 44139
Comprehensive income 2EMNE
Loss for the year ENEE - - (439.9) (439.9) (33) (443.2)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income E 2/ (E18) /W
Currency translation differences  EX Z% - (43.4) - (43.4) 28 (40.6)
Total other comprehensive loss ~ FREM 2 EEEAR
for the year, net of tax EillGy - (43.4) - (43.4) 28 (40.6)
Total comprehensive loss ENEZEBREE
for the year, net of tax MEHE - (43.4) (439.9) (483.3) (0.5) (483.8)
Transactions with shareholders in  E IR (LARE S 1)
their capacity as shareholders  #17% 5
Issue of subscription shares BIRERS 03 114 - 117 - 1.7
Non-controlling interests arising ¥4 HHESL 2
from business combination iR ER - - - - 37 37
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - 38.1 38.1
Exercise of share options ThERE - 08 - 08 - 08
Lapse of share options BRER R - (1.0) 1.0 - - -
Total transactions with SRR (URESR)
shareholders in their capacity as  #11R 5 #%
shareholders 03 1112 1.0 1125 418 1543
At 31 December 2016 i :2
+-A=+—-H 16.2 6,485.9 (2,384.9) 4,117.2 (32.8) 4,084.4

Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREEX
For the Year Ended 31 December 2017 #HEZZ—+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ARARREMR
Other Non-
Share reserves Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 32) losses Total interests equity
Hit R
R& (HaE32) RiER @it FERER HER
HK$SM HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BERRT HBEET AEER HEER AEER  HEER

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+E—-f—H 16.2 6,485.9 (2,384.9) 4,117.2 (32.8) 4,084.4
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year FERRE - - 426.8 426.8 8.8 435.6

Other comprehensive income ~ Efth 2 Iz

Currency translation differences  [EX Z% - 606.1 - 606.1 34 609.5
Remeasurement of post- BN EREELERRBE
employed benefit obligations 2 @FE(T - 0.4 - 0.4 - 0.4
Total other comprehensive income %R E {2 #5445 -
for the year, net of tax MRHIE - 606.5 - 606.5 34 609.9
Total comprehensive income FRNEENELEE
for the year, net of tax MEEE - 606.5 426.8 1,033.3 12.2 1,045.5
Transactions with shareholders in  E2F% & (AR 5 17)
their capacity as shareholders  #17% 5
Transfer of reserves ERGE - 37 3.7) - - -
Transactions with BIERERERETRS
non-controlling interests - (11.9) - (11.9) (5.4) (17.3)
Subscription shares repurchased 85813 7% $ 40 2 88 AR 19
and cancelled (0.1) (65.3) (0.1) (65.5) - (65.5)
Total transactions with ARE (LREZH)
shareholders in their capacity as #7585
shareholders (0.1) (73.5) (3.8) (77.4) (5.4) (82.8)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=+—-H 16.1 7,018.9 (1,961.9) 5,073.1 (26.0) 5,047.1

The notes on pages 128 to 302 are an integral part of these £5128ZE302EKNMWEAXZFHEAMERED
consolidated financial statements. —&B5 e
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Consolidated Statement of

Cash Flows

FERERER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2017 2016
—E-+t#F —E-RF
Notes HKS$M HK$M
hr=s BEET BEAET
Cash flows from operating activities RESEEFFEER SR
Cash generated from operations RS FT5IR S 40 850.3 91.9
Interest paid 2 F B (373.3) (46.7)
Tax (paid)/refunded B () RERIE (34.2) 1.2
Net cash generated from RETHMEREFH
operating activities 442.8 56.4
Cash flows from investing activities I EEEEEHE R
Purchases of property, BEME BMEMRE
plant and equipment (290.1) (127.2)
Purchase of intangible assets BEETLEE (1.0) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEME WMENKREZFT
property, plant and equipment BxIE 40 126.4 1.4
Deposit paid for property, W BE ME&E 2 BN
plant and equipment e (22.3) 9.1
Proceeds from government grants AT B 2 TS I - 1.2
Payment for leasehold land and FAE -0 & s A4
land use rights pANEN - (17.3)
Proceeds from disposal of HERE 7 FTERE
leasehold land 40 - 7.7
Placement of pledged bank deposits 77z A 2 #H R 1T (513.5) (698.9)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 2 El 2 3K B4R 1T 17 2k 876.5 747.9
Increase in fixed return investment 188 B [E] 5F [B] S i & - (300.0)
Purchase of financial assets through St AEEXZ S HEE
profit or loss (12.2) (1,289.2)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEFAEBRZERMEERN
assets through profit or loss B8 10.5 1,183.9
Proceeds from disposal of assets HESEABELEERE
classified as held for sale B E%IA 40 72.0 -
Proceeds from disposal of available- HERHEESREE 2N
for-sale financial assets B\ 20 10.9 -
Proceeds from disposal of HESLME REHRIE
a joint venture 7.9 -
Proceed from disposal of HEGEYEZFEHRIE
investment properties 40 102.0 -
Dividend received from joint ventures U EV& & >R 2 22.9 -
Dividend received B U RE & 6.1 8.5
Acquisition of subsidiaries, WEF AT HIBREHEEIR
net of cash acquired 4 39 47.5 94.7
Provision of loan to Scholz Group AER A EEIREER
(pre-acquisition) ( Uk B A7) - (484.0)
Purchase of loan receivable BERRER - (2,449.9)
Interest received =2 U R B 16.6 5.9
Net cash generated from/(used in) R&FENFFE, (FFA)
investing activities HE S5 460.2 (3,306.2)

126 chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERETMEBR

For the Year Ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—-=

—tFt-A=T-RILFE

EaRREBERAT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Notes HK$M HK$M
=g BEER BEAT
Cash flows from financing activities @& ;EE AR ER
Repurchase of subscription shares Eﬁ@E%@&EﬁﬁE’]
repurchased and cancelled RERMD 27(0) (65.5)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE R ZFTEIA 2,549.7 3,838.4
Repayments of bank borrowings BBIFITER (4,447.8) (2,562.7)
Proceeds of other borrowings E M ERZFrE5IA 703.9 -
Repayments of other borrowings BEEMER (45.6) (178.0)
Repayments of convertible bonds BEAIBERES (67.6) -
Repayment of finance lease liabilities (EERERE ST 47.7) -
Loans from the immediate REEEERATZER
holding company 12.7 232.6
Repayment to the immediate MEZEERAAMEZERIE
holding company (209.8) (39.4)
Loans from an intermediate kEFEERATER
holding company - 148.1
Repayment to an intermediate ) R A AR A BB F0E
holding company (10.1) (136.9)
Proceeds from issuance of shares FHMITEERERTRG 2
through exercise of share options FriS 3R - 0.8
Capital contribution from IEERERITE
non-controlling interests - 38.1
Transactions with non-controlling BSEIEREREITR S
interests (17.3) -
Net cash (used in)/generated METE (A FEERS
from financing activities HEE (1,645.1) 1,341.0
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzRERBLEEIEE
beginning of the year 1,656.7 3,585.7
Net decrease in cash and ReERBEFEBARDFE
cash equivalents (742.1) (1,908.8)
Exchange differences on cash and RekFAEFEHEEEZ
cash equivalents MEH =58 61.8 (20.2)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZESRESEHEER
at end of the year 26 976.4 1,656.7
The notes on pages 128 to 302 are an integral part of these HF128F3RBNMFEAZSHEAMBREN
consolidated financial statements. — &5
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e SRR L

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chiho Environmental Group Limited (formerly known as Chiho-
Tiande Group Limited) (“the Company”) is an investment holding
company. The Company and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) are mainly engaged in the principal business of metal
recycling, involving the recycling of mixed metal scrap into copper
scrap, steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal
scrap in Asia, Europe and America. The principal activities of its

subsidiaries are set out in Note 42.

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company's ultimate holding company is Loncin Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Loncin Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), and the Company’s
immediate holding company is USUM Investment Group Hong
Kong Limited ("USUMHK"), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. Loncin Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu
Jianhua (“Mr. Tu"”), an executive director of the Company.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar
("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

During the year, the Group finalised the purchase price
allocation and the assessment of the fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of Scholz Holding GmbH
("Scholz Holding”) and its subsidiaries (“Scholz Group”).
The comparative information in the consolidated balance
sheet have been restated reflecting the measurement
period adjustments. Please refer to Note 39(a) for detailed
impact on the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group
The following amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time
for the financial year beginning on or after
1 January 2017:

Amendment to HKAS 7, “Disclosure initiative”.
This amendment requires entities to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.

Amendment to HKAS 12, “Recognition of
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses”.
This amendment clarifies how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments
measured at fair value.

Amendment from annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, on HKFRS 12,
"Disclosure of interests in other entities”.

The amendments do not have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ISR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

The following new standards, new
interpretations and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017 and
have not been early adopted by the Group

The following new standards and
interpretations and amendments to existing
standards are not effective for financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017, and have not
been applied in preparing these consolidated
financial statements:

2 BASHBEMEZ (&)

21 REEE(E)

211 SR BRERRKREZS
(%)

(b)

S BE AR —F
—tF—H— A
Z B B R 1 K AR
R A5 B AR LEFT IR
AR FTER - Frit FE
K EREET

DA ST E RN 2 B K
BAEAWERIR =
E—+F—-A—BH
B FELRE
R B R AR IZ
FRa VB mRKE
A

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RUT RS
ZEBEBRN
S HBEN

HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BB G ERIE285%
SCHEN)

HKAS 40 (Amendment)

ARG ERF405
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HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
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REERARAELENREER

Transfers of investment property
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payment transactions
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

The following new standards, new

2.1

EXSHBRBE (8)

mREE (/)

(%)

(b)

interpretations and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group

(continued)

S BE AR —F
—tF—H— A
Z B B R 1 K AR
R A5 B AR LEFT IR
AR FTER - Frit FE
RERIEET (&)

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RUTBER
ZEBERN
S ABENR

HKFRS 9

BRI BmEENFER

HKFRS 9 (Amendment)

BRI BREER LR
(EFTA)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

Financial instruments
MBIA
Prepayment features with negative compensation

AREMENRENERST

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture

ERVBMEENEI0% REEREBERARGELEZRHN

REB G ERF285

(BFTA)
HKFRS 15

BEBMBREERE 155

HKFRS 15 (Amendment)

BERMBIMEERE 1558

(BETA)
HKFRS 16

BEPBRELRFE 165

HKFRS 17

BELERIE

Revenue from contracts with customers
REREFPEHZ W&

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
BEEMBHRELREISH 2 BE

Leases
HE

Insurance contracts

ERAMBREENE 7R RRAH
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ISR

2.1

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

The following new standards, new

interpretations and amended standards have

been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group

(continued)
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211 SR BRERRKREZS
(%)

(b)
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R A5 B AR LEFT IR
AR FTER - Frit FE
RERIEET (&)

Effective for
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HKFRSs (Amendments)
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HK (IFRIC) 22

B8 (BERHBRE
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52257

HK (IFRIC) 23
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582358

Annual improvements 2014-2016 cycle
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Annual improvements 2015-2017 cycle
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Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration
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Uncertainty over income tax treatments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

The following new standards, new
interpretations and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

The above new standards, new interpretations
and amended standards are not expected to
have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except those
set out below:

(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

Nature of change
HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

Impact
The Group has reviewed its financial

assets and liabilities and is expecting the
following impact from the adoption of
the new standard on 1 January 2018:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

The following new standards, new
interpretations and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)
(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(continued)

Impact (continued)

The equity investment that is currently
classified as available-for-sale will satisfy
the conditions for classification as at fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI") and the debt instruments
currently classified as loans and receivables
meet the conditions for classification at
amortised cost under HKFRS 9. Hence there
will be no change to the accounting for
these assets. Accordingly, the Group does
not expect the new guidance to affect the
classification and measurement of these
financial assets. However, gains or losses
realised on the sale of financial assets at
FVOCI will no longer be transferred to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
on sale, but instead reclassified below the
line from the FVOCI reserve to retained
earnings. For the year ended 31 December
2017, no gains were recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in
relation to the disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new
interpretations and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(continued)

Impact (continued)
There will be no impact on the Group's

accounting for financial liabilities, as
the new requirements only affect the
accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit
or loss and the Group does not have
any such liabilities. The derecognition
rules have been transferred from HKAS
39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement” and have not been
changed. The new impairment model
requires the recognition of impairment
provisions based on expected credit
losses rather than only incurred credit
losses as is the case under HKAS 39.
It applies to financial assets classified
at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, contract assets under
“HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts
with customers”, lease receivables,
loan commitments and certain financial
guarantee contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

The following new standards, new
interpretations and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)
(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(continued)

Impact (continued)
The new standard also introduces

expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and
extent of the Group's disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in
the year of the adoption of the new
standard.

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 9 is mandatory for financial years
starting on or after 1 January 2018.
The new standard is not expected to be
applied by the Group until the financial
year ending 31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new
interpretations and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group

(continued)
(i)  HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

Nature of change
The HKICPA has issued a new standard

for the recognition of revenue. This will
replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts
for goods and services and HKAS 11
which covers construction contracts
and the related literature. The new
standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a
good or service transfers to a customer.
The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new
interpretations and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

(i)  HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (continued)

Impact
Management is currently assessing the

effects of applying the new standard
on the Group’s financial statements
and anticipates that the application of
HKFRS 15 may result in the identification
of separate performance obligations in
relation to revenue contracts which could
affect the timing of the recognition of
revenue going forward. However, they
do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact
on the timing and amount of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting
periods. More detailed assessments will
be carried out by the Group to estimate
the impact of the new rules on the
Group's financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new
interpretations and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

(i)  HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial
years starting on or after 1 January 2018.
The new standard is not expected to be
applied by the Group until the financial
year ending 31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

The following new standards, new
interpretations and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

(iii)  HKFRS 16 "“Leases”

Nature of change
HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016.

It will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the balance sheet, as
the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed. Under the
new standard, an asset (the right to use
the leased item) and a financial liability
to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value
leases. The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new
interpretations and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

(iii)  HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Impact
The standard will affect primarily the

accounting for the Group's operating
leases. The Group has not yet determined
to what extent these commitments will
result in the recognition of an asset and
a liability for future payments and how
this will affect the Group’s profit and
classification of cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new
interpretations and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

(iii)  HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

The new standard is mandatory for
financial years commencing on or after
1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group
does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Ildentifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

2 EARHEE

B2 (%)

22 TFATE(#)
221 #ERE (&)

(a)

EaRREBERAT

RBEE0(E)
WIB R A EELE
By 32 85 ©

1SR AEEEERNT
s AR B IR IE
HERTFERR
RAEEENBENHK
RREAFENREE
BE NIRBESE
SR 395 MBS
BR-DEARERN
HAREBEEEHAT
EMEAZEERN

A ARR .

P A E RKE
77 2 AE R IR S
& BRI ATINE
Wi 77 2 IR e i
BE Z X ERRBA
WIERBRIFEER
FEZER HAK
SIER R - i B E
RE BHERBIFER
ot M ST AT A
HAt 8 2 AR
WEFRRIFEEZ
NFE(REEBERE
ZBERT) Rl E
BHEEERGARRE
RANER

£ 8 2 AR B
% WY RABRZ
U364 T IAHE 5K -
REREETEE
@ BIEX DA
FREWRAE NS
Wi FRAMLE
S 2 B3
BURRRAEEY
SRR

—=—tEgER 145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEBEHE (B)

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 F2ATE ()

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 221 #ERE (&)

(a)  Business combinations (continued) (a) HFEAEG(E)
Where businesses are acquired and fair values AU E R M
of the net assets of the acquired business are Wis B M EEFE
finalised within 12 months of the acquisition N ERYEE B R
date, all fair value adjustments are recorded 1A RNEE B
with effect from the date of acquisition and N ERAEGWER
consequently may result in the restatement of BRI AR AR Ak
previously reported financial results. & E a1 A

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the

MIEEBEEMED -

WMERB A0 EBE
17 BB 7T 2 A FE K
Wi T E RN
BHENEEE ®

acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising Wi BB A FEE
from such remeasurement are recognised in etE BEEN
profit or loss. SEENEMUKER

EIEEEEPHER -

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets
including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights.
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased

has significant influence but not control,

Investments in associates are

or decreased to recognise the investor’'s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investments in associates include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference between
the cost of the associate and the Group's share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group'’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference

the associate is impaired.

between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of profit of investments accounted for using equity
method’ in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only
to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B R AR RTEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BERETHEWME (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Joint arrangements (continued) 24 SEZH(E)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The Group's investments in joint
ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon
the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint venture
and the Group's share of the net fair value of the joint
venture's identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for
as goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-amounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.12.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Committee that makes strategic
decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Company's functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in

statement of profit or loss within ‘other gains/(losses),
net’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Buildings

BF

Plant and machinery

Office furniture and equipment
PRERMKRERME

Leasehold improvements
HERE

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.12).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘Other losses, net’ in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Land use rights

Land use rights are located in the PRC and they are
classified as operating leases. All land use rights are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is provided to write
off cost of land use rights on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease period.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction
of buildings and the costs of plant and machinery. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction-
in-progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to other property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated in Note 2.7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group. Land held under operating leases are accounted for
as investment properties when the rest of the definition of
an investment property is met. In such cases, the operating
leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Computer software acquired are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 5 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Intangible assets (continued)
(c) Brand names, patents and licenses

Separately acquired brand names, patents and
licences are shown at historical cost. Brand
names, patents and licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Certain brand names, patents and
licences have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of certain brand names, patents and licenses
over their estimated useful lives of 8 to 20 years.
Certain brand names have indefinite useful life
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment.
Impairment assessment is undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment.

(d) Customers’ relationship and suppliers’
relationship

Customers’ relationship and suppliers’ relationships
acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The customers’
relationship and suppliers’ relationship have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of the customers’ relationship and
suppliers’ relationship of 5 to 20 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A RIS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEBEHE (B)

POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets 212 FERMEERE

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2.13 Assets classified as held for sale 213 PEABFEHEZEE
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when EHREEAABIHERSWE
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally BWR R R R EITIHER 3
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly MEBEEWRSBRSHEHE 3
probable. The non-current assets (except for certain assets nBEE(FMBETNTRZETE
as explained below), are stated at the lower of carrying ) IRBRE E A FER &R
amount and fair value less costs to sell. ZEARETIER o

2.14 Financial assets 214 eWEE

2.14.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Financial assets (continued)
2.14.1 Classification (continued)

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group's
loans and receivables comprise “fixed return
investment”, “trade and other receivables”
(Note 2.19) and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in
the consolidated balance sheet (Note 2.20).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BERETHEWME (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.14 Financial assets (continued) 214 SREE (&)

2.14.1 Classification (continued) 2141 738 (48)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

2.14.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative
trading financial asset out of the held for trading
category if the financial asset is no longer held for
the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial
assets other than loans and receivables are permitted
to be reclassified out of the held for trading category
only in rare circumstances arising from a single event
that is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near
term. In addition, the Group may choose to reclassify
financial assets that would meet the definition of
loans and receivables out of the held for trading or
available-for-sale categories if the Group has the
intention and ability to hold these financial assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of
reclassification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Financial assets (continued)
2.14.2 Reclassification (continued)

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new
cost or amortised cost as applicable, and no
reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded before
reclassification date are subsequently made. Effective
interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans
and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further
increases in estimates of cash flows adjust effective
interest rates prospectively.

2.14.3 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A RIS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAREFTEEREE (8)
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Financial assets (continued) 214 SREE (&)

2.14.3 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss’ category are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within 'Other gains/
(losses), net’ in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as part of
other income when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as “gains and losses from
investment securities”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as part
of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

2.16 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument'’s
fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is reclassified from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available for sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit
or loss — is reclassified from equity and recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B ER AR RTEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEBEHE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Derivative financial instruments 217 $TE€@MI A

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date MEIEH’\MEI BRFILE
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently HERQAFENKRER HERA

re-measured at their fair values. Changes in the fair value
of these derivative instruments are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within ‘other
gains/(losses), net’. The Group does not have any derivative
that is designated as a hedging instrument.

2.18 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related

production overheads. It excludes borrowing costs. Net

2.18
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realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary RA-A] IR FELABEEY
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses. A EBREER CEHIHE
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2.19 Trade and other receivables 219 EZRHEMBWRFIE
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for B O RWHIBAT AT EETE

merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal

operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified

A L PR A 5 6 SHR (AR 75 T R UK
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as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current BN HERIBERARBDEE: T
assets. AIDERFERDEE-
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at B 5 JE WU IE Ko E At JE WURRIE A

fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. See Note 2.14.3 for further information about
the Group's accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.16

for a description of the Group's impairment policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents

2.21

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, bank overdrafts. In the consolidated balance sheet,
bank overdrafts are shown within cash and cash equivalents
in current assets.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.22 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.23 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to

which it relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.24 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges
in respect of finance lease and exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.
The exchange gains and losses that are an adjustment
to interest costs include the interest rate differential
between borrowing costs that would be incurred if the
entity had borrowed funds in its functional currency, and
the borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency
borrowings. Such amounts are estimated based on interest
rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s functional
currency.

2.25 Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group
comprise convertible bonds that can be converted to share
capital at the option of the holder, and the number of
shares to be issued does not vary with changes in their fair
value.

The liability component is recognised initially at the
difference between the fair value of the compound financial
instrument as a whole and the fair value of the derivative
component. Any directly attributable transaction costs
are allocated to the liability and derivative components in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Compound financial instruments (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of
a compound financial instrument is measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The derivative
components are recognised at fair value at the date of
issue. It is subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The liability component of a convertible instrument is
classified as current unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.26 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(i) Investment allowances and similar tax
incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled
to claim special tax deductions for investments
in qualifying assets or in relation to qualifying
expenditure. The Group accounts for such
allowances as tax credits, which means that
the allowance reduces income tax payable and
current tax expense. A deferred tax asset is
recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are
carried forward as deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEBEHE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Employee benefits 227 EERER

2.27.1 Short-term obligations 2271 BHEME

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.27.2 Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual
leave are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. They
are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. Consideration is given to expected future
wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the
end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match,
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss.

2.27.2

EeRREBERAH

BEEEHEHR RIGE
ERIERFTRE (B
TR (B B 1R AR RE AR A5
fE s R AR 1218 A NB B A
HWIEEHEN R REHE
RIAEBEEEHAE LA
HeEt8 BERGEAE
EBRBERAZIAANHES
BHEE-

HittRHMESEANER
BB e R BRI
B B BIR 181218 A M4
B REIRIS BRI K F R
BE DRBEHEREER
SHEEE B EEMRMR
B AH AR R FIRRE -
BRTEMEFDAFE-EH
ZREPRKIEMH K
- B TR RC B AN AR 75 1
[ o FHEIR RS SR NI &S
Hif A5 5 A SRR EIE B FoR
BEEAREEAARRS
M —BNEERREFK
EmERR - AERFBERIE
BERREHEUNENTE
RIBEER -

—=—tFFH 171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Employee benefits (continued)
2.27.3 Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including for defined benefit in Germany
and defined contribution pension plans in the
PRC and Hong Kong, namely the state-managed
retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme") respectively.

(@) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an
amount of pension benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Employee benefits (continued)

2.27.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension obligation. In countries where
there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit
plan, recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset,
reflects the increase in the defined benefit
obligation results from employee service in the
current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Employee benefits (continued)

2.27.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service
costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the statement of profit or
loss.

Remeasurement arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity
in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Employee benefits (continued)
2.27.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(b)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period

are discounted to their present value.

2.28 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the

options is recognised as an expense.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its

estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BA SRR PYRE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
and share premium.

2.29 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.

2.30 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customers, the type of
transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Revenue recognition (continued)

2.31

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied
(a) the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods; (b) the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold; (c) the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably; (d) it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to the Group; and (e) the costs incurred or
to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Service income

Services income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as services are performed.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective rate
method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces

the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being

the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired loans is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.32 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established. This applies even if they are paid
out of pre-acquisition profits. However, the investment may
need to be tested for impairment as a consequence.

2.33 Leases

As the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful
life of the asset and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.33 Leases (continued)

As the lessor

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the
lessee in return for a payment, or series of payments, the
right to use an asset for an agreed period of time.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the
asset is included in the balance sheet based on the nature
of the asset.

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over the
term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

2.34 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.35 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BA SRR PYRE

A

02y =]

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, fixed return investment, derivative
financial assets, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, derivative financial
liabilities and borrowings, etc. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk

(@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has foreign currency sales,
purchases, trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables, derivative financial
instruments, bank borrowings, which expose
the Group to market risk arising from changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group currently
does not have a specific foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management
closely monitors its foreign currency risk
exposure and considers any foreign currency
forward contracts should the need arise.

In addition, the Group had entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with banks
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation
risk of payments for trade payables which were
denominated in United States dollars (“US$").
The derivatives were not accounted for under
hedge accounting. The Group was required to
estimate the fair value of the foreign currency
forward contracts at the end of the reporting
period, which therefore also exposed the Group
to foreign exchange risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRtEREIR (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 2EAKBEE (&)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) ™iEEB (&)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SMNEE (&)
At 31 December 2017, if Renminbi (“RMB") RZZE—tF+=

had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the HK$ or the US$ with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would
have been HK$55.4 million lower/higher (2016:
pre-tax loss of HK$32.9 million higher/lower),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of US$ denominated
trade and other payables, borrowings, foreign
forward contract derivatives and cash and bank
deposits.

At 31 December 2017, if Euro (“EUR") had
weakened/strengthened by 9% (2016: 8%)
against the HK$ or US$ with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would
have been HK$17.4 million lower/higher (2016:
pre-tax loss of HK$180.1 million higher/lower),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of US$-denominated
trade and other payables and cash and bank
deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRtEREIR (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 2REAKREZR (&)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) ™iEEB (&)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SMNERBE (&)
The directors considered the foreign exchange EERA/ABTRET
risk between HK$ and US$ is minimal as HK$ 2 fE B A1 FE R B R
has been linked to US$. W ERBITEET
(i) Interest rate risk (i) F)Fm R
The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from AL B R EERE
Hx + = R
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable EHREERKFD
.
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest GIESSSELIEEAT %N
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk. SREFEZREMANE
[ Bg Kz A B ) 2 [
% o
Based on the simulations performed, the ARG AT RO IR SR -
N
impact on pre-tax profit (2016: pre-tax loss) of B B10018 £ B 4 B
a 100 basis points shift would have a maximum i A1 55 1 (_77 N
decrease (2016: increase) by the following FHRBAEE) D
magnitude: FENRKXRD (=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB ERARMIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(ifi)

TRIEREIE (&)

31 SRIEABEE (&)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) ™iEEB (&)
Price risk (i) 1B E R
Commodity price risks 7 B AR B
At 31 December 2017, the Group was exposed RZE—+tF+=A
to commodity price risks through its metal =t+—8 X£EER
commodities future contracts. TEERESOMm
7 B AR L o
Sensitivity analysis BREE DT
The sensitivity analysis below is determined THIGRERE DT THE
based on the exposure to commodity price R=ZE—+tF+=A
risk of metal commodities future contracts at =t—HeBERH
31 December 2017. If the commodity price EERAKHEAR
risk of metal commodities future contracts Bt 75 ) B B S (B 2 BE
had been 19% (2016: 16%) higher/lower, the EH 87 B R
Group's pre-tax profit (2016: pre-tax loss) for i€ ° v & B 75 o 23
the year would increase (2016: decrease) by the *b/\%’jﬁ’ﬁﬁuu Big L
following magnitude: F/TE19% (=
—NF:16% )+ AR
EI¢W$@$}%E@§?‘J
(ZE—RF B
RIEHEIIEM(ZZ
—RNEFRD)HIR
ET:
2017 2016
—E—tF NG S
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BEART AEBT
Impact on profit/(loss) H R A
before income tax wAL(EE) 12.2 108.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash
and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments,
trade and other receivables and deposits with banks
and financial institutions. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

To manage this risk arising from cash and bank
deposits, the Group only transacts with reputable
commercial banks which are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions. There has been no recent history
of default in relation to these financial institutions.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had concentration
of credit risk as 16% and 53% (2016: 8% and 26%)
of its total trade receivables was due from its largest
trade debtor and the five largest trade debtors
respectively. The five largest trade debtors have good
repayment history and credit quality with reference to
the track records of these customers under internal
assessment by the Group.

3 &RA

RE SRR

REE (&)

31 REKREZ (H)

(b)

EeRREBERAH

FERE

AEESNEERBRERRE
ReMReFEHAR 1L
ERMTAE BHREMEK
RERBITREBEES
W LB RERHIRE B R
SEMERMEERENRA
EERR -

REERARE RRITER
ME—RAR AEEE SR
FERENARRITIRS
ZERITRHM/EEEZK
FERNERERE ZEDR
MRS I BT B R RAS 8 o

W_ZE—tF+=—_A=+—
B AEEATEEEHE
& FAAHE WSS
HEHRE16%N53% (- F
—NF:8%N26% )7 F
REESFAEBARRKE
A BIEAREERRIF
i 2EZERPNEER
B FLRETS A BB G 8%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(9]

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group in and aggregated by group
finance. Group finance monitors rolling forecasts
of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it
has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while
maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities (Note 29) at all
times so that the Group does not breach borrowing
limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of
its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into
consideration the Group’s debt financing plans,
covenant compliance, compliance with internal
balance sheet ratio targets and, if applicable external
regulatory or legal requirements — for example,
currency restrictions.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date. Derivative financial liabilities are included in the
analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for
an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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(9]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRERERE (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 SREKBEZ (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) (0 REELRER (&)
On demand Between Between
or less than 1and3 3 months and Between Over
1 month months 1year 1and5 years 5 years
RERY -z =fiA
SR-EA =fEA E-f -1 BENE
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
ABAR ABAR ABER ABER BBER
At 31 December 2017 RIE-tF
tZA=t-H
Non-derivative FTESREE
financial liabilities
Borrowings (excluding finance  f£3%
lease liabilties) (TRERERESRMH) 1,069.0 66.2 1,847.5 1,090.4 5.1
Finance lease liabilities HEREER 72 14.4 64.9 160.3 -
Trade and other payables EHRAMERTRE 1,435.1 73.1 68.7 402 28
Amounts due to related parties  fEff R 2R 88.5 03 2.1 - -
2,599.8 154.0 2,003.2 1,290.9 19
At 31 December 2016 RZB-5~%
(restated) +=A=1-H
(&85
Non-derivative Fiicemas
financial liabilities
Borrowings (excluding finance 1531
lease liabilities) (TRERERERH) 7808 113 25210 19409 133
Finance lease liabiliies BEREER 6.8 19.1 5.6 188.7 -
Trade and other payables 85 REMERTE 9328 66.5 105.0 2059 10
Convertible bonds RRES - 69.0 - - -
Amounts due to related parties  JEEERE 7 2R 56.9 919 M3 - -
17773 357.8 2,842.9 2,3355 143
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R SRR EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
() Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate carrying
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
HK$914.3 million (2016: HK$774.7 million). Taking
into account the Group's financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid within
one year (2016: within one year) after the reporting
date in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time,
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
of HK$927.9 million will be repaid within one year
(2016: HK$787.6 million within one year).

The amounts included above for the variable interest
rate instruments are subject to change if changes in
actual interest rates differ to those estimated at the
end of the reporting period.

3.2 Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remained unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank borrowings and overdrafts, other borrowings
and convertible bonds disclosed in Note 29, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company, comprising capital, various reserves and
accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital management (continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. The directors of the Company also balance the
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share repurchases as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Fair value estimation
Fair value measurements and valuation process

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company determines the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 and 2 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation for financial instruments that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis. The Chief Financial Officer and
his senior executives work closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model.

The Chief Financial Officer engages the external valuers to
perform the valuations of the convertible bonds required
for financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial instruments. As a part of the
valuation process, the Chief Financial Officer reports the
findings to the board of directors of the Company semi-
annually, in line with the Group’s interim and annual
reporting dates.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used
in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities
are disclosed above.

AR B ER AR RTEE

3 SRUERER (8)

3.2

33

EeRREBERAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB ERARMIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRtEREIR (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AREME (&)
Fair value measurements and valuation process ATEFERGERR (&)
(continued)
The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments TERAINMAEER =T —+tF
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2017 by level of the +ZA=+—HBERAFEIERZ
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. eI A BBRF=EAFEMA
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair 2 TEZRABBERE
value hierarchy as follows: DeABABARBELNTEER
WD RAT =45
. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . hEET S LHEREEN AR
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). BmE CREARE) (B—
) e
e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level o  BRE—BIPEHREIN
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either BEESBENTEE (A
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived B S (AR ERE
from prices) (level 2). HBRmEmAEB(E=
) o
e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o WIHRERAIERETSHE
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) ErWEEXBEHAE
(level 3). (B ra B EREAE) (F
=)
Fair value Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets/ (financial liabilities) Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s)
SHEE/ (2RARE) RATABNATE ATEER  BERNREEHALE
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
E-t% —E-RE
+ZA=+-B +ZA=1+-H
HK$M HK$M
BEATL BEATL
1) Metal commodities future contracts classified as derivative 0.9 1.5 Level 1 Quoted bid commodity futures prices on
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (1.8) (4.5) £-% the London Metal Exchange
REREERABRRTARAMEERIAL RALBR IR BERREEAR
tBEERRERN
2) Metal commodities future contracts classified as derivative 44 15 Level 2 Par method, taking actively traded
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (9.9) (13.1) -0 forward rates into account

REREREEBRTARATEERTAY
tEERAERH
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

(continued)

RE SRR

TRIRREIR (8)
33 AFEME (H&)
AFEFERGERR (&)

Fair value Valuation technique(s)

Financial assets/ (financial liabilities) Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s)

SREAE/ (£RER) RATBBANATE ATERE HERGRTEEAZE

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
5% —E-E
+TZA=t—-B +ZA=t-H
HK$M HK$M

REAT BEET

3) Metal commodities options classified as derivate 03 - Level 1 Quoted bid commodities options prices
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet -8 on the London Metal Exchange.

REREEGBRPARANESRIAZ RILERSFFEC ERRREAE
EAmE
4) Foreign currency forward contracts classified as derivative 0.5 4.9 Level 2 Future cash flows are estimated based on
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (10.5) 0.2) -8 forward exchange rates (from observable
REREEARRTABAMESRIAL forward exchange rates at the end of
INERERY) the reporting period) and contracted
forward rates.
RERBNME AR (RREHRTER
HERIME K RETHHESR
REEHRRR IR
5) Interest rate swap contracts classified as derivatives @4 (13.7) Level 2 Future cash flow are based on the
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet E-4 present value of the estimated future
iéAﬁE’E BRPAEAITESHIAL cash flows based on observed yield
FlRBHAY curves.
ARRRRDEREHRRE LR
RE(BERERNDRHR) -

6) Embedded derivative components of convertible bonds - - Level 3 Binomial Option Pricing Model. The key
(note (i) =1 inputs are the Company's share price,
nHRREFRARTEIASS expected volatility, dividend yield,

(B () option life and risk free rate.
CHSREERN - TEAAEEAR
ARARE BHRD REEEE-
HESRREERTE.

7) Contingent consideration payable (note (ii)) (186.5) (158.1) Level 3 Primary based on the present value of the
e ARE (K& i) =M estimated future cash flow.

IRERMERRRSRARE-

EERREEGFRLE —Z-tFER

191



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB ERARMIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

Note:

)

The significant unobservable input adopted for the valuation of the
embedded derivative components of convertible bonds include the
expected volatility which is determined based on the average historical
volatility of the Company’s share price as at the date of valuation.
If the expected volatility to the Binomial Option Pricing Model was
10% higher or lower while all other variables were held constant,
the carrying amount of the embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds would increase by HK$205,000 or decrease by
HK$4,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The detail on fair value measurement of the contingent consideration
was set out in Note 39(a).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are

not necessarily representative of the fair value as the

pricing model used in the fair value valuation of the

embedded derivative components of convertible bonds

involves multiple variable where certain variables are
interdependent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRtEMRMEE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AVEME (&)

NP EFERMEERRF (F)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

REFAEERBERERNRAFE

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated

balance sheet. e
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-% -t E=R st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET HERT HE®BnT BHEBE=R
As at 31 December 2017 R-Z—+E+-f=1+—8
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABENEREE
through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets PTHEEMERE 1.2 4.9 - 6.1
Financial liabilities at fair value BRAVEGABENERER
through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities fTEEmER (1.8) (25.1) - (26.9)
Contingent consideration payable EASARE - - (186.5) (186.5)
As at 31 December 2016 RZZE-—R"E+-ZR=+—H
Financial assets at fair value BRAVESFABRNERHEE
through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets TEEMERE 15 6.4 - 7.9
Financial liabilities at fair value BRAVEGIABENEHER
through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities fTEEMERE (4.5) (27.0) - (31.5)
Embedded derivative components of [k E%H 2 A
convertible bonds TETIAESS - - - -
Contingent consideration payable [EfT kA RIE - - (158.1) (158.1)

EeRREBERAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

There were no transfers between the three levels during
either of the years ended 31 December 2017 or 2016.

Of the total losses or gains for the current year included in
consolidated statement of profit or losses, fair value gain
of HK$4,000 (2016: HK$9.6 million) related to embedded
derivative components of convertible bonds held at the end
of the reporting period. The fair value losses or gains are
included in other gains/(losses), net.

The management considers that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities
(a) Financial assets

The following financial assets are subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements.

RE SRR

3 SRUEARER (&)

34 HETHEERSRMAR

(@ =®MEE
UTEREESEE 7R
BT FREE LT K
LB EARR -

Related amounts not net off

Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised  of financial balance sheet
Gross financial assets  RAGAEEEERIKRY
amounts of liabilities ~ presented BBLE
recognised et off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2017 assets  balance sheet balance sheet  instruments received amount
RGREE
BERNBY  RGREE
BB EERER  ARREIN Bl
RZE-tE+ZA=+-H CREELE BESE SHEERA $RIE BReEAR E
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEET BEAR BE#R BE#R BE#R BEER
Pledged bank deposits BEREAER 95.0 - 95.0 (204) - 746
Derivative financial assets ~ 1T£4BEE
- Foreign currency forward ~ —JMEREA L)
contracts 0.5 - 0.5 (0.4) - 0.1
- Metal commodities futre  —42BERESHAN
contracts 6.2 (0.9) 53 (4.4) - 0.9
- Metal commodities options ~ —% B & 03 - 03 - - 03
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R SRR EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRERERE (&)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 BHERMEEREMAR
liabilities (continued) (#&)
(a) Financial assets (continued) () =@MEE(H)

Related amounts not net off

Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised ~ of financial balance sheet
Gross financial assets  ARNEGAAEBERNRY
amounts of liabilities presented RELE
recognised  net off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Finandial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2016 assets  balance sheet  balance sheet  instruments received amount
REEEE
BERIRY  REREE
ERA ERIER BEREIN BHAR
RZE-"E+ZA=1+-H SREELR BEZE SRARTAE SRMIE  REKEER e
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEET  EEET  BEET  BEER  BEEAT  BREER

Pledged bank deposits BEERTER a7 - 427 (345.9) - 768
Cash and cash equivalents  H& REEEEEE 16834 (26.7) 1,65.7 - - 1,656.7

Derivative financial assets ~ $T4 4 RAE
~ Foreign currency forward  —SMEREAH

contracts 13 (6.4) 49 0.2) - 4.7
- Metal commodities future —2BEREHAH
contracts 8.6 (5.6) 30 (2.4) - 06
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)
(b)

Financial liabilities
The following financial liabilities are subject to

offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements.

3 &RA

RE SRR

nE s (&)

34 BEETHEERTHMAR
(%)
b) SEMaRE

TS EE ESEN T3

HBITR PR ER IR

SR 38 AR o

Related amounts not net off in

Net amounts the consolidated
Gross amount  of financial balance sheet
of recognised liabilities ~ RREGEEEEERIBH
Gross amounts financial assets ~ presented BBLE
of recognised  net off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2017 liabilities ~ balance sheet ~ balance sheet instruments received amount
RGREE
BERNBY  RGREE
BRR  CERER  ARREIY EHER
RZE-tE+ZA=+-H SHEESE EESE CSHARTA $RIE  REEAR E
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEER BEER BEER BEER BEAER BEAT
Borrowings &R 4,155.2 - 4,155.2 (204) - 4,1348
Derivative financial liabilites 1744 B &%
- Foreign currency forward — —SMEREIAY)
contracts 105 - 105 (0.1) - 104
- Metal commodities futre ~ ~2BERESHAN
contracts 126 (0.9) "7 - - "7
- Interest rate swap contracts  —F|ZHEHAY 41 - 47 (1) - -
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R SRR EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities (continued)

(b) Financial liabilities (continued)

As at 31 December 2016

Gross amount
of recognised

Gross amounts  financial assets

net off in the
consolidated
balance sheet
REEERE
BERIBH
[RE e

RE-RE+-R=t-H

tRARRE REEH
HKSM HKSM
BERT BEET

3 SRUEARER (&)

34 BEHEREEREHAR
(&)
b) EWEE(E)

Related amounts not net off in

Net amounts the consolidated
of financial balance sheet
liabilities ~ RRGEEEBBERIGRE
presented RELE

in the Cash
consolidated Financial collateral Net
balance sheet  instruments received amount

BEXRZHN BIRE
SRARTE SBIE  ReHAER FE
HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEET  BEET  REET  BEER

Borrowings R 5,017.9

Derivative financial liabilities #7% % B & (&
- Foreign currency forward ~ —SNEREA L)

contracts 6.6 (6.4)
~ Metal commodities future  —4BAERELHAN

contracts 232 (5.6)
- Interest rate swap LS,

contract 137

50179 (345.9) - 4,672.0
02 (0.2) - -
176 (8.5 (7.2) 1.9
137 - - 137

The gross amounts of the recognised financial assets
and financial liabilities as presented in the Group's
consolidated statement of balance sheet, both of
which have been disclosed in the above tables, are
measured as fair value.

The disclosures set out in the tables above include
commodities futures contracts and options traded
through brokers, and foreign currency contracts
and interest rate swap contracts contracted with
banks and cash and cash equivalents. The related
collaterals are included in margin deposits. If a default
event (included but not limited to default payment,
liquidation, bankruptcy or insolvency) occurs, the
brokers and the banks are able to exercise the right
to offset against any favourable contracts and/or the
collaterals placed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(@) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
and other assets that have indefinite useful lives have
suffered any impairment (Note 17). Other assets
that are subject to depreciation and amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amounts of an asset or a cash-
generating unit have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations or its fair value less costs
of disposal, whichever is higher. These calculations
require the use of estimates. The value-in-use
calculations primarily use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets, in general covered
five years, were approved by management and
estimated terminal values at the end of the five-
year period. There are a number of assumptions and
estimates involved for the preparation of cash flow
projections for the period covered by the approved
budget and the estimated terminal value. Key
assumptions include the expected growth in revenues
and operating margin, growth rates and selection
of discount rates, to reflect the risks involved and
the earnings multiple that can be realised for the
estimated terminal value. Management prepared
the financial budgets reflecting actual and prior year
performance and market development expectations.
Judgment is required to determine key assumptions
adopted in the cash flow projections and changes to
key assumptions can significantly affect these cash
flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.
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nv-ﬁ

B BHRMEE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(b)

(0

Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired through business combinations and
fair value of contingent consideration at the
date of acquisition

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations, which requires the Group
to record assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
their fair values on the date of acquisition. Significant
judgment and estimate are used to determine the
completion date and fair value of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. The valuation involves
estimating future cash flows from the acquired
business, determining appropriate discount rates,
asset lives and other assumptions.

Asset retirement obligations

Various pieces of land was leased by the Group for
operating scrap yards and preparation of the land
might be needed to make it appropriate for operated
as scrap yards.

It was the Group's contractual obligation to bring
the land to its original condition as the Group is
not the owner of the land. The Group estimates the
expected costs necessary to dismantle the scrap yards
by assessing the discount rate as well as expected
increment in future cost which might lead to changes
in the provisions recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(d)

Estimation of provision for impairment of
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment
of receivables based on an assessment of the
collectability of receivables. Provisions for impairment
are applied to receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Management assesses the collectability of those
past due receivables based on the credit history
customers and current market conditions. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of
receivables and doubtful debt expense in the period
in which such estimate is changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(e)

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain,
such as deductibility of compensation payments to
customers or accessibility of deemed royalty income
in certain countries. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
would impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimates, such difference will impact the recognition
of deferred tax assets and income tax in the period in
which such estimates are changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated cost to completion and selling expenses.
Management of the Group reviews the inventories
listing on a category-by-category basis at the end
of the reporting period, and assesses whether the
cost of the finished products will exceed their net
realisable value. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based primarily
on the latest resale value and quoted prices on
applicable commodity exchanges. If the market price
of inventories are to decline, additional write down
may be required. The Group's Inventory Management
reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting
period.

Fair value of derivatives and other financial
assets

The fair value of financial instruments and other
financial assets (including embedded derivative
components of convertible bonds and options over
shares in joint ventures to joint venture partners) that
are not traded in an active market is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques and making
assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each reporting date.

The fair values of the embedded derivative
components of convertible bonds are determined
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model adjusted
for specific terms and conditions of the respective
instruments. Major inputs into the model include
quoted market prices, expected
volatility, dividend yields and the option’s life.

risk free rates,
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nVT

B BHRMEE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Fair value of derivatives and other financial
assets (continued)

The fair value of options over shares of non-listed
entities are determined using discounted cash-flow
method, which requires the determination of an
appropriate discount rate as well as assumptions
regarding the cash-flow projections.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets by reference to the estimated
periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets. These
estimates are based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets of similar nature and
functions. Management will adjust the depreciation
and amortisation charges where useful lives vary
from previously estimates. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in useful lives and therefore
depreciation and amortisation expense in the future
periods.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue represents the amounts received or
receivable for the sales of metal scrap, net of sales related taxes,
during the year.

There are differences in the basis of operating and reportable
segments from the last annual consolidated financial statements.

Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Before the completion of acquisition of the entire equity interest
in Scholz Holding, a world's leading metal recycler in Germany, in
December 2016, the legacy Group was originally and principally
engaged in metal recycling, including the recycling of mixed metal
scrap into copper scrap, steel scrap, aluminum scrap, iron scrap
and other metal scrap, foundry business and wholesales business
in Greater China region. In the previous year ended 31 December
2016, the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM")
reviewed the internal report based on gross profit/(loss) derived
from different business activities and different products to assess
performance and allocate resources of the Group.

After the acquisition of Scholz Group, the Group has extended
its metal recycling business from Greater China to worldwide
(including Europe and America). The main business activity
of the Group is metal recycling while foundry and wholesales
businesses become immaterial to the Group. From 2017 onward,
the management organises the Group and reviews the Group's
financial performance and allocates resources on a geographic
basis and hence the operating and reportable segments are
identified based on the location of main operation of legacy
Group (“Greater China” region) and Scholz Group (Europe and
America, collectively known as “Non-Greater China” region).

In current year, the Group’s CODM assesses the performance
of the operating segments based on the measure of segment
profit/(loss). This measurement basis excludes the effects of
non-operating gains/(losses), such as gain on bargain purchase
on acquisition of a subsidiary, gain/(loss) on fair value change
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
measure also excludes centralised costs such as the Group’s key
managements’ remunerations and other central administrative
expenses. Finance income, finance costs, income tax expenses
and those unallocated income and expenses are not included in
the result for each operating segment that is reviewed by the
Group's CODM.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE PSRRI

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The comparative segment information for the year ended 31
December 2016 and as at 31 December 2016 has been restated
to align with the presentation of the current year's segment
information disclosure.

Total segment assets exclude deferred income tax assets,
fixed return investment, tax recoverable, derivative financial
instruments and cash and cash equivalents which are managed
centrally. Information relating to segment liabilities is not
disclosed as such information is not regularly reported to the
CODM.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
are the same as the Group's accounting policies. Inter-segment
sales are charged at prevailing market price.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following tables present revenue and segment profit/(loss)

information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 respectively.

RE SRR

D EER (F)
TERANBIEBAEERE-"2—+
ER-E-AFt-AZ+—BLF
]2 R E s R B (B
BB R -

For the year ended
BENTRHLER
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
ZB-tEtZAZt+-8 “T-RET-A=t-R
Non- Non-
Greater Greater Greater Greater
China China  Unallocated Total China China  Unallocated Total
KPE  FAPE REE HAPE
BE BE  K2E b e HE AR i
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEET FEER BE%r HERR  BERT  BERT  BEERN BEER
Revenue Y
External sales ShabeE 48136 14,2606 - 190142 32114 - - 314
Inter-segment sales PRREE - (832 - (5832 - - - -
Total segment revenue AHlESE 48136 13,6774 - 184910 32114 - - 32114
Seqment profit/loss) PHER/ (BB 2959 4578 169.8 9235 (2435) - (166.0)  (409.5)
Finance income BIA 388 479
Finance costs HBRA (416.1) (82.0)
Profitloss) before incorne tax RERHREET/ (B8 546.2 (44356)
Income tax expense FBREY (110.6) 04
Profit(oss) for the year EREE/ (BB 4356 (4432)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHRT
expenses (71.7) (2812 (40.2) (399.1) (60.7) - - (60.7)
Dividend income REBA - - 6.1 6.1 - - 85 85
Fair value loss on BATE MBS
financial assets at fair value through £ B EEATARKE
profit or loss - - (17.2) (17.2) - - (102.0) (102.0)
Gain on bargain purchase on WEFRAZERRERS
acquisition of subsidiaries - - 96.8 96.8 - - 889 88.9
Unallocated exchange loss RARINERE - - - - - - (70.6) (70.6)
Gainf(loss) on disposal of property,  (HEWE - B REE AN
plant and equipment, investment ~ EMREE LR THER
properties and leasehold land and 24/ (§8)
[and use rights - - 2105 2105 - - (383 (383)
Gain on disposal of assets classified  HEHBAR{EHELE
a held for sale ¢ - - 385 385 - - - -
Provision for impairment on property, 71 BERFZEUREEL
plant and equipment and leasehold R it BE L
land and land use rights FERRE - - (106.7) (106.7) - - - -
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R SRR EE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER(E8)
Segment assets PHWEE
Reconciliation of segment assets to total assets as at 31 RZE—tF+_A=+—HBEZ=Z
December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are provided as follows: —ANFETZ A=+ B BEEREE
REMEERET
As at
BEUTRHLEE
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
ZE-tf+Zh=1-H ZE-RETZAZT-H
Non- Non-
Greater Greater Greater Greater
China China Total China China Total
GE YL RRE  FARE

HE HE Eoh & HE B
HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M
EBBt HEBn BEAn  BERAT  BEEET BHEBR
(restated) (restated) (restated)

(mE5)  (BEH)  (BE3)

Segment assets HHEE 3,036.5 75418 10,5783 2,048 6,899.0 9,603.8
Deferred income tax assets BRFEHEE 168.1 1774
Fixed return investment BEmHRRE 339.0 316.8
Tax recoverable MREHE 258 231
Derivative financial instruments fTEe®IA 6.1 7.9
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEEE 976.4 1,65.7
Total assets BEBE 12,093.7 11,785.7
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred
tax assets (there are no employee benefit assets and rights arise
contracts), and analysed by geographic regions as follows:

RE SRR

D EER (F)

B )
FRBEETREERTARELHS
BAE (HEREAVELBEENE
ERAF)  RBEAFOT

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016

R=B—tF RoTAF
+=A=+-8 +=B=t-§

HK$M HK$M

BEBTT BEBT

(restated)

(&)

Asia (Note) TN (FFRE) 1,127.3 1,284.8
Europe BOM 4,068.0 3,106.4
America =M 586.7 562.7
Total st 5,782.0 4,953.9

The analysis of revenue by geographic regions is as follows:

iR DBz WD

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-AF

HK$M HK$M

BEBT BEBTT

Asia (Note) oM (BEE) 4,813.6 3,211.4
Europe BOM 11,626.4 -
America EM 2,051.0 -
Total BEr 18,491.0 3,211.4

Note: Asia represents Hong Kong and the PRC

MiFE: M EEREEARTE
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R SRR EE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SDEER (&)
Analysis of revenue by category REBER B2 WED T

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLHEE

2017 2016
“E—tF —E-REF
HK$M HK$M
BEERT A&EBT
Metal recycling & B E K
— Ferrous metal —REtE 9,616.0 490.3
- Non-ferrous metal - BELE 7,792.3 2,076.7
Forging and foundry s RS 259.8 216.4
Others HAb 822.9 428.0
Total it 18,491.0 3.211.4
Information about major customers FEEFHESR
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's REBEZE_ZT—+FR_FT-RF+A
revenue during the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. =t+—HLEE TES-FPERA
EEUE10%3 A Fo
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RE SRR

OTHER INCOME H A A
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
HK$M HK$M
BEAT AEBT
Rental income He A 21.2 -
Rental income from investment properties &% £ A
(Note 16) (Kzz16) 3.6 43
Government grants R 48 B 0.3 1.4
Dividend income & B A 6.1 8.5
Other income from related parties P B BA B 77 /9 E A g A
(Note 37(a)) (K7E37(a)) 2.6 -
Service income AR 75 A 13.4 -
Compensation from insurance coverage RExEE 19.0
Others H A 47.7 1.
113.9 15.2
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R SRR EE

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 7 Hiplas (BER)F8R
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT
(Losses)/gains on fair value change of: NEFEES (FE), WS
— derivatives financial instruments TSR T A (15.5) 3.3
- financial assets at fair value through —BATEFAERZ
profit or loss SREE (1.7) (105.3)
— embedded derivative components of —AMmRESF ZRAR
convertible bonds (Note 29(b)) TTETAREZS
(FFEE29(b)) - 9.6
Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net FE N Wz (E518) F4E 1.3 (298.2)
Provision for impairment of trade and H 5 N B fE W R IE 2
other receivables, net of reversal WERE (FORR[E#) (49.3) 6.6
Provision for impairment of property, plant #1% BiE M & 2
and equipment (Note 14) HERE (MEE14) (14.3) -
Provision for impairment of leasehold land & 1 b [z +-Hb{F B 2
and land use rights (Note 21(e)) EEREE (HEE21()) (92.4) -
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME BEMREZ
plant and equipment Wz (E8) 16.0 (0.9)
Gain on disposal of investment properties  HEREWE 7 Wz 254.5 -
Gain on disposal of assets classified EENDHEARBIELEEE
as held for sale & 38.5 -
Loss on disposal of leasehold land and land H & & 4 1 & + 3 7 42
use rights ZEE - (37.4)
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition WHEFARIZHERBE KR
of subsidiaries (Note 39) (FH5E39) 96.8 88.9
Others H 3.2 (1.7)
237.1 (335.1)
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

8 RMUEBEIDZMRX

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$M HK$M
HEBETT BEBT
Changes in inventories of finished goods &k RFEE 2 &8 (107.9) (243.8)
Raw materials and consumables used BT B R R K H FE @ 14,784.7 3,121.8
Provision for/(utilisation of provision for) GERE (BRRE)FE
inventories, net (Note 22) (PfF3E22) 5.4 (76.0)
Employee benefit expense (Note 9) EERMMZ (MFE9) 1,135.3 185.5
Depreciation and amortisation expenses mEREHEMAS 399.1 60.7
Legal and professional expenses (Note (i) &R & ZHFH X (HEG)) 133.6 106.6
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B A 57 B
- Audit services —ZE R 22.6 10.2
- Non-audit services —FEZER 1.0 6.7
Other expenses Htpx 1,653.5 129.7
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling — $#5& BZN ~ 75§ K #4 & 5 2 A
expenses and administrative expenses MITH A #58 18,027.3 3,301.4
Note: B aE
(i) Legal and professional expenses included non-audit service fees to auditors of (i) EERBEMT D SR B NI ZB RS

HK$19.3 million (2016: Nil).

B1,030BB L (ZS—~F &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9

Employee benefit expense during the year are as follows:

BB @AM

FARREBRMFESAT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$M HK$M

HEBT BEBT

Wages and salaries TERF® 972.9 167.1

Other termination benefits H B AR A 2.1 2.5

Social security costs FEERBAR 6.6 6.5
Pension costs — defined contribution RIRE KA —FE #HKE 2

plans (Note (a)) (Ki&E@)) 6.2 4.8
Pension costs — defined benefit plans RIRE KA - R EEFFS

(Note 35) (B$5E35) 0.9 -

Other employee benefits HiEBEAH 146.6 4.6

Total employee benefit expense EERAMZ B 1,135.3 185.5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 9
(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans

Contributions totaling HK$6.2 million (2016: HK$4.8
million) were payable to the fund at the year-end.

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include two (2016: three) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in

Note 38. The emoluments payable to the remaining three
(2016: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

RE SRR

EERNFHE (&)

(a)

(b)

RBAKE - REMRTE
HHA 62088 T (ZF— R
FAB0B AT AN FREEE

NEE -

EuBRESHFMAL

FAAEBZENESHFMAL
BIEM S B #H IR T38RI 5
MZMUER(ZT—RF: =
fir) - FRNEFFHT =M (=ZF
—RNE M) AT ZBEINT

Salaries, bonus and other allowances

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

¥& ALK EAhREL
RKE A — FE ARG S

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

1,500,001/ 7L £2,000,000/8 7T
2,000,00178 7L £2,500,000/8 7T
3,500,001 L £4,000,000/8 7T
4,000,001 7T 24,500,000/ 7T

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E—RF

HK$M HK$M

BAEBT BHEET

12.5 4.0

12.5 4.0
&N FIAT&EE:

Number of Number of

individual individual

AE A

- 1

- 1

1 —

2 —
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R SRR EE

10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 BAFSAK AN H5E
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$M HK$M
BEAT AEBT
Interest income from bank deposits RITFERZ A EWA 14.7 5.9
Interest income from loan to ) JIE R Sk S B (URBE AT ) BT R
Scholz Group (pre-acquisition) Z R B A - 25.2
Interest income from related parties B BT 2 B WA
(Note 37(a)) (FF#¥E37(a)) 1.9 -
Interest income from fixed return & E Bl 1% & 2 F B A
investment 22.2 16.8
Finance income RN 38.8 47.9
Interest expense on loan from the REEEZERARNERZ
immediate holding company MEF X (KMiFE37())
(Note 37(a)) (0.2) (3.7)
Interest expense on loan from an REFEEZEBRARNERZ
intermediate holding company FEFZ (MFE37())
(Note 37(a)) (1.4) (1.0)
Interest expense on loan from RERBETHER M EME
related parties (Note 37(a)) (M5E37(a)) (1.5) -
Interest expense on bank loans, RITER BIRENEERZ
overdrafts and bills payable MERXZ (168.5) (36.8)
Interest expense on note payable SRENFIENFERX (218.3) (6.9)
Interest on finance lease BEHEE ZFE (10.5) -
Effective interest expenses on HitnERZERF SR
other borrowings (13.7) (22.7)
Effective interest expenses on RRERCERF SRS
convertible bond (Note 29(b)) (M 5E29(b)) (2.0) (10.9)
Finance costs BRI (416.1) (82.0)
Finance costs, net B 75 B AN 5 58 (377.3) (34.1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT")
and the relevant EIT Implementation Regulations, the tax rate of
PRC EIT has been provided at the rate of 25% (2016: 25%) on
the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Germany and USA income tax have been provided at rate of
approximately 30% and 39% respectively on the estimated
assessable profit in current year.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates respectively. Income
tax expense is recognised based on management’s estimate of
the weighted average annual income tax rate expected for the full
financial year.

11

AR B ER AR RTEE

Frefi (), H%
EBFERBIREF ARG ERFUEF
ERE165% (ZF—/R"F:16.5% )&
R

BEFBRCEMRSRE([DEMSE
1) RABRA S EFTS R E D] -
EFERTHETIREFE NG R
AR R25% (Z T —NEFE:125%)
ETIREE-

ERREBEMERE D BIEAFE G
JERRFL i A 430% M 39% m i R Hz
e

BINE R 2 RIRTH IR A R B & FrEE
RZBITRERFFEARFE 2 AR
A o P S A B ST O AR 1B TR 4 B A
BN R TR RO DA S F R S R
(AT HERR

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HKS$M HK$M
BEET BEET
Current income tax: BNERFT1S R IE -
Germany = (85.5) -
PRC EIT RIS (6.5) -
Hong Kong profits tax BEENGEH (3.1 (0.1
USA EH (12.9) -
Other jurisdictions H iRl AR 1.7 0.1)
(106.3) (0.2)
Under provision in prior years: RBTEFERETT:
Germany == (20.2) -
PRC EIT R RS - (0.1)
Hong Kong profits tax BABNFH - (0.1)
(20.2) (0.2)
Deferred income tax credit (Note 31) Eﬁﬁﬁ{%fﬂﬁﬁifﬁﬁgﬂ 77777777777 159 08
Income tax (expense)/credit e (Ax), % (110.6) 0.4

EeRREBERAH
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R SRR EE

M

12

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT (continued) 11

The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profit/(loss) of the consolidated

entities as follows:

FIsfi (X)), B%e (&)
NEBMBRFFEFEATEN, (E1B)
HEFREANGEETEERN, (HE)
RINEF R EMEENIERESEZE
BIENE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HKSM HK$M
BEART BEBT
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETISHANEF, (BE) 546.2 (443.6)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates 1238 A R MR A B 2R s I Y
applicable to profits in the respective N H B SR =+ B A I8
countries 166.0 (74.0)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7~ A] FOF% 53 sx 9 1 75 57 £2
tax purpose 185.3 89.4
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERRMBANBEZE
tax purpose (122.2) (20.2)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AR MR ERFEZED
differences not recognised Mg 2 20.6 (16.8)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBIBEBEENOHBSZE 81.8 23.5
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses A2 B R R IEEE A
previously not recognised M (208.5) (2.5)
Tax impact on share of results from HEGBERAREGEDRE
an associate and joint ventures HECRBEE (32.6) -
Under provision in respect of BEFEREIR
prior years 20.2 0.2
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year FRBEHAY, (Ef) 110.6 (0.4)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 30.4% (2016:
16.7%). The increase is caused by a change in the distribution of
profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in respective countries.

DIVIDENDS

12

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2017 and 2016, nor

has any dividend been proposed by the Company since the end

of the reporting period in respect of the year ended 31 December

2017 and 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

RE SRR

13 GREN, (FHE)

Basic (@ E=X
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the BREAREF, (E18) DRAR
profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders of the Company by FIRERE (L AR F R, (E1E)
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue Wﬁxﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁrx‘m%ﬁi’ﬂiﬁlﬁ
during the year. Hi5H-
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
HKSM HK$M
BEAR AEBT
Profit/(loss) HF(BE)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable AR B % SR E(G AN FE
to shareholders of the Company wmA L (EE) 426.8 (439.9)
Number of shares IR &
Weighted average number of B TS @R E T8 A
ordinary shares in issue 1,611,426,900 1,612,911,939
Basic earnings/(loss) per share 5F /(&)
(expressed in HK$) ( TR ) 0.26 (0.27)
Diluted (b) #F
The Group has no potentially dilutive shares outstanding REBEE-_Z—+F+_RA=1—

during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Diluted loss per share for last year equals basic loss per
share as the exercise of the outstanding share options and
convertible bonds would be anti-dilutive.

EeRREBERAH

H ¢¢E$%II?§E§§H@E
ERD -

EFEREEBASNERER
B8 ERTTERARITERRE
RABBRESFAARESEE -
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R SRR EE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 % BB MRE

Office
furniture
Plant and and Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment  improvements in progress Total
BLREER HEnz
BF HRERES e £k fEgIi @5t
HK$M HK$M HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT REAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
At 1 January 2016 RZE-E-A-H
Cost P2 13 191.9 23 515 2445 7515
Accumulated depreciation 2518 (45.2) (96.0) (16.2) (46.0) - (203.4)
Net book amount FEFE 19.1 95.9 6.1 5.5 2445 548.1
Year ended 31 December 2016~ HE-T—7
TZAZT-HIEEER
Opening net book amount ENZEETE 196.1 959 6.1 55 2445 548.1
Acquisition of subsidiaries b SENGIEREL)!

(Note 39) (restated) (&mE50) 1,779.7 5484 559 - 53.0 24370
Additions NE 8.9 28.0 35 02 86.6 1272
Transfer upon completion R EEE 1483 826 - - (2309 -
Transfer to land use rights BREZIHERR

(Note 15) (BizE15) - - - - (92.1) (92.1)
Transfer to investment properties ~ ERERENE

(Note 16) (Miz16) (44.2) (12.1) - - - (56.3)
Transfer to asset held for sale BRIRIENELE

(Note 21) (Mg (09 - - - - (09
Government grants B - (12) - - - (12)
Disposal it - 2.1) (0.2) - - (23)
Depreciation charge TERX (11.4) (25.1) (32 22 - (419
Currency translation differences  ER £ 219 (13.6) 04) - 83) (442
Closing net book amount (restated) &% 2 R F(E (LE7) 2,054.6 7008 617 35 528 28734
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"ETZA=1-H
Cost (restated) AR (BE7]) 2,069.8 806.5 795 517 528 3,0603
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE (152) (105.7) (17.8) (48.2) - (186.9)
Net book amount (restated) REFE(8E3]) 2,054.6 7008 617 35 528 28734
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RE SRR

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

14 WE BB MERE (8)

Office
furniture
Plant and and Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment  improvements in progress Total
HOBE HENE
BF  HERHE EL &8 ERIR @it
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BE%n BE#R BE#R BE#R BE#T BE#T
At 1 January 2017 RZZ-t5-f-8
Cost (restated) AR (BE5)) 2,069.8 806.5 795 51.7 528 3,060.3
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (15.2) (105.7) (17.8) (48.2) - (186.9)
Net book amount (restated) BESE(HE7) 2,054.6 700.8 617 35 528 28734
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T-+£
TZA=T-BLEEE
Opening net book amount (restated) 417 REF(E (L E3]) 2,0546 7008 617 35 528 28734
Acquistion of subsidiaries WEET R (H3390))

(Note 39(b)) 35 70.9 20 - 17 386.1
Additions E 51.0 169.8 387 18.2 151.6 4293
Transfer upon completion RERkER 40.1 623 48 36 (1108) -
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE (Wi6)

(Note 16) (0.1) - - - - (0.1)
Impairment loss (Note 7) FEEE (W) - (143) - - - (143)
Disposal e @22) (75.5) (38) (13) - (1228)
Depreciation charge nERR (133.6) (196.4) (36.5) (3.0) - (369.5)
Currency translation differences EXZE 292.7 3.1 8.7 - 27 3712
Closing net hook amount ERCEEFE 25740 7907 756 210 98.0 3,559.3
At 31 December 2017 RF-tFTZA=t-A
Cost i 2,709.6 943.7 109.2 319 9.0 3,892.4
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERRESR

impairment loss (135.6) (153.0) (33.6) (10.9 - (333.9)
Net book amount SEFE 2,574.0 790.7 75.6 210 9.0 3,559.3

EeRREBERAH
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R SRR EE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 %% /= K&k (&)

Notes:

Depreciation expense of HK$250.3 million (2016: HK$13.6 million) has been charged
in cost of sales, HK$4.8 million (2016: HK$5.1 million) in distribution and selling
expenses and HK$114.4 million (2016: HK$23.2 million) in administrative expenses.

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2017 mainly comprises new metal scrap
manufacturing plant being constructed in the PRC and new waste processing plant
being constructed in Germany.

Buildings and plant with a net book value of HK$2,054.5 million (2016: HK$940.8
million (as restated) were pledged to banks to secure the banking facilities granted to
the Group (Note 33).

Plant and machinery includes the following amounts where the Group is a lessee
under a finance lease:

B

Hr & B £ 2185,0308 8 L (ZF —7RF :1,3608
BT RIS ER AR 4808 T (ZT—RF:
51087870 ) R 9 85 & 88 & B X Bk R 1181,4408
BIL(ZZE—NF:2,32088m) RITHREZM
I}/%o

R-E—tF+_A=Z+—BENERTIREIER
FEREBAERBERRT AN S EENEETHAR
R TR BR R HOR B IR IR R

AR F{E20185,4508 8 7T (—F — /34 : 984,080
BB K857 RFRIBEEATRIT ER
AEBERRITRE MER (FFE33) -

BERESBEATEE AEERET —BRE
HARAEBEA

2017 2016

EY my —Exf

HK$M HK$M

HEBR BEAT

Cost — capitalised finance leases MA-B2RERY 166.3 145.5
Accumulated depreciation R E (61.5) -
Net book amount BREEE 104.8 145.5

The Group leases various plant and machinery under non-cancellable finance lease
agreements. The leases are between 1 and 6 years, ownership of the assets lie within
the Group.
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RE SRR

15 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 15 ME N HbF AR
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid REBRTIOE BN ESETANEE
operating lease payments and their net book values are analysed HENFEEERFESTHOT
as follows:
2017 2016
e L
HK$M HK$M
BEERT BEAT
At 1 January n—HA—H 529.3 520.5
Additions NE - 17.3
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) UeBg 7R &) (Mi5E39) - 19.8
Amortisation charge B 545 > (13.2) (14.8)
Disposal HE - (45.1)
Impairment (Note 21(e)) A (FFFE21()) (92.4) -
Transfer from property, EEAME BRERZE
plant and equipment (Note 14) (FF7E14) - 92.1
Transfer to assets classified as ERESBEARIELEEE
held for sale (Note 21) (Pft&E21) (38.3) (0.2)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 16) #E R =R EWE (Ki5E16) - (31.9)
Currency translation differences E X =% 27.5 (28.4)
At 31 December Rt+ZA=+—8H 412.9 529.3
The Group has pledged and land use rights with a net book value REEEEMEEFEA3E3,3908 5
of HK$333.9 million (2016: HK$317.6 million) to secure banking T (ZZE—R"F 3181,7608 8L L
facilities granted to the Group (Note 33). HEAE (FRRNEEERMNRITHE

MR (PFE33)

ESBREEERAT —E-—tEEHR 223



224

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR EE

02y =]

16

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 IEWH
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEET
At 1 January m—R—H 81.8 21.0
Transfer from property, plant and EEAEME BRELRZE
equipment (Note 14) (FfF7E14) 0.1 56.3
Transfer from land use rights (Note 15) EE G T A (KEE15) - 31.9
Depreciation charge mERX (4.9) (4.0)
Transfer to assets classified as EREDBEARIELEEE
held for sale (Note 21(a)) (FFzE21(a)) - (19.6)
Disposal (Note 40) & (KIE40) (76.2) -
Currency translation differences &5 =% 2.7 (3.8)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 3.5 81.8
Notes: B 5
(i) The above investment properties, which are situated in the PRC (2016: the (i) FERFE(ZT—ARF:PH)NOERE

PRC) are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining useful lives.

(ii) At 31 December 2017, none of the investment properties were pledged for
securing banking facilities granted to the Group (2016: The Group pledged
investment properties with a net book value of HK$55.6 million to secure

banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 33)).

(iii) The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2017 was

HK$52.3 million (2016: HK$259.8 million).

(iv) Rental income from these investment properties recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$3.6 million (2016: HK$4.3 million) (Note 6).

(v) Depreciation expense has been charged to administrative expenses.
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RE ISR

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BEEE

Customers’
relationship
Brandnames, and
Computer patents and suppliers’
Goodwill software licenses relationship Total
w55 EFBEEK
[k ElREH4 KEE (HEEREZ gt
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT BEATL BEAT BEAT
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(BEF) (BE7) (BE7)) (RE5) (BE7)
At 1 January 2016 R-Z-XE-A-H
Cost A - - - - -
Accumulated amortisation EYg i - - - - -
Net book amount EEFE - - - - -
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-F -5
TZA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wi+ A (M5E39)

(Note 39) 690.6 5.4 238.9 73.4 1,008.3
Closing net book amount FREEFE 690.6 5.4 2389 734 1,008.3
At 31 December 2016 RZZB-X

+T=ZA=+-8
Cost AR 690.6 54 2389 734 1,008.3
Accumulated amortisation B i - - - - -
Net book amount EEFE 690.6 5.4 238.9 73.4 1,008.3
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A SRR EE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

17 BVEE (&)

Customers’
relationship
Brandnames, and
Computer patents and suppliers’
Goodwill software licenses relationship Total
w5 EFBEEK
BE EREH KEE HEEREZ @t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT BEATL BEAT BEAT
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE=-ZF—+ %
+TZA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FMREFE (KEF)

(restated) 690.6 5.4 238.9 73.4 1,008.3
Additions HE - 1.0 - - 1.0
Acquisition of subsidiaries YT AT

(Note 39(b)) (PI#E39(b) ) - 1.2 396 17.4 58.2
Amortisation charge BEAY - (2.6) (4.9) (4.0) (11.5)
Currency translation differences [ i Z 88 101.1 0.9 37.9 11.8 151.7
Closing net book amount FREEFE 791.7 5.9 3115 98.6 1,207.7
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tf

+=A=t-8H
Cost AR 7917 8.5 316.4 102.6 1,219.2
Accumulated amortisation RE#H - (2.6) 4.9 4.0) (11.5)
Net book amount FHFE 7917 5.9 3115 98.6 1,207.7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is recognised through the acquisition of Yantai Liheng
Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd * (/& & M ERE
B AR A E]) (“Yantai Liheng”) and Scholz Holding in 2016
with carrying amount of HK$14.7 million (2016: HK$14.7 million)
and HK$777.0 million (2016: HK$675.9 million (as restated))
respectively as at 31 December 2017.

Management reviews the business performance based on
geographic regions. It has identified Asia, Europe and America as
the main regions. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of Yantai
Liheng is allocated to Asian region and that arising from the
acquisition of the Scholz Holding is allocated to Asian, European
and American regions.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the metal recycling business in which the CGU
operates.

17

AR B R AR RTEE

w|ELEE (B)

BEZRENR
BHEDNEAN S NFREELT
BREREARAT ([EexE]) R
IERSRIZRMEER R —tF+=
A=+—H KRHEED R A1,4708 %
T(ZE—RF:1,4708%8 7)) R7E
77008780 (ZF—/NF : 6/87,5908
BT (EEH) ) -

EEERBHECERMEBRR
HE#nEM BNEREEEREEM
B-REUBEEIENEERIEE
oMb B R B WA B R A AR R e
WO REDMN BN REBHE -

ReELRUAYRESRREERER
AEAEE MBRAENERERE
I B HE ) I F B TR B HORR T AT IR
SRR B RFHNRSRANER
TR e At g R R EHE R KA
SHEBBLELBER (REELBML
ERENRG)NRPFIEREER-
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A SRR EE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17 BREE (&)
Impairment tests for goodwill (continued) BEZREIR (&)
For the impairment test for goodwill, the key assumptions, long REABEREANR  FREEFEPEA
term growth rate and discount rate used in the value-in-use WEERR REAERERITHREKE
calculations are disclosed below: RTX:
Asia Europe America
CEW) BOM EYE]
2017 —B—tF
Long term growth rate (Note (i) REPERE (MI5E3) 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate (Note (ii) B AIITIR R (B EEGI)) 10.3% 9.3% 9.3%
Gross profit margin EF=E 9.1%-9.9% 13.4%-13.5% 16.5%
Revenue growth rate U 75 48 & X 9% 4% 4%
Asia Europe America
2016 —B-XFE
Long term growth rate (Note (i) REERR (KIEG)) 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate (Note (ii)) MR ESATHTIR R (M 3EG)) 10.3% 9.3% 9.3%
Gross profit margin EF= 9.1%-9.9%  13.4%-13.5% 16.5%
Revenue growth rate Yz 1 & 9% 4% 4%
Notes: B 3
(i) The long term growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in (i) FFANRBER TERENFMEMTE
industry reports. Bl —Be
(ii) Pre-tax discount rate applied to the pre-tax cash flow forecast. (ii) MR A AT IR 38 R BR B AT IR © R TER -
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A ISR

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 (FRAEREVIERMNRE
EQUITY METHOD
(a) Interestin an associate (@) REZATZER
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
HKS$M HK$M
BEER BEAT
Cost of unlisted investment in REEE QR 2 IE EMIREKAR
an associate (Note) (B 3E) 2.3 2.3
Share of post-acquisition profits FE(RUEE 18 5 7 0.4 0.2
2.7 2.5
Note: DES

Details of the Group's associate at the end of the reporting period are as AEERBERRNBERRAFENT :

follows:
Proportion of
Place of ownership interest
Name of entity principal business held by the Group Principal activity
AEBAE
BERER FEEBHE HEERRLH FEEHR
Poly Metals Company Limited (“Poly Metals”) Hong Kong 20% Trading of metal scrap
BEReBERAR ([ZE]) e BeBRS
Poly Metals is a private company and there is no quoted market price available EBRILARFRERR LA FHT S
for its shares. #iE-
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's WERARBMARBERE & QR 2 #HEZHA
interest in an associate. A
Summarised financial information for an associate —EBE QTR ZMBERRE
Set out below is the summarised financial information for TXIHEB M BERE
Poly Metals which is accounted using the equity method. HfE AR5k
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A SRR EE

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

18 EREDEIIRMNIEE ()

(a) Interest in an associate (continued) (@) REZATZ-ERE(E)

Summarised balance sheet CEABEREE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$M HK$M

BEART BEAT

Total current assets MENEEEE 25.4 12.7

Total non-current assets FEmEBEELLE 0.7 0.8

Total current liabilities mEB AR (20.6) (8.6)

Total non-current liabilities MmN BELLE - -
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2EKBREE

2017 2016

—Z—+tF —E-RF

HK$M HK$M

BEET A&ET

Revenue e 229.3 122.9

Profit and total comprehensive income % F) & & T Ut 5 42 78 0.8 2.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 {FRAEZREVIEEMRE (8)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Interest in an associate (continued) (a) REBEAT RS (H)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2EKNBREE (8)
(continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial it B RS E R BT B R S
information to the carrying amount of the interest in Poly TEME(REAMERERNE
Metals recognised in the consolidated financial statements: 2 ZHEMT
2017 2016
—B—iF —E-RE
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEATT
Net asset of Poly Metals as at EMR+ZA=1+—8/
31 December BEFE 5.6 438
Proportion of the Group's ownership 7<% B 5 2 ) 2 ¥ 5 &
interest in Poly Metals Al 20% 20%
Share of net assets of Poly Metals ERERMEEFE 1.2 1.0
Goodwill S 1.5 1.5
Closing carrying amount FARREE 2.7 25
The information above reflects the amounts presented i B R R Bk N [ B i B A
in the financial statements of the associate adjusted for Nz @HBEEREFZRER
differences in accounting policies between the Group and ZHENR M BERREN &
the associate. B o
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e SRR EE

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 fEA#

EQUITY METHOD (continued)

N2
=
janN

Y

N2

EHIRRIVIRE ()

(b) Interests in joint ventures (b) REELEER
Particulars of the significant joint ventures are set out FEEEREFBHINMOT
below:
Place of
establishment/ Nature
principal place of the  Measurement
Name of entity of business % of ownership interest relationship Method Carrying amount
Ry,
BRZE TRERBE FRERZEIN BEME HE-¥: REE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tf “E-RE —B-tF ZENE
HK$M HK$M
BEER BEET
(restated)
(&=3)
Schrott und Metallhandel Germany 75% 75% Note (i) Equity 114.9 852
M. Kaatsch GmbH = HIZE () (30
Scholz Austria GmbH Austria 63.35% 63.35% Note (ii) Equity 2011 142.7
R A0 #%
Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. Mexico 50% 50% Note (i) Equity 135.0 1138
BREF M 2K i i3
Individually immaterial joint ventures Note (iv) Equity 1375 1037
ERIFERSERE Mt £ (i) i
588.5 4454

Notes: Bt 5

(i) Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH is a private company (i) Schrott und Metallhandel M.
and there is no quoted market prices for its shares. It engages in Kaatsch GmbH A& —fEFLA R B R H
collection, processing and trading of scrap metal in Germany. MDY BT IS RE - ZRARREEH

RERE NIREEESR-

(ii) Scholz Austria GmbH is a private company and there is no quoted (ii) Scholz Austria GmbHA —EFLA R
market prices for its shares. It engages in metal recycling business in AIRERG I ETISRE -Z QA
Austria. REMAEEBEDBEERY -

(iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. is a private company and there is (iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V.A—

no quoted market prices for its shares. It engages in collection,
processing and trading of scrap metal in Mexico.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv) In addition to the interests in joint ventures as disclosed above, the
Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint
ventures that are accounted for using the equity method:

AR

18 EREDREIIRNIEE (8)

(b) REELEZES (H)
i ()
V) BEXEBZRAEC¥ZHE

S AEBETFRBEERFEERE
BEAEERLS WEMAEREA

BE :
2017 2016
—E-+F —ZE—RF
HK$M HK$M
BEER ERYEv
(restated)
(re551)

Aggregate carrying amount of individually R EBIFEEAA LR E L

immaterial joint ventures BRE B4 137.5 103.7

Aggregate amount of the Group's share of: 75 B fE {k 7 48 %5 -

Profit for the year FRHRF 43.5 -
Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 HEEE (7.0) -
Total comprehensive income FHEM =B 36.5 -

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of
joint ventures

The Group has provided guarantees of approximately
HK$140.2 million for bank loans, rental obligations and
finances leases to certain joint ventures.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's
interest in the joint ventures.

FREELECAERIRESE

REEBRETAECERRST
BER HEECEAMEMAERE
#)1184,0208 B T Z R -

VEBBASERGELEE
BmZEARAE
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A SRR EE

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 ERAEREIRNIRE (8)

EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued)
Summarised financial information for joint ventures

Set out below is the summarised financial information
for Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH, Scholz
Austria GmbH and Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. which
are accounted for using the equity method. In the opinion
of the directors, these joint ventures are material to the
Group. The Group has not accounted for the share of their
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 as
the acquisition of Scholz Holding was only completed in
December 2016.

Summariesd statement of comprehensive income

Schrott und

Metallhandel

M. Kaatsch GmbH

2017

—E-tE

HKSM

BEER

Revenue W& 1,132.6
Profit for the year FRET 213
Other comprehensive loss E2EEE -
Dividends received from joint ventures WAL ERE -

(b)

RegbEzER (F)
SELECHBEERBME

T 32 51| & Schrottund Metallhandel
M. Kaatsch GmbH - Scholz Austria
GmbH [ Kalischatarra, S.de R.L.
de CV.2 IBBERBLE - BiRE
HENR - BEERA ZFEE
TEHAEBMEBER-AE
B ARGEEEEEZE T —RF
T A=+ —HIEFERNERS
R AAWBIER R IZER TN
E-—RNE+_AFEKRS -

EHKBRERBE
Scholz Kalischatarra,
Austria GmbH S.deR.L de CV.
2017 2017
—E-tF “E-tF
HK$M HK$M
BEER BEETR
2,881.4 620.2
63.9 17.2
- (9.4)
8.8 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 {FRAEZREVIEEMRE (8)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued) (b) NREELEZER (E)
Summarised balance sheet EEEEREE
Schrott und
Metallhandel Scholz Kalischatarra,
M. Kaatsch GmbH Austria GmbH S.deR.L de C.V.
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tE ZE-RE ZB-tf ZE-E Bt ZZ-5E
HK$M HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M
HEATR BEATL BEATR AZATL AEAL ABAT
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(mE3) (E75)) (m55))
Current i)
Total current assets TEEELE 148.3 135.1 288.8 405.3 190.6 185.2
Total current liabilities nEaBLEE (146.9) (112.6) (394.2) (450.2) (211.7) (146.5)
Total net current assets/ FRYLE/(8E)
(liabilities) aE 14 225 (105.4) (44.9) (21.1) 387
Non-current ¥R
Total non-current assets FRBEELR 158.5 84.4 4545 2104 284.2 1778
Total non-current liabilities ERBaBeS (20.1) 4.9 (107.5) (6.4) (27.4) (18.7)
Net assets EEFE 139.8 102.0 216 159.1 25.7 1978
Group's share in % REEREAAL 75% 75% 63.35% 63.35% 50% 50%
Group's share in HK$M FEEEEREET 104.9 765 153.0 1008 117.9 989
Goodwil mE 10.0 8.7 48.1 419 1741 149
Closing carrying amount FRERE 114.9 85.2 201.1 142.7 135.0 1138
The information above reflects the amounts presented in Pt ER MG AEEBEZES
the consolidated financial statements of the joint ventures BhEZETHREEEARR
adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the REZEEECEZFEAUBERE
Group and the joint ventures. Epdlprdenk--
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A SRR EE

19 MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired
certain property, plant and equipment of HK$59.5 million from a
related party by netting off amount due from that related party.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group acquired
entire equity interest of Dalian New Green Recycle & Resources
Corporation* (KEHZBEERMIERAF) ("DNG") by

19 BAFRERS

REZE=—ZE—+tF+-A=1+—HLF
& REBFE B E W R 5 FOEM
RARE 5 IS A 85,9508 BT & TY

X BEREE -

RBE-T—~E+-AST-ALE

B REBBEBEITARE

Efaleie

REHEBEERMIBRAR ([K

issuance of ordinary shares of the Company. EEAR]) 2R
20 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20 HMERBEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEAT
(restated)
(&e&E5)
Deposits and prepayments e RFEF RIE 7.4 19.3
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note (a)) At HEL @ EE (ME@)) 121.4 46.0
128.8 65.3
Note: PHRE -
(a) Movement on available-for-sale financial assets: (a) ARHESREEZRH:
2017 2016
—E—+t#F ZT—RF
HKSM HK$M
BEAT BEAT
At 1 January w—A—8 46.0 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) W g AR (MFE39) 72.2 46.0
Disposal e (10.9) -
Currency translation differences HEhEER 14.1 -
At 31 December W+=Z—A=+—H 121.4 46.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 21 DEARBELEZEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$M HK$M
BEABT AEBT
(restated)
(ge&:75)
Investment property (Note a) wEYHE (M5Ea) - 19.6
Investment in a joint venture (Note b) ReEBEZIRE (Mib) - 349.9
Land use rights (Note ¢ & Note e) b ARE (BT sEc bt sEe) 38.3 0.2

Property, plant and equipment W BB &EE

(Note c & Note d) (M FEckMi7td) 5.1 18.3
43.4 388.0

Notes:
(a)

(]

On 15 December 2016, the Group entered into a provisional sale and
purchase agreement for the sale of an investment property located in Hong
Kong to an independent third party at a cash consideration of HK$48.0
million. The transaction has been completed on 27 February 2017.

Scholz Group has a 51.43% owned joint venture, C.1.0.S.d.o.o (“CIOS"),
which engages in a metal recycling business in Croatia. Pursuant to the
Articles of Association of CIOS, the other joint venture partner has a right
to purchase Scholz Group’s 51.43% equity interest in CIOS at a price to
be negotiated between two parties when certain condition is fulfilled. In
December 2016, the other joint venture partner has indicated its intention to
exercise the right and has commenced the negotiation on the transaction and
consideration with Scholz Group. In November 2017, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with the other joint venture partner of CIOS
in which the Group agreed to dispose of its 51.43% equity interest in CIOS
as part of its consideration in exchange for the entire equity interest in Dinos
d.d. (“Dinos”, which was then a subsidiary of CIOS). The transaction was
completed on 29 November 2017. Please refer to Note 39(b) for details.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a compensation agreement was
entered into between the Group and local government where the Group
would surrender that certain buildings and land use rights with carrying
amount of RMB1.0 million (approximately HK$1.1 million) to the local
government in return for a compensation of RMB9.7 million (approximately
HK$11.3 million). Accordingly, that land use right was reclassified as asset
held for sale as at 31 December 2016. The transaction has been completed in
June 2017.

B3 -
(a)

(b)

EaRREBERAT

A=A\

RZZE-R"F+-A+HB XEHEFE
—RBUF=THE-BRUREENERE
VIR LR BB i@ RS RER4,800
BREL -ZXHPER_FT—tF-_A-++t
HZEm e

BRIk EE A —H51.43%REZ B ED
%C.10S.do.o([CIOS)) " ZRA M7 #
335 1 B & Bl WS - ARIRCIOS Z #H 4
SRMA B-RARCEABAGER
ETRMEREHEEIEMRERNC0SH
51.43%% M BRBEFHEFIME - N
T—RET-A B RAEBEAEA
RTRHEAEBTEZEN TERZ SRR
BRIERAERARBER R_T—tF
+—A REBHECOSHEMELDES
BAFILEEHH ERAEERBEHE
EHPACIOSHIS1.43% Akt - VB A HEUA Dinos
d.d. ([Dinos | * &FRCIOSZ FRA)2H
BEZBHINB-RFERZT—F+—
A=+ hBFEK- FI1EH2HME390)

HE_Z-—RF+_A=1+—HILFE"
ANEE TR A E R B AR
S gt BT L EREE A AR 100
B (HM0BABAT) 2 ETEFERLMHE
FtE LIREARK9708 T (41,1308
BT ZME - Rt Z L ERER =T
—RNE+ZA=+—AEFHEAEEL
EBE-RGERZT—LFNARK-

—E—tEEH
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A SRR EE

21 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 21
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) Two parcels of land owned by Scholz Group located in the USA with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$17.4 million were classified as asset held for
sale as at 31 December 2016. One parcel of land was sold to an independent
third party for approximately HK$12.8 million during 2017.

(e) Pursuant to the state-owned construction land use right transfer contract, a
land located in Shandong Province, the PRC, is expected to be surrendered to
the local government within next financial year. Accordingly, the land use right
is reclassified as asset classified as held for sale in the consolidated financial
statement and an impairment loss of HK$92.4 million has been recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 December
2017 (Note 7).

DRRFIELEZEE (8)

Bt : (#8)

(d) I R % S e 2 B R R TELELAD1, 740808
THImBR L R —RF+ZA=+—
BOERBELEEE RN =T
—EFEA 2808 B LET —RBUE=
F o

(e) BIERAEEZAMERELEESR LR
FREILREN T HEHAR T —HREERN
R T i BT o B+ o8 A TR
AMBRENET O ERBIELELE
WABEZZ—+F+_A=+—HILF
ENGEBRERNERREEE, 2408 %
7t (MiEE7) »

22 INVENTORIES 22 78
2017 2016
—E—tF ZEREF
HK$M HK$M
AEBTT BEAT
(restated)
(FgE3)
Raw materials R H 1,290.3 927.8
Work-in-progress &M 29.8 21.9
Finished goods LUK @ 1,018.4 823.8
2,338.5 1,773.5

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$14,682.2 million (2016: HK$2,802.1
million), which included net inventory provision of HK$5.4 million
(2016: utilisation of inventory provision of HK$76.0 million) (Note
8).

As 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged inventories with a

net book value of HK$873.5 million to secure bank borrowings to
the Group (2016: HK$428.5 million) (Note 33).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR

23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 B ZNHMERFKIA
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HKS$M HK$M
BEBTT BEET
(restated)
(s&E7))
Trade receivables B 5 EW G IE 1,434.5 1,457.3
Less: Provision for impairment R E RS (127.8) (17.6)
Trade receivables, net B 5 EWRIEF 58 1,306.7 1,439.7
Bills receivables FERERFIE 0.6 1.2
Other receivables (Note) H b FEUCEIE (M) 308.1 64.4
Deposits and prepayments Be RIENRIEA 191.8 67.7
Deposits paid for purchase of raw materials ##E R 2 BFi% 4 55.1 51.7
VAT recoverable AR B AT 130.1 126.4
1,992.4 1,751.1

Note: As at 31 December 2017, the balance includes a receivable of HK$265.8
million from a government authority in the PRC.

At 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged trade receivables
with a net book value of HK$987.7 million (2016: HK$1,527.1
million) to secure bank and other borrowings to the Group (Note
33).

Mit: RZZ—tF+ZA=+—H EHBE
KB BT E B KK IA2186,5808 8
JC °©

RZE—tEF+ZA=+—H0 X%
EARE R (EA9ES 77088 T (- &
—NE15(82,71088 ) 2B E
SEWGIE B RAEBEEOIRTT
N EMEFR (HFE33) ©
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A SRR EE

23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 23

The Group generally grants credit terms ranging from 30 to 90
days to customers upon the approval of management according
to the credit quality of individual customers. At 31 December
2017 and 2016, the aging analysis of the trade receivables based
on invoice date were as follows:

B 5 N E b EBGRIA (8)
FERBSEEEI AR AEE—RIRE
FREFMEEER MEFPEENT
30E0RMEER -R_E—+FE R
T-RNE+-A=+—HB EHEKX
BIEHZRHNERRDITOT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

HKS$M HK$M

BHEBRT ABET

(restated)

(#&=31)

0 — 90 days 0290H 1,335.7 1,286.8
91 - 180 days 91£2180H 37.8 33.7
Over 180 days HBiB180H 61.0 136.8
1,434.5 1,457.3

As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of HK$325.4 million
(2016: HK$358.6 million) were past due but not impaired. The
aging analysis of these trade receivable is as follows:

W-Z—+&+-F=+—H EE3
82,5408 &7t (=& — 7<% : 3185,860
BB T) 2B S EKFIAC @ AE R R
BE - ZEE 5 EUGRIE 2R D0
T

2017 2016

—E—tF —ZE—RF

HK$M HK$M

BEABRT BEAET

Overdue 1 day to 90 days BmEI1Z=90H 287.3 351.5
Overdue 91 days to 180 days #IHA91Z=180H 19.4 6.9
Overdue over 181 days B HI A 181 H 18.7 0.2
325.4 358.6
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RE ISR

23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 23 BHKAMEKKIE (&)

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of trade REEE 5 WA REEE 2
receivables are as follows: LU
2017 2016
—E2—tF —E-RF
HK$M HK$M
ER-:m BEBTT
At 1 January wn—A—H 17.6 26.9
Provision for impairment VR L] 109.2 0.4
Receivables written off during the year FRMBESTIE 2
as uncollectable B U FRIE (1.5) (1.3)
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables & 5 & U 70 I8 il (& # @ (4.0) (6.9)
Currency translation differences EmEER 6.5 (1.5)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 127.8 17.6
As at 31 December 2017, provision for impairment of other RZZT—tHF+_HA=+—H BEHE
receivables of approximately HK$86.3 million (2016: HK$37.6 RIE B EL ) FE IR TR FHR EL th FE W R IE
million) has been provided for impaired other receivables. BIEREX8,6308B T (= —RF:

3,7608 %) °

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not B 5 I o Ath JE R IE 9 E 28 Rl S0 B
contain impaired assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk at EERBEEE-RREEHzEREE
the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable [B\Fg A i = A FE UK IE 2 BRTEE » AR
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as SENEBEEMERRERR.
security.
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ArE BTSRRI EE
23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 23 ESRHMERFIE (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables, net of REEZE S EWGIE (IKREE) 2
provision, are denominated in the following currencies: REEATIEBE:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$M HK$M
HEER BEBTT
RMB ARE 10.9 17.5
HK$ BT 46.1 4.0
EUR BT 883.4 1,040.7
us$ T 222.9 285.8
Other currencies HiE 143.4 91.7
1,306.7 1,439.7
The carrying amounts of the Group's other receivables are mainly REEHEMERFIAZ REEFENUA
denominated in RMB and EUR (2016: RMB and EUR). RELBITFAE(ZZ—RF: ARK
RET) °
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables B REMEWHE FEEEEAF
approximate their fair values. BREE-
24 FIXED RETURN INVESTMENT 24 [ElFEREFHREE

As at 31 December 2017, the fixed return investment of
HK$339.0 million (2016: HK$316.8 million) represented
investment carries fixed interest at 7% per annum (2016: 7% per
annum) and will mature on 14 March 2018 and is re-invested for
three months until 14 June 2018. The principal amount and fixed
return are guaranteed by a private equity firm and the director of
the private equity firm.

242 chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2017

W-ZB—+E+-_A=+—80" BEE
ML E3E3 008 B T (ZE—R"F:
3181,6808 B L) IBILFFET% (=ZF
—NFFENEI% ) 2 EEMETE R
BR-ZZ—N\E= A+ BESHNEE
UE=ZERABREEEZE T —/\F~A
+HA - Ae KEFE B R HZLER
BRABIRFAEREA A ZEEIRHE
fRo



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A RIS

/\\— Pay=T
25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 TTES/mT A
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RK
HK$M HK$M
BEERT BEAT
Derivative financial assets TEEMEE
Metal commodities future contracts SEEmBAEEL 5.3 3.0
Metal commodities options © 8 g o HAE 0.3 -
Foreign currency forward contracts INEERBRE 4 0.5 4.9
6.1 7.9
Derivative financial liabilities fTEcmas
Metal commodities future contracts cEERBEEN (11.7) (17.6)
Foreign currency forward contracts IR ERA 4 (10.5) (0.2)
Interest swap contracts FEIEHE 4 4.7) (13.7)
(26.9) (31.5)
Less: Non-current portion A IERENEE
Interest swap contracts MEFHIE K - (11.9)
Current portion MoEUk P2) (26.9) (19.6)
Notes: P 3 -
(i) Metal commodities future contracts and option (i) tEERPEEARGRE
As at 31 December 2017, the Group enters into copper and other metal R-ZE—tFE+-A=+—8 KEE]Z
future contracts and options in order to manage its exposure to the price risk MREMEBHEANONREE UEESE
of inventories. These contracts are actively traded in an active market and are FENHERRR - ZFA0NERTIZEE
measured at fair values based on quoted price as at reporting date, with gain RSWRFERHRE BE 2 HRE LA FE
or loss recognised directly in consolidated statement of profit or loss. B WEAEEEERGABERIER
The notional principle amount of the outstanding metal commodities future AEEeBERBEAN LN EER
contracts and options were approximately HK$429.8 million (2016: HK$429.9 S 85 Bl B 44fE2,9808 BT (ZZF — X
million) and HK$136.1 million (2016: Nil) respectively. F:4182,9908 8 T) K1183,6108F T

(Z2—X%EB)-
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R SRR EE

25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

26

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign currency forward contracts

The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to
mitigate its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts were
measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The notional principle amount of the outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts were approximately HK$677.5 million (2016: HK$878.4 million).

Interest swap contracts

The Group entered into interest rate swap contracts in order to mitigate its
exposure to the interest risk. These contracts were measured at fair value
using observed yield curves at the end of the reporting period, with gain or
loss recognised directly in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The notional principle amount of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts
was approximately HK$187.6 million (2016: HK$257.0 million). The fair values
of interest rate swap contracts are classified as non-current liabilities if the
remaining maturities are more than 12 months, and as current liabilities, if the
maturities are less than 12 months.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits
amounting to HK$95.0 million (2016: HK$422.7 million) have
been pledged to secure short-term bank borrowings, and are
therefore classified as current assets (Note 33).
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26

HaE: (

(ii)

(iii)

B
FE

&)
MEBEREN

AERBRT I INEE I KOUARUESNE R ©
ZEE NS MR ERERREE TR
RTEFE HEEREERGESBERR
HEER

REHIMNERBEN 2 BEAR 2L ACE
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26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 26 BEHRTERERELAS
CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) EEEE (8)
Cash and cash equivalent represents cash and short-term bank RekReEERBERIBAE A=
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. RASUATHIRE KRG BIRITF K -
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HKS$M HK$M
BEER BEAT
Cash at bank and on hands RITRFHERE 976.4 1,676.1
Margin deposits (Note) RES (M) - 7.3
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding RekBHEeEHEER
bank overdrafts) (TNEFERITEX) 976.4 1,683.4
Bank overdrafts RITESL - (26.7)
Total cash and cash equivalents HehIReEHEEBERRE 976.4 1,656.7
(i) Reconciliation to consolidate statement of cash () BERERLRERYRE
flows
The above figures reconcile to the amount of cash shown in LR R B FERGER S
the consolidated statement of cash flows at the end of the MERMATRSSHEARNOT:

financial year as follows:

2017 2016
—e-tE  —TA
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEET
Balances as above Lt A5 R 976.4 1,683.4
Bank overdrafts RITEX - (26.7)
Balances per consolidated FRERERERAHLER
statement of cash flows 976.4 1,656.7
Note: sk :
The balance represents deposits placed with financial institutions to secure the BERIETHRRERBEBOTR . UERAE
Group’s margin accounts with these financial institutions for trading metal EieBEnfRanNE BN LSl
commodities future contracts. The margin deposits are non-interest bearing. BRUZRECES -ZERJFETH B
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27 SHARE CAPITAL

27 M

Authorised share capital SEERA
Numbers
of shares Share capital
RHEAE [N
(Thousands) HK$M
(FR]) AEBTT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at RZZE-—RE-HA—1"
1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, —ET-RF+=A
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 =+—8 ZZ—+F
—A—ARZZT—+tF
+ZA=+—8H%2
FREE.0NEIIL LR 5,000,000 50
Issued and fully paid EERITRHE
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RE—HA—H 1,588,515 15.9
Issue of shares (Note a) BTG (HiEa) 31,038 0.3
Exercise of share options (Note b) TR B AR (P 3ED) 186 -
At 31 December 2016 RZZE-—RE+ZA=+—H 1,619,739 16.2
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H 1,619,739 16.2
Repurchase of shares (Note c) BRI (5o (14,586) (0.1)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB—tH+-H=+—H 1,605,153 16.1

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

The Company issued 31,037,585 shares on 21 March 2016 to acquire 100%
equity interest in DNG, as part of the consideration. The fair value of the
shares issued amounted to HK$112.0 million (HK$3.60 per share).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 186,000 share options under
the post-IPO share option scheme were exercised at a subscription price of
HK$4.186 per share, resulting in the issue of 186,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company repurchased
14,586,000 of its own shares on the Stock Exchange, which were cancelled
and deducted from shareholder’ equity at the end of the current reporting
period, at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$65.5 million. The
highest and lowest prices paid were HK$5.27 and HK$3.34, respectively.

All the above-mentioned new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares
in all respects.
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(a)

(b)

()

ARARRZE—RNF=ZA=+—B8T
31,037,585/ i 19 - 1E R KRB - LAMKEE
REHAR100% A 4E - EBITRGD 2 AFE
A1E1,2008 % 7T (FR3.60/87T) °

REE-_ZT—R"F+_A=T—HIFE"
HIRAFBRERERERTE1E T #186,000
DRERIEIRREESIRI 8B TREITRE
BRI E)E17186,0000 B E E0.0174
TCHYE AR -
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RE SRR

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28 EFNHMENFKIE

2017 2016

—E—tF T —RF

HKSM HK$M

BEAR "AEBT

(restated)

(g =5)

Trade payables 2 5 E IR 1,192.8 919.9
Other taxes payable HihEHIE 180.3 37.0
Accrued salaries and employee benefits it kEEBRT 132.0 113.7
Provision for claims and contingencies RERIABIEREE 19.6 456
Accrued professional expenses Bt BEEMX 47.7 68.8
Asset retirement obligations EEMESE 85.4 85.0
Other payables and accruals HAth eI 30IE R BT E A 539.4 509.9
2,197.2 1,779.9

Less: Non-current portion A IERENES

Asset retirement obligations BEREBEET (85.4) (85.0)
Other payables H {th jE < 5008 (19.8) (207.8)
2,092.0 1,487.1

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date

B SRMNFAREEE A2 RS

was as follows: U
2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RF
HKS$M HK$M
BEBTT BEBT
0 - 90 days 0%290H 1,133.5 825.6
91 — 180 days 912 180H 17.5 23.1
Over 180 days #BiE180H 41.8 71.2
1,192.8 919.9

B MEMEMNRIEZ FRERELAF
BRE-

The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables
approximate their fair values.
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29 BORROWINGS 29 fBEX
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HKS$M HK$M
BEBTT BEET
(restated)
(KeE5)
Non-current B
Bank borrowings (Note a) RITE R (MisEa) 572.0 333.9
Other borrowings (Note a) HER (KisEa) 418.9 -
Note payable (Note ¢) FE & (i) - 1,464.8
Finance lease liabilities (Note d) MmEMREEMT (HiEd) 142.1 161.5
e 113830 19602
Current B
Bank borrowings (Note a) IRITER (KI5Ea) 1,083.0 2,849.7
Other borrowings (Note a) HuER (KMisEa) 379.1 110.6
Note payable (Note c) FER R (M) 1,476.6 -
Convertible bonds (Note b) AR &S (HiEb) - 67.0
Finance lease liabilities (Note d) MEMREEMT (Witd) 83.5 30.4
3,022.2 3,057.7
Total borrowings e 4,155.2 5,017.9
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Notes:

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A RIS

H H £ =]
29 BORROWINGS (continued) 29 &R (&)
P -
Bank and other borrowings (a) RITREAMER
Bank borrowings mature at various dates up to 2024 and bear average BITERN TR AP EE_F_MF
coupons ranging from 0.75% to 5.66% per annum (2016: 1.55% to 6.50% Bl FHFFENF0.75%%E5.66% (=
per annum). T—NF  FFE155%%6.50% ) °
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s bank and other borrowings RIE—tFR—E-RF+A=+—
were repayable as follows: B K& EIZ%E(T&EH‘ME REARUTH
HIEE:
Bank borrowings Other borrowings Total
RITER HiER @t
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—Z-t% —RE ZEZ—tF ZZ-XE ZB-tFf ZZT-XE
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
HE#ER BEET HE#ER BEBTL BHEER BEAT
Within 1 year —FR 1,083.0 2,849.7 379.1 110.6 1,462.1 2,960.3
Between 1 and 2 years —EWE 193.9 13.6 418.9 - 612.8 13.6
Between 2 and 5 years MEREF 373.2 309.8 - - 373.2 309.8
Over 5 years AFNUE 4.9 10.5 - - 4.9 10.5
572.0 3339 418.9 - 990.9 3339
1,655.0 3,183.6 798.0 110.6 2,453.0 3,294.2

Total borrowings include secured liabilities. Bank borrowings are secured by
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights, investment
properties, trade receivables, pledged bank deposits and inventories of the
Group of HK$4,344.6 million (2016: HK$3,692.3 million) (Note 33).

The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings are denominated in

BEFBEARAEE-BIEREAEE
IF@431$4460§/>§E(_7f/\¢'36
89,2308 0) 2 W% BB LEH HE
T R E AR REWE B SRR
B BHERRTERRFEEER (M
33)

RITREAMERZREAETIA T E SR

the following currencies: &:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$SM HK$M
BEER BEBT
EUR BT 801.0 2,228.7
us$ EVM 1,020.3 675.5
RMB AR 481.3 257.5
Czech Koruna (“CZK") e ([HERRH]) 67.2 52.1
HK$ BT - 44.8
Polish Zloty (“PLN") L ERE ([ZXBER]) 83.2 35.6
2,453.0 3,294.2

TR AN
BE
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e BB ERARMIEE

29 BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

Bank and other borrowings (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
approximately HK$6,370.2 million (2016: HK$4,143.7 million) for loans
and bank guarantees. Unused facilities as at the same date amounted
to approximately HK$1,430.4 million (2016: HK$960.1 million) of which
HK$1,156.9 million (2016: HK$445.4 million) represented committed facilities
that could be drawn down at the discretion of the Group and HK$273.5
million (2016: HK$514.7 million) represented uncommitted facilities. These
facilities are secured/guaranteed by certain land use rights, properties, plant
and equipment, inventories, trade receivables, bank deposits and investment
properties of HK$333.9 million (2016: HK$317.6 million), HK$2,054.5 million
(2016: HK$940.8 million), HK$837.5 million (2016: HK$428.5 million),
HK$987.7 million (2016: HK$1,527.1 million), HK$95.0 million (2016:
HK$422.7 million) and HK$ Nil (2016: HK$55.6 million), respectively (Note
33).

29

A
B3+ (

1:{:!-_ ETd

(a)

(%)

%)

BITREMER (F)
R-ZZE—tF&+=-A=+—8" $’§IT¢E
ERRRITERZBITEE
7,0208% 7w (=%

7o) A B REBAEELR14(83,0408 7%
T (ZF—NF 96,0108 ET) K
11185,6908 7B 7t (=T — /< 4 : 414,540
%&I)F}$§ITE‘JFTEHXZ7¥K e
2187,3508 B T (=T —NF : 5(81,4708
BL)AREEEE ZSFEE/AETT
WERE - WE- - BELSE TE-BH
FEWRIE - RITTE R &&ﬁm% AEE
3183,3908 BT (=T —73%F : 3181,7608
W)~ 20185,4508 B T (— T — RN EF:
9184,080& B jT) * 8183,750& BT (=
T — N 4182,8508 8 7T ) - 9188,7708

BrT(=ZZ —/‘TE' 5{82,7108 % ) »
9,5008 BT (=T — NF  482,2708 7%
)&E%n(_7 JNEE 15,5608 8 T)

TEIE IR, FEAR (MP5E33) -

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair values. EREmEREATEES -
Convertible bonds (b) T8 R 1
Embedded
Debt derivative
component components
BHHD BMARTEL S
HK$M HK$M
"EBT "BEBET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2016 RZT—R"F—A—HZEHEA 58.8 9.6
Interest charge (Note 10) FEZE (MEE10) 10.9 -
Interest paid BERFE (2.7)
Fair value gain (Note 7) AEEYE (MEE7) - (9.6)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 RZB-—RE+ZA=T—BZKEE 67.0 -
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 RZB—+tF—-A—-—HAZKREE 67.0 -
Interest charge (Note 10) FEZE (MEE10) 2.0 -
Interest paid [SXREAESS (1.4) -
Redemption fig 1= (67.6) -
Fair value gain (Note 7) A EWE (HE7) -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 RZB—+tF+ZA=+—BZKEE - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Convertible bonds (continued)
The major terms of convertible bond issued on 1 March 2012 (the
“Convertible Bonds") are as below:

The Convertible Bonds carry 4% coupon interest per annum payable in
arrears semi-annually. The Convertible Bonds would be fully redeemed by
the Company at its principal amount upon maturity on 1 March 2017 (the
“Maturity Date").

The holders of the Convertible Bonds had the right to convert the principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds into shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company at an initial conversion price of HK$6 per share (subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments) at any time during the period from the second
anniversary of the Issue Date up to 10 business days prior to the Maturity
Date, subject to the minimum public float requirement. The bondholder shall
have the right to demand for full repayment of principal and accrued interest
on any of these date: 1 September 2015, 1 March 2016 or 1 September
2016.

The fair value of the debt component of the Convertible Bonds on initial
recognition was calculated using the present value of contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the effective interest
rates of ranging from 16.957% to 17.492%.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the Convertible Bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

f& 3K

fieE: (&)

(b)

EeRREBERAH

RE SRR

(%)

MaRES (&)
RZZE—ZF=A—BETHIBRRKRES
(MrgpREs]) B EREFIMT

AMBREFH IR ERE  BLFIN
—R-ARARABNR_F—LF=A—HE
R ([2/8R |) AR S BB @ 2 50 AT A%
& e

ARRESFAEAEENETABME B
FEEEARN0M[EE %R 2 HREAERE
NF R REFROET (7 FREHHE)
AR E SN A S F I RR AR R T K
EE0.01ETTHIRD » HERBTRIER R
EBRMRE - EFHEABER TIIEMA
HERBFBEEFASERMEENTS
—E-RFNAA-RBR ZE-RE=A—
B —Z—XFNLA—RB-

NRERE AR REFZEEDH
ANEE ERRERFMEN T16.957% %
17.492% B85 IR ) & K TE AR RN E M H IR
BEitE-

RERER TRERESZEHSBD iR
B SERCA R A B R FORD R
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R SRR EE

29 BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

29

fEk (%)

MieE: (&)

(b)  Convertible bonds (continued) (b) HEBRKRES(H)

The fair value of the embedded derivative components of the Convertible AR ES (BELGERIRRBEEE) &

Bonds (including conversion options and early redemption option) was ARTETABYN R TFETIR _TAHE

determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model and the major inputs into EEEXEERZEXMBAZEZHE

the model are as follows: Ll

The Convertible Bonds TR E %

At 31 December
2016 On issuance

RZT—RF
+=-RA=+—H BT

Stock price f& & HK$5.32/8 7T HK$5.47% 7T

Exercise price TR E HK$6.007% 7T HK$6.007% 7T

Expected volatility (Note 1) TBEHRE (FIEED) 11.328% 31.404%

Dividend yield A% B A R 0.000% 0.000%

Option life HAREF R 3 monthsf# A 24 monthsfE A

Risk free rate (Note Il) R R A = (RN 0.178% 0.498%

Notes: R

0} The expected volatility was determined with reference to the implied 0) FEEH IR TR SRR AN A TR M
volatility of the Company’s shares as at the date of valuation. EEE S B EEHMET -

(I The risk free rate was determined with reference to the Hong Kong (I EEABFRIREESRFELR
Government Bond’s and Treasury bill's yield. BEAEE RMEFE-

(I In subsequent periods, the embedded derivative components are (i REBEHE ZARSTETARS
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the WATEAE AFEZEHRE
consolidated statement of profit and loss. LEHENER-

On 1 March 2017, the Company redeemed all outstanding Convertible

Bonds due 2017, the aggregate amount paid for the redemption of all of the

remaining Convertible Bonds was approximately HK$67.6 million. &

6,760 T °
(o) Note payable (©) EAERE

On 20 December 2016, the Company issued a 8% note with a principal
amount of US$200 million to an independent third party (the “Subscriber”).
The note matures in 2 years from the issue date and can be extended for one
year subject to agreement of both parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(d)

Note payable (continued)

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, Mr. Tu and USUMHK shall also
provide a personal guarantee and a corporate guarantee, respectively, in
favour of the Subscriber to secure, among others, the due and punctual
observance and performance by the Company under the subscription
agreement and other documents.

The Company is subject to certain restrictive financial and non-financial
covenants. In addition, there are undertakings on ownership including
(i) USUMHK shall beneficially own (directly or indirectly) at all times a
shareholding in the Company representing the single largest shareholding in
the Company, and (i) USUMHK shall at all times be controlled by Mr. Tu and
Mr. Tu shall be the single largest shareholder of USUMHK.

Finance lease liabilities

The Group has finance leases and hire purchase contracts for various items of
plant and machinery. The rights to the leased asset are reverted to the lessor
in the event of default of the lease liabilities by the Group.

29 &

A RIS

(%)

fieE: (&)

(c)

(d)

S RE (8)

RERBHH REERABERTEAR
RBADRRFEEAEREARER &
BRERAARZEREFETLRITRE
1 7k e E A S o

RABZGINE T RGBS 5 KM R
#eoLesh - BB RN A RN A B21E()
AMEEBRANTEREERER (EEXHE
BE)ARBARE RERRE-RARR:
(i) E BRI A R mR S
NRREERBEEENE —RARBRER -

BEHEAERE
AEEGRTRABEREREFRABRER
HEAM- -MAREEREZEAE AEE
BEMNENBELBEA-

2017 2016
—E-tF —E—RF
HK$M HK$M
HEBT BEAT
(restated)
(#E7)
Gross finance lease liabilities BREHESEM
- minimum lease payments - REHENR
No later than 1 year TER—F 86.5 315
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years ER—FETENRDF 160.3 188.7
246.8 220.2
Future finance charges on finance leases MEHENARRHEEST H (21.2) (28.3)
Present value of finance lease liabilities RMEHERENRE 225.6 191.9
The present value of finance lease liabilities BEAEHFENBRENT :
is as follows:
No later than 1 year TIBR—F 83.5 30.4
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years ER—FETENRASF 142.1 161.5
225.6 191.9

EeRREBERAT
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30 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 30 FE¥ERRHERS

Share of net liabilities of

subsidiaries
FiEFARREAE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEAT
At 1 January wn—A—H (32.8) (74.1)

Capital contribution EE - 38.1
Non-controlling interest arising from EBEMHEE ZIFERER

business combination - 3.7
Transaction with non-controlling interests B2 ¥R R HE R HETTZ 5 (5.4) -
Share of profit/(loss) for the year FRFRET, (BE) 8.8 (3.3)
Share of foreign currency translation T SN B L R

reserve 3.4 2.8
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (26.0) (32.8)

31 DEFERRED TAXATION 31 EERIA
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income BIEFEHREERELEFREHAGEZY
tax liabilities is as follows: W
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF
HK$M HK$M
BEBTT BEBT
(restated)
(&gE7)
Deferred income tax assets: BEMMESHREE:
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 15 A + —E A & W = /Y
after 12 months BEMIEEE 150.0 118.0
Deferred tax assets to be recovered B+ =@ A AUk E &
within 12 months BLEHEEE 18.1 59.4
168.1 177.4
Deferred income tax liabilities: FRIEFTSTHBE:
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled BR+TZEAREED
after 12 months BLEHEAE (343.1) (342.5)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled BR+TZEAARGEED
within 12 months RIERIBRE (73.4) (36.9)
(416.5) (379.4)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net EEMEHAETE (248.4) (202.0)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 31 IREHIIE (88)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during FRBREMEHEERAGBIEE (R
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of TR A RERE R AR A R )
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: LU
Change in
fair value of
Accelerated derivative
Deferred income tax financial
tax liabilities depreciation instruments Others Total
ik
& $WMIAZ
BEEFEHAR BEHRE ATEESE Hity @t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HKSM
BEET BEET BEET BEET
At 1 January 2016 RZE-A¥—FA—A 13.6 - 29.8 434
(Credit)/charge to the REEABER (GTA) /M
consolidated statement of
profit or loss (12.0) 1.1 (0.8) (11.7)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WA (ME39) (&5
(Note 39) (restated) 5) 3232 - 23 325.5
Currency translation differences E#EEZR - - 0.2 0.2
At 31 December 2016 (restated) RZT—AF+ZA=+—H
C=1) 324.8 1.1 315 357.4
(Credit)/charge to the consolidated R4z A B & (5T A) /i
statement of profit or loss (14.3) (1.1) (16.2) (31.6)
Acquisition of subsidiaries YekE 7 A (FI3E39(0) )
(Note 39(b)) 285 - 7.8 36.3
Currency translation differences E#¥EEZSR 52.9 - 15 54.4
At 31 December 2017 —Z—tE+ZA=1—H 3919 - 246 4165

EeRREBERAH
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R SRR EE

31 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 31 ERIEFIA (&)
Decelerate Unrealised
tax profit on
Deferred income tax assets Tax losses depreciation  Provisions  inventories Others Total
HE KRR
BEFEHEE REER  BEFE B’  FEEA Hif @t
HKIM HKIM HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

AEAT  AEER

BEAT  BEART  BEARL  REER

At 1 January 2016 RZE-"E-A-H (13.5) - - (0.6) - (14.1)
(Credit)/charge to the consolidated RGABHER (TA)/Hk

statement of profit or loss 109 - - - - 109
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEF AR (MF39)

(Note 39) (restated) (B=3) (60.5) (27.3) (17.4) - (47.0) (1522)
At 31 December 2016 (restated) K =F—7F

TZA=+-H
(ZE75) (63.1) (27.3) (17.4) (0.6) (47.0) (155.4)
(Credit)/charge to the consolidated A4 AEBER (FtA) /Hk

statement of profit or loss 127 10.8 (6.3) (1.8) 0.3 15.7
Acquisition of subsidiaries W7 2R (M5539(0))

(Note 39(b)) - (1.0) - - - (1.0)
Currency translation differences ~ SHHBEEE (15.2) 2.9 2.1) - (7.2) (27.4)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t%

+ZA=1+-H (65.6) (20.4) (25.8) (2.4) (53.9) (168.1)

The Directors do not have an intention to distribute the retained
earnings of certain subsidiaries such that deferred income tax
liabilities of HK$105.6 million have not been recognised for
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of these subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings
totals HK$449.7 million as at 31 December 2017.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did
not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$331.2 million
(2016: HK$504.0 million) in respect of tax losses amounting to
HK$1,447.9 million (2016: HK$2,108.7 million). Unrecognised
tax losses of HK$429.4 million (2016: HK$468.7 million) have
no expiry date and the remaining tax losses will expire at various
dates up to and including 2022 (2016: 2021).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR E SRR RE

32 OTHER RESERVES 32 EfbidEE
Foreign
Capital Share Statutory Enterprise Remeasurement currency
Share  redemption option Capital general expansion of pension translation
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve fund plans reserve Total
EifitE
RftER RAREEE  BRERE RAfE  EE-RERE OEERES  BASHE  WERERER #if
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BERTL BEATL BERTL BERTL BB BEEL BB BEAT BEAT
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (i)
(H30) (Hi3) (W)
At 1 January 2016 RZF-~5-A-R 5864.8 02 13 mas 1051 105.1 - 1188 6,418.1
Currency translation EBREZE
differences - - - - - - - 434) 434)
Total comprehensive loss FRREBREE
for the year - - - - - - - 434) 434)
Issue of subscription shares BIRERGD 4 - - - - - - - 14
Evercise of share options fiFERE 1 - 03) - - - - - 08
Lapse of share options BREXM - - (1.0 - - - - - (1.0
At 31 December 2016 RZF-~E+ZA=1-R 59713 02 - m8 1051 105.1 - 754 6,485.9
At 1 January 2017 R=F-+5-5-H 59713 02 - ma 105.1 105.1 - 754 6,485.9
Curtengy translation EHpEER
differences
- from joint ventures -REAELE - - - - - - - (1.7) mn
- from group companies -RESERT - - - - - - - 6178 6178
- - - - - - - 606.1 606.1
Remeasurement of post-employment ENERARRIER
benefit obligations - - - - - - 04 - 04
Total comprehensive income FNAENEEE
for the year - - - - - - 04 606.1 606.5
Transfer of reserves e - - - - 19 18 - - 37
Subscription shares repurchased and cancelled  FEEL R 2R (65.4) 0.4 - - - - - - (65.3)
Transactions with non-controliing interests ~ EFERERFETRH - - - (119) - - - - (119
At 31 December 2017 R=8-tE+ZA=1-8 5911.9 03 - 2109 107.0 106.9 04 6815 70189
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R SRR EE

32 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

Notes:

(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal
value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange and (b) a
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010.

(ii) Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent the
appropriation of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the relevant
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC as required by the Articles
of Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may
cease to apply if the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise
expansion fund has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.
The statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund can be used to
make up prior year losses or to increase share capital.

33 PLEDGES OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has pledged the
following assets to banks to secure certain bank borrowings and
general banking facilities granted to the Group:

il

32 Hitbfwt (4

M

)

/

(i) ERRBEEQFAANR-_TEN\FEESE
AREEFRARARBRND B EEE L
E{EEAR R R PEITRN 2 HE
MEBERO - -ZTFEARAMEBRER

(ii) RARFEFABMAKSIZAANRE
AREH BB SRR ROEREE R
BB M10%BNORE —RIFER R EH
RED -MWMEE —REBREEBRESD
HEET B FAREMEARN50% - A7)
RiIEBE - ZE—REBREEERRES
AR B BEFEBRIE MR-

33 EEEH
R B - A EE D [ RITIRAUT
BE NERETAEEY & TFHRTE
BB RBTEE:

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E-RF

HK$M HK$M

BEBT BEBT

(restated)

(reE5)

Property, plant and equipment (Note 14)  #1% = & E (H:E14) 2,054.5 940.8
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE Lt fo {55 PR 4

(Note 15) (KI7E15) 333.9 317.6

Investment properties (Note 16) "EWME (KE16) - 55.6

Inventories (Note 22) FE (MzE22) 873.5 4285

Trade receivables (Note 23) H 5k EE (MisF23) 987.7 1,527.1

Pledged bank deposits (Note 26) BEHEMBRTER (H5E26) 95.0 422.7

4,344.6 3,692.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

34 COMMITMENTS 34 EHE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREIE

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, capital expenditure
contracted for but not yet incurred is as follows:

RZZE—FRZZE—RF+=
B=+—8 BilHERELZ
BARRZIT

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$M HK$M
BEER BEAT
Capital expenditure contracted for ~ B F]QEARREFA T KIRESR
but not provided in the BHEOERMAS:
consolidated financial statements
in respect of:
- acquisition of property, plant — WY BB REE
and equipment 128.3 116.5
— additions in construction in —AEBEEEIR
progress 47.0 13.4
175.3 129.9
Authorised but not contracted for EREE®RTH
— additions in construction —ANBEEREIRE
in progress 3.1 -

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group has ceased one of its investment in the construction
and operation of renewable resources recycling projects in
Hebei Province, the PRC.

BE_Z—tF+-A=+—H
IMBREE AEEDRIERE
RERBETIEE AT BEERE
RMMAEENERRES -
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R SRR EE

34 COMMITMENTS (continued) 34 EHE(88)
(b) Operating lease commitments — as lessee (b) REBERE-FBEA
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- RET A REEEHE 2 KRR
cancellable operating leases are as follows: EHEENFEENT :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$M HK$M
BEART BEAT
Land and buildings T RETF
- No later than 1 year —TER—F 34.3 25.7
— Later than 1 year and no —BR—FETERRESF
later than 5 years 47.3 63.9
— Later than 5 years —BRAEF 77.1 50.6
158.7 140.2
2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—REF
HK$M HK$M
BEBRT AEBT
Property, plant and equipment Y WE R
- No later than 1 year —TER—F 11.6 24.2
— Later than 1 year and no —BR—FEIERESF
later than 5 years 24.6 25.3
— Later than 5 years —EBRAF 0.8 -
37.0 49.5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

34 COMMITMENTS (continued) 34 EHE(88)
(c) Operating lease commitments - as lessor (0 REBERE-HBEA
The future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable RET AR EHE 2 KRR
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: EHEERNFEENT :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$M HK$M
BEABR BEBTT
Property, plant and equipment Y WE R
- No later than 1 year —TER—F 25.0 10.0
— Later than 1 year and —BR—FETERRESF
no later than 5 years 26.9 25.7
— Later than 5 years —EBRAF 16.1 38.0
68.0 73.7
35 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 35 RIKEFIFTE
The table below outlines where the Group’s post-employment TRBRAE BT AGREMBIREK 2R
amounts and activity are included in the consolidated financial KefEREE -
statements.
2017 2016
2 —E-RK
HKS$M HK$M
HEER BAEBTT
Consolidated balance sheet obligations for: 4REEEBBERRIUATEE
ZEIME:
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) FERME S (D)) 26.7 24.1
Consolidated statement of profit or loss FEBmRIMATEERTA
charges included in operating profit for: Ry el e
Defined contribution plans (Note (a)) FEMHFEE (MFE@) 6.2 4.8
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) FERAEE (MEE(b)) 0.9 -
71 4.8
Remeasurements for: HATEBEZEHGZ
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) FERAEE (D)) 0.4 -
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R SRR EE

35 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
(a) Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect of the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in future

years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their basic payroll to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions

under the schemes.

(b) Defined benefit plans

The Group operates four defined benefit pension plans
in Germany, thereof one defined benefit plan is partially

funded.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

35 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 35 RIKEFIFTE (8)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) HREBAFE (&)
The assets of the defined benefit plans are held AERAGFEZEEEBIET
independently of the Group's assets in separate trustee ERESHASE Y EESFR
administered funds. The Group's major plans are valued B-AEEBZEBHEBREER
by qualified actuaries annually using the projected unit BHEAF AEBEN L REMS
credit method. The amounts recognised in the consolidated BHeEira B BRARANER
statement of financial position are determined as follows: SEIRNATARNERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEBT
Present value of funded obligations BB E THIEE 13.2 12.3
Present value of unfunded obligations B & T #YIRE 19.0 16.3
Fair value of plan assets TEEENRTE (5.5) (4.5)
Liabilities in the consolidated FeAEABRMEE
balance sheet 26.7 241
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R SRR EE

35 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 35 RKENEE (&)

264

(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) HREFAFE (&)
The movement of present value of defined benefit FRAREEHANEENREETE
liabilities and fair value of plan assets over the year EENAFEEZEHMT:
is as follows:
2017
“E-t%
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
liabilities assets Total
RERF FEEE
EENRE HATE @t
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEER BEER BEER
At 1 January ®—A—H 28.6 (4.5) 24.1
Current service cost EHRBAA 0.5 - 0.5
Interest expense FERZ 0.5 - 0.5
Interest income FEKA - (0.1) (0.1)
29.6 (4.6) 25.0
Remeasurements: EHE:
Effects from change in financial ~ B EBHRESMFTE
assumptions (0.3) - (0.3)
Return on plan assets, excluding ~ FTEIEERRER - FEE
amounts included in interest FAFIERAMSE
income - (0.1) (0.1)
(0.3) (0.1) (0.4)
Currency translation EWREER
differences 4.0 (0.6) 3.4
Contributions H®HK
- Employers -Ex (1.1) (0.4) (1.5)
— Plan participants —i B2 EE - - -
Payments from plans: BEE
- Benefit payments LIRS - 0.2 0.2
~ Settlements -&E - - -
As at 31 December Rt=A=+-H 322 (5.5) 26.7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE RS R AR RE

35 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 35 RIKEAEE (&)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) HREBAFE (&)
The movement of present value of defined benefit FRAREEHEENREETE
liabilities and fair value of plan assets over the year EENAFEEZBHOT: (&)

is as follows: (continued)

2016
—E-RE
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
liabilities assets Total
RERFAML HEEE
MRE MATE Mt
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT BEAT
Acquisition of subsidiaries ¢ SN 28.6 (4.5) 24.1
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 286 (4.5) 24.1
The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows: Frk A EZERERBENT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$M HK$M
HEER BEBT
Discount rate 835 % 1.5% 1.40% - 1.80%
Future salary increase rate R ANFr b & 0.00% - 3.00% 0.00%

BABREBARAT —EB—tEFH 265



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

35 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit plans to changes in
the weighted principal assumptions is:

35 RRERIEE (4)

(b)

RERBAE (F)
FUERM T EIH g = BRAE
BBRBEMNT

Impact on defined benefit liabilities

HACEANEAHEE
2017 2016

—8-tf “E-AF
Change in Increase in Decreasein ~ Changein  Increasein  Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption assumption  assumption  assumption
BRE2EH  BEREM  BRES  BREYH  BREN BEAD
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
HBEBT HEBER BERAT REAR
Discount rate B & 0.5% decrease increase 0.50% decrease increase
"L 2 N &
2.0 2.2 1.9 2.1
Pension increase RIREE L= 0.25% increase  decrease 0.25% increase decrease
rate £ o #m i
0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of
the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value
of the defined benefit obligations calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the pension
liabilities recognised within the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B ER AR RTEE

36 RBREIDZCERMIA

Assets at
fair value
Assets at through the
fair value other
Loans and through the comprehensive
receivables  profit or loss income Total
BATEFA
EXR RAFHEHA Hitt2E
EWHE BRvEE BWAZEE @t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET BEET BEAT BEET
31 December 2017 “B2-t&+ZA=+-8H
Assets as per consolidated REEEEERVEE
balance sheet
Trade and other B9 REMER
receivables excluding HE TREENTRE
prepayments 1,642.0 - - 1,642.0
Fixed return investment ElEmHEE 339.0 - - 339.0
Amount due from related parties &I BAEE 77 7B 205.6 - - 205.6
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4£&HTE - 6.1 - 6.1
Pledged bank deposits EEBBRITER 95.0 - - 95.0
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEEER 976.4 - - 976.4
Other non-current assets, HibERBEE -
excluding prepayments TEEENTE - - 1214 1214
Total oy 3,258.0 6.1 1214 3,385.5
31 December 2016 “E-RE+=ZA=+-H
Assets as per consolidated REEEEBRVEE
balance sheet (restated) (RE5)
Trade and other B9 REMER
receivables excluding HE TREENRE
prepayments 1,566.4 - - 1,566.4
Fixed return investment Bl mHEE 316.8 - - 316.8
Amount due from related parties  JE U BAEE 77 7B 262.5 = - 262.5
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4E£8TE - 7.9 - 7.9
Pledged bank deposits EEBHRITER 422.7 - - 422.7
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 1,656.7 - - 1,656.7
Other non-current assets, HibERBEE
excluding prepayments TEEENRE 6.1 - 46.0 52.1
Total Fohy 42312 7.9 46.0 4,285.1
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BA SRR PYRE

=
me

36

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

36 WERIEDZERIA (&)

Other Liabilities
financial at fair value
liabilities at through the
amortised cost profit or loss Total
REBHRE
FlEzHM  BROFERA
TRIBE BmzAE @it
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT BEAT
31 December 2017 —B-tF+=H=1+-—H
Liabilities as per consolidated REEEREBERZAR
balance sheet
Borrowings fam 4,155.2 - 4,155.2
Derivative financial instruments fTEERIA - 26.9 26.9
Trade and other B 5 K E e
payables excluding RIE - TREESH
non-financial liabilities =L 1,622.6 186.5 1,809.1
Amounts due to related parties & 1<F BB 75 R 0R 110.9 - 110.9
Total #et 5,888.7 213.4 6,102.1
31 December 2016 “E-RE+=ZA=t-H
Liabilities as per consolidated GREEESBRZEE
balance sheet (restated) (&BE5)
Borrowings, excluding convertible BT TRETRERES
bonds 4,950.9 - 4,950.9
Derivative financial instruments fTE:mIA - 31.5 31.5
Trade and other B 5 RE MR
payables excluding IR TEEEER
non-financial liabilities B 1,2382 158.1 1,396.3
Convertible bonds HRRES 67.0 - 67.0
Amounts due to related parties & 1<F B ES: 77 5008 153.0 - 153.0
Amount due to the immediate [ER BB ER R BFIA
holding company 197.0 - 197.0
Amount due to an intermediate FES AP AR R B FUR
holding company 10.1 - 10.1
Total #et 6,616.2 189.6 6,805.8
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37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 37

The Group is controlled by USUMHK which owns 62% of the
Company’s shares. The remaining 38% of the shares are widely
held. The ultimate holding company of the Group is Loncin Group
Co., Ltd (incorporated in the PRC). The ultimate controlling party
of the Group is Mr. Tu Jianhua.

(a) Transactions

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with its related parties during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

All of the transactions were carried out in the normal
course of the Group's business and on terms as agreed
between the transacting parties. They are summarised as

AR B ER AR RTEE

RAES 5 X 5

AEBBAEESEH AEEAsHE
RA62% XD - HER38% B D R ERZ
BEARE - AKBESRERAGAE
E5EFRAR (PR EGFMAKL) o &
BRI H T BREERE -

@ x5
MrEFELR A ISR R M o 3
BN AEERBE_ZT—+F
F—EBE—XRFE+_A=+—HIt
FELHEEBEBR A BETUTR
%o

FiE R BHURAEE R K EBB
TSP 1252 5 W7 T 5 7 0 I
7 BB BT -

follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—REF
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BEAT
Sales of goods to RATERHEHEE D
— Joint ventures —5EE 152.2 -
— Related parties —BAm A 649.8 -
Purchases of goods from BUTEAREER
— An associate =W (73.7) (76.0)
— Joint ventures —EELE (316.5) -
— Related parties —FA A (146.1) -
Interest income from REUTETEHHERA
— Joint ventures —GEE 1.9 -
Purchases of property, plant and BUTETEEYE-
equipment from B K &
— Related parties —E8 s (59.5) -
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R SRR EE

37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Transactions (continued)

37 BEARS (8)
(@) %5 (@)

2017 2016
—E—t#F ZE-RF
HK$M HK$M
BEER ER- 2w
Interest expense to MATEFZAMFERE
— The immediate holding company —ERERAA 0.2) (3.7)
- An intermediate holding company — AR A F] (1.4) (1.0
— Related parties L (1.5) -
Other income from (Note) RERTETHEMKA
(BE)
— Joint ventures —5EhE 1.1 -
— Related parties —Ba A 1.5 -
Administrative expenses THAX
- Management fee paid to — XN TFEELENERE
joint ventures (14.9) -
— Lease expense paid to related — SN TFEBIOEERS
parties (8.1) -
Note: Other income mainly comprised of management fee income, rental Mt : HMBWAZEREERERA -HERA

income, commission income.

RABEWA -
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37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Key management compensation

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

Key management includes all directors, chief executive

officer, chief financial officer, chief operation officer, chief
investment officer and chairman of the Company. The
compensations paid or payable to key management for

employee services are shown below:

(b)

37 BEARS (8)
ITEEEEHH

IZEEEREERES TR
mE BEREVMKE BRLER-
BEREERARBEFE Bt
HEERBMDNKENEIRE
BENZFIRAT

2017 2016
—E—LtF —E—REF
HKS$M HK$M
BHEET BEETT
Wages and salaries, including TERFS BEEEAKNER
restructuring costs and other H M EEERF
termination benefits 22.3 10.7
Pension costs — defined contribution EBARE KA — R FEH KT
plans 0.1 0.1
Other employee benefits H b {E B & A 0.6 0.7
Total st 23.0 11.5
Year-end balances (0 HFRER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HKS$M HK$M
BEBT BEBTT
Receivables from: JEU AN & 75 5RIA -
— Joint ventures (Note (i) —E BN (M) 64.8 138.9
— Related parties (Note (i) — @5 (MIsEG)) 140.8 123.6
205.6 262.5
Payables to: FEAT LA & 5 708
— An associate (Note (ii)) —BE N a] (M EEG)) - (6.6)
— Joint ventures (Note (jii)) — & & E (M) (30.6) (20.0)
— Related parties (Note (jii)) — A 77 (B & Gi)) (80.3) (126.4)
(110.9) (153.0)
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R SRR EE

37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued)

37 BEARS (8)
)

(c) Year-end balances (continued) () FHREEsR(E

Note: BT -

(i) The receivables from joint ventures and related parties include trade (i) s et E K@ RERER
receivables and other receivables. Trade receivables are repayable SIEWFIA R KM EWHIH-E 5
within 60 days, and other receivables are repayable on demand. Both FEW R IBARG0R AEE - T HAb
of them are unsecured and non-interest bearing. JEWGRIARIBIR Z R EE - Z WA

RIEG REER R R

(ii) The payable to an associate, Poly Metals, is a trade payable. The (i) ERBEANEBHRERE HE

payable is under normal payment terms. PRI o JE A SR IA B B — AR 32 AT I
o

(i) The payables to joint ventures and related parties include trade @iy  ENESCERBBTTEAREE
payables and other payables. Trade payables are repayable within 60 SRNFEREMEN KA -ES
days, and other payable are repayable on demand. Both of them are FETFRIBZARG0H ME R - i H A
unsecured and non-interest bearing. JERFRIBRI AR B REE -

The carrying amounts of the related parties balances M AR REEREQTE

approximate their fair values. BE -

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$M HK$M
BEART BEAT
Amount due to: JEAT AT % 5 508 -
- Immediate holding company —EEERAT (M)
(Note (i) - (197.0)
— Intermediate holding company — R EER AT (M)
(Note (ii)) - (10.1)
- (207.1)
Notes: BT -

(i)

(ii)

The loan from USUMHK represented the US$25,000,000 loan to the
Group with interest at 3.5% per annum and maturity date on 17 July
2017.

The loans from USUM Investment Group Limited represented the
RMB9,000,000 loan to the Group with interest at 8% per annum and
with maturity date on 23 October 2017.
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RE SRR

38 EREA MER

EEHS
BE-T—tF+-A=+-~8
IHFEZ EEHHBRIIOT

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a)

The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out below:

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
BARER
He HeREE RERAL BE L3 L @
HK$M HK$M HKSM HK$M HK$M HKSM
By BEAL BEATL BEAT BEATL By
(Note (b))
(M3E(b))
Year ended BE-E-+%
31 December 2017: TZA=t-RLEE
Executive directors: iTER
Mr. Tu Jianhua ("Mr. Tu") (Note ii REELE ([REE])
(B i) - 20 23 - - 43
Mr. Qin Yongming FAREE([REE])
(“Mr. Qin") (Note v) (BizEiv) - 44 28 - 03 15
Mr. Liu Huaiyu (Note iv) HEES AR - 0.5 - - 0.2 0.7
Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong (Note v) RERELAE (Hv) - 1.2 - - 04 16
Mr. Wong Wun Lam (Note v) BRHFLE (M) - 0.6 0.5 - - 11
Non-executive directors: FYfTES
Dr. Loke Yu BT 0.2 - - - - 0.2
Mr. Qian Liping (Note vii) BEF L (M) 0.2 - - - - 0.2
Mr. Zhu Dajian Nyt 02 - - - - 0.2
0.6 8.7 5.6 - 0.9 15.8
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R SRR EE

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 38 ExEA LR (8)
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) () EEMS (&)
The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31 Bz XF+-_HA=+—8
December 2016 is set out below: HEEZESHMEN DT :
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
BIKER
ne HEREN KRR AR HiER @
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
AEAT AEAT AEAT AEAT AEAT AEAT
(Note (b))
(3£ (o))
Year ended BE-E-RE+ZR
31 December 2016: =t-ALEE:
Executive directors: HrES:
Mr. Tu Jianhua ("Mr. Tu")  REERAE ([REA])
(Note ii) (FEii) - 15 03 - - 18
Mr. Qin Yongming (Note i)~ ZKkBI% 4 (HizEiv) - 1.0 03 - 0.1 14
Mr. Liu Huaiyu (Note iv) AEFr s (M) - 03 02 - - 05
Mr. Fang Ankong RRERE([FEE])
("Mr. Fang") (Note i) GED) - - - - 03 03
Mr. Meng Yi (Note i) BRI - 02 - - - 02
Mr. Zhang Jun (Note ii) RE & E (M) - 11 03 - 0.1 15
Mr. Zhang Mingjie (Note ) SREBANE 4 (M) - 03 - - - 03

Non-executive directors: ~ HHTEE:

Dr. Loke Yu BgmEL 02 - - - - 02
Ms. Qian Liping (Note vi) ~ $EE 2+ (Hizhvii) 0.1 - - - - 0.1
Mr. Zhu Dajian FREEE 02 - - - - 02
Ms. Zhang Jingdong (Note vi) EHEL T (M) 02 - - - - 02

0.7 44 1.1 - 05 6.7

274  chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Mr. Qin Yongming is also the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since 17 July 2017 and his emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by him as Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Qin Yongming were appointed on 30
June 2016 as executive director.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Mr. Fang, Mr. Zhang Mingjie and Mr. Meng Yi were
resigned on 15 February 2016, 30 June 2016 and 1
April 2016 respectively.

Mr. Tu Jianhua was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 15 February 2016 and
resigned on 17 July 2017, but remained as executive
director.

Mr. Zhang Jun was appointed as executive director on
1 April 2016 and resigned on 24 October 2016.

Mr. Liu Huaiyu and Mr. Qin Yongming were
appointed as executive directors on 24 October
2016 and 30 June 2016 respectively. Mr. Liu Huanyu
resigned on 7 April 2017.

Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong and Mr. Wong Wun Lam
were appointed as executive directors on 1 April
2017 and 11 October 2017 respectively. Mr. Zhu
Patrick Xiangdong resigned on 11 October 2017.

Ms. Zhang Jingdong resigned on 24 October 2016.

AR B ER AR RTEE

38 EEMEA NEm ()

(@) E=M< (&)
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KPARETARNRRITHER
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iy FHEE -RERNEERRIAE
REDRNRZZT—RF=
B+HB - —Z—XR"F~A
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HEHTE-
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BBE WHh T —tFt
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£
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R SRR EE

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(vii)  Ms. Qian Liping was appointed as non-executive
director on 24 October 2016.

(viii)  During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the directors waived any emoluments during both

years.

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
paid retirement benefits to Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Qin
Yongming, Mr. Liu Huaiyu, Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong
and Mr. Wong Wun Lam with HK$18,000, HK$18,000,
HK$6,000, HK$10,500 and HK$4,500 respectively (2016:
HK$18,000, HK$10,000, HK$5,000, HK$Nil and HK$Nil
respectively).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
does not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities
with such directors

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and controlled
entities with such directors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(e)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the financial year
(2016: Nil).

39 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

Acquisition of Scholz Holding

As part of a series of steps taken by the Group to acquire
Scholz Holding, the Group participated and completed the
debt restructuring programme of Scholz Group in 2016 to
revitalise the sustainable going concern of Scholz Group’s
business.

Pursuant to the German Debt Purchase Agreement signed
in June 2016, the Group has paid EUR256 million to
purchase the rights and obligations under certain loan
agreements and promissory notes of Scholz Group with an
aggregate principal amount of EUR524 million and accrued
interest of EURO.2 million from certain independent lenders
comprising German financial institutions, international
debt providers and funds, and to settle the Austrian Bond
issued by Scholz Group with a principal amount of EUR182
million and accrued interest of EUR21 million. In addition,
the Group and Scholz Group are obliged to pay EUR20.4
million to these independent lenders and EUR5.8 million
to the bondholders, respectively, if Scholz Group’s EBITDA,
excluding amount attributable to non-controlling interest
of Scholz Group, based on Scholz Group’s consolidated
financial statements prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in Germany is more than
EUR100 million for either of the fiscal year 2016 or the
fiscal year 2017. Formal closing of the German Debt
Purchase Agreement took place in July 2016.

Note: German Debt Purchase Agreement, Austrian Bond were defined in the

Company'’s circular dated 22 November 2016.
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39 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(a) Acquisition of Scholz Holding (continued)

Subsequent to the completion of the above debt
restructuring programme, in December 2016, the Group
acquired 100% of the share capital of Scholz Holding for a
nominal purchase price of EURT.

As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected to
have direct and immediate access to its global customer
base and stable upstream material supplies in the European
and U.S. markets as well as leveraging on Scholz Group's
business and know-how which, in turn, enhances the
operating efficiency and create synergistic effects within the
Group. Meanwhile, Scholz Group would also be benefited
by gaining access to the Group's customer base and
distributed channel in the PRC.

The purchase price allocation of the acquisition of Scholz
Group in 2016 was completed in December 2017. The
finalisation of purchase price allocation was supported by
a valuation performed by the independent professional
valuers, Jones Lang Lasalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited. The Group retrospectively adjusted the
provisional amounts recognised at the acquisition date
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date. This
resulted in an adjustment to certain assets and liabilities
due to the completion of the valuation of the fair values
as at the date of acquisition, along with a corresponding
decline in goodwill in the consolidated balance sheet. The
changes in purchase price allocation is shown below:
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AR B ER AR RTEE

39 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 39 EBAf(8)
(a) Acquisition of Scholz Holding (continued) () WHEIEmRER (&)
At 31 December 2016 R-E-X"E+=-A=+—H
Before After

finalisation of ~ Adjustmentin finalisation of
purchase price  purchase price  purchase price

allocation allocation allocation
TREL BEE TREE
BEESEA SEER BESEIE#%
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT BEET
Property, plant and ME - BB KRB
equipment 2,372.0 (129.3) 2,242.7
Intangible assets, excluding EFEE  TREFE
goodwill (Note 17) (PHEE17) 363.1 (45.4) 317.7
Interests in joint ventures A Z M ERER 423.4 22.0 445 .4
Other non-current assets ~ Hb3ERBEE 54.2 (5.7) 485
Assets classified as held DERRIELEEE
for sale 140.5 226.8 367.3
Cash and cash equivalents R&MREEEBR 133.3 - 133.3
Pledged bank deposits BEEBRITER 345.9 - 3459
Trade and other receivables & 5 K b e Y 708 1,611.2 (1.2) 1,610.0
Inventories et 627.5 (35.3) 592.2
Amounts due from JENR BEESE 5 SRR R R
related parties, net 122.4 (5.6) 116.8
Trade and other payables &5 &k E b e 508 (1,171.7) 2.9 (1,168.8)
Borrowings EEA (2,564.0) 16.3 (2,547.7)
Deferred income tax ELEMEHARTE
liabilities, net (269.0) 95.7 (173.3)
Amounts due to the BN AEBEFRIEFE
Group, net (2,711.9) - (2,711.9)
Others Hith (152.5) 16.6 (135.9)
Goodwill (Note 17) PEE (HisE17) 833.7 (157.8) 675.9
Consideration and RERIAKE
contingent consideration 158.1 - 158.1
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R SRR EE

39 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Scholz Holding (continued)

The goodwill of approximately HK$675.9 million arising
from the acquisition is mainly attributable to the anticipated
profitability and net cash inflows of the acquired business
and the synergies created from the merger and acquisition
of and the integration with newly-acquired business.

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$97.1 million
have been charged to administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2016.

There was no revenue or loss contributed by Scholz Group
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
since the acquisition date for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Had Scholz Group been consolidated from 1 January 2016,
the Scholz Group would contribute revenue of HK$9,011.2
million and loss of HK$816.9 million to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Acquisition of Dinos

As previously mentioned in Note 21, on 29 November
2017, the Group and the joint venture partner of CIOS
entered into a sale and purchase agreement in which the
Group agreed to dispose its entire interest in CIOS as part
of the consideration in exchange for 80% of Dinos.

Dinos is a metal recycler in Slovenia of with 20% of its
interest was directly held by Scholz Group, while the
remaining 80% of its interest was held by CIOS prior to the
transaction mentioned below.

Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2017

39 EBAf(8)

(a)

(b)

W B B A AR (]

U B BT £ A 896187,5908 8 7T 2
HME FTERAAMKEERTE
HAEFENRFERSRERHE
S E ) 165 [B) A R S 3T WK B 7
Z2EBE-

WEE BRI A K9, 7108 B T E &t
ABE-—Z-RFt+-A=+1—
BUEFEZHEABERTHNITR
P °

HEz—_Z2—XR"F+=-A=+—H
IHFEE - BREEB L BEIER
REE TR 2 WS E B AL

AEmK-

WIERAEBEH T — R F—
A—BRBEGEAEAR ER%XE
BEEEE T E+_A
—t+t—RIEFENGEERRE
BAULZE90181,1208 78 7T R 5 188
81,6908 5 7T

I & Dinos

B E X221 R F
—+F+—A=-+hB KEER
HCIOSMAETEEAEB AGIL
EEWR EPASERELE
HRCIOSH) 2 JhfE = - E R HER
Dinos 80% 1z 2 B A (B o

Dinos& T /& X B T8 ) & &8 18] IR
7RI A0 B
REBEEEREE20%MES M
T 80% M) s A CIOSHF A& »



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

Acquisition of Dinos (continued)

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the Group
agreed to acquire the remaining 80% interest of Dinos held
by CIOS, in return, the Group transferred its entire 51.43%
interest in CIOS to the joint venture partner. Furthermore,
several other assets, including cash, other equity
investments and receivables were transferred between both
parties.

Subsequent to the transaction, Dinos became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. The transaction is
accounted for as a business combination achieved in stages.
The Group remeasured its previously held interest in Dinos
on the date of acquisition which approximate its restated
carrying value included in assets classified as held for sale.

The non-cash assets/liabilities transferred in return of the
remaining 80% interest of Dinos, including 51.43% interest
in CIOS, certain amounts due from/to related parties, other
non-current assets, were accounted for as the consideration
transferred and remeasured at fair value at the date of
acquisition. A gain on bargain purchase of HK$96.8 million
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected to
streamline its group structure in the Balkans and enhance
its control over its metal recycling business in Slovenia.

39 EHa

(b)
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R SRR EE

39 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 39 EBast (&)

(b) Acquisition of Dinos (continued) (b) UxEEDinos (#&)
HKS$'M
BEBT

Consideration: RIE
— Interest in CIOS and other equity —RCIOSK A MR AR E 2 #am

investments 187.9
— Assignment of loan payable to a subsidiary —#EEEN FARER 22.6
— Receivables transferred — BRI E 5.9
— Cash received —BUlIRE (43.9)
Total consideration transferred, net weE R (B 172.5
Fair value of shares previously held AEBBRTHENRMDOHATE

by the Group 269.4
Total consideration wRAE 441.9
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets TSR T UL B AT B Rl & B R

acquired and liabilities assumed: FiAEaENSE:
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB MEE 386.1
Intangible assets (Note 17) mpEE (:17) 58.2
Other non-current assets HiERSEE 72.2
Deferred income tax assets BEMSHREE 1.0
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEIEE 3.6
Inventories 5B 63.3
Amounts due from group companies, net JEM B A RIFRIBFRE 28.3
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H AR R IE 230.3
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRE (144.7)
Borrowings fa (118.0)
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMSHAE (36.3)
Current income tax liabilities BEAFTIS T & fE (5.3)
Total identifiable net assets BE R EEFE 538.7
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 7) EEEE W (MEE7) (96.8)
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RE SRR

39 EBEH(E)
% B8 Dinos (#&)

39 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(b) Acquisition of Dinos (continued) (b)

Cash flows involved in the acquisition of Dinos is
summarised as follows:

W R UGB Dinos 2 38 & i = Mt it 40
T

2017

—E2-t5F

HK$'M

BEBERT

Cash consideration received BEWESRE 43.9
Add: Balances acquired N pTUEE A R

— Cash and cash equivalents —-HekReFHEIEAER 3.6

Net inflow of cash WEMRANFEE
— investing activities —REES 47.5

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$0.4 million
have been charged to administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The gain on bargain purchase was the variance between
the consideration and the net asset value acquired after
commercial negotiation with the vendor. The gain is
included in “other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2017. The bargain purchase gain on acquisition of Dinos
is mainly attributable to the fact that other joint venture
partner was anxious to dispose the 80% interest in Dinos.
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R SRR EE

39 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(b) Acquisition of Dinos (continued)

(c)

The fair value and gross contractual amount of acquired
trade receivables was HK$221.0 million.

The acquired business contributed revenues of HK$79.2
million and net loss of approximately HK$9.5 million to the
Group for the period from 29 November to 31 December
2017.

Had Dinos been consolidated from 1 January 2017, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss would show pro-
forma revenue of approximately HK$19,509.4 million and
profit for the year of approximately HK$437.5 million.

Acquisition of Yantai Liheng

In January 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
in Yantai Liheng through a 60% owned subsidiary for
approximately HK$65.6 million and obtained control of
Yantai Liheng, which principally engages in recycling of
hazardous waste and sale of, lubricating oil, wax oil, base
oil, residual oil, fuel oil and the related additives.

As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected to
expand into the business relating to waste lubricating
oil processing, thereby will increase the revenue base
of the Group. The goodwill of approximately HK$14.7
million arising from the acquisition is attributable to the
acquired market on the north eastern region of the PRC,
and economies of scale expected from combining the
operations of Yantai Liheng.
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39 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(c)

Acquisition of Yantai Liheng (continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for acquisition of Yantai Liheng, the fair value of assets
acquired, liabilities assumed on the acquisition date.

AR B ER AR RTEE

39 EBAf(8)

(9]

WisEA I (&)
TREMKRBZES LGz
RE RUBEHAKBEER
Pz BBz R FE.

HK$'M
HEBRT
Consideration: IR
— Cash consideration - RERE 64.1
— Consideration payable —ERRE 1.5
Total consideration transferred EPEEARE 65.6
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets BB EERIAEABL
acquired and liabilities assumed: HReH:
Property, plant and equipment W BB MKEE 40.7
Land use rights b {0 A A 15.9
Deposits o 0.3
Inventories EN=Y 3.5
Prepayments and other receivables T8 SR I8 K2 H i E U kI8 10.9
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEeFEIEE 11.8
Trade and other payables B 5 & H h FE S FUIE (14.4)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (17.8)
Total identifiable net assets ARl REEFE 50.9
Goodwill (Note 17) EE (17) 14.7

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$0.3 million
have been charged to administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2016.

The consideration payable of RMB1.2 million (approximately
HK$1.5 million) is to be paid within 30 days right after first
anniversary of completion of the acquisition pursuant to the
sales and purchase agreement dated 16 January 2016. The
amount was paid in January 2017.
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R SRR EE

39 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Acquisition of Yantai Liheng (continued)

The revenue contributed by Yantai Liheng included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss since the date of
acquisition was approximately HK$1.2 million.

Had Yantai Liheng been consolidated from 1 January 2016,
Yantai Liheng would contribute revenue of approximately
HK$1.2 million and loss of approximately HK$16.7 million
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Acquisition of DNG

In March 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in
DNG for 31,037,585 ordinary shares of the Company and
obtained control of DNG, a recycler specialised in mixed
metal scrap recycling, disassembling and processing, and
resource recycling.

As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected to
enhance the Group’s processing coverage especially in the
north-eastern region of the PRC.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
acquiring DNG, the fair value of assets acquired, liabilities
assumed on the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B ER AR RTEE

39 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 39 EBAEOH (&)
(d) Acquisition of DNG (continued) (d) WEREHEZ (&)
HK$'M

BEBL
Consideration: RE:
— Issue of ordinary shares —BITEER 111.7
— Contingent consideration received —B A RE (6.1)
Total consideration transferred EEEARE 105.6
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets BRERIEBANEERIEAEABEY

acquired and liabilities assumed: EReHE:

Property, plant and equipment Y WE R 153.6
Land use rights b {0 A A 3.9
Inventories 7E 4.2
Prepayments and other receivables TR AN RRIE B B A e U R IR 26.8
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFHBHEE 7.6
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A E S I8 (1.6)
Total identifiable net assets ARl EERE 194.5
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 7) HEEE W (MFT7) (88.9)
Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$0.8 million Y g R RA Y A 2 49808 B B 5T
have been charged to administrative expenses in the ABEZZE—RF+ZA=+—
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended HBItFEZHGRABRRTHITR
31 December 2016. Fix e
The fair value of the 31,037,585 ordinary shares issued TEAS N REF 4 2 2o R
as part of the consideration paid for DNG (approximately B (11117088 7T) MEET2
HK$111.7 million) was based on the published market 31,037,5850 & @A 2 A F{E T
price on 21 March 2016. Issuance cost totally HK$0.04 BEZT—-—"F=A=+—A2~
million was settled against the proceeds, also contributed EAMMEETE - BITHRAS 14
loss of approximately HK$7.7 million for the year ended 31 EBTEBRMEHRIEXN 18
December 2016. BHEZT—ARFTtZA=1+—

B FERBERO7708E8 T
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rE PSRRI

39 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(d) Acquisition of DNG (continued)

The contingent consideration arrangement requires the
Group to pay or receive cash if the net asset value of DNG
as at the month end immediately preceding the target
shares transfer date is higher or lower than the net asset
value of DNG as at the pre-closing date. As a result, a
contingent consideration of approximately HK$6.1 million
was received by the Group in April 2016.

The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of
approximately HK$88.9 million as a result of the business
combination (Note 7). The gain is included in “other gains/
(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2016. The bargain
purchase gain on acquisition of DNG is mainly attributable
to the decrease in share price of the Company before the
completion of the acquisition. The Company's share price
on the date of sale and purchase agreement was HK$5.60
and that on the date of completion in March 2016 was
HK$3.60.

In 2016, the plant and production facilities were under
construction and it has not yet commenced operations.
There was no revenue contributed by DNG included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2016 since 21 March 2016. DNG contributed
a loss of approximately HK$14.4 million to the Group for
the period from 21 March 2016 to 31 December 2016.

Had DNG been consolidated from 1 January 2016, no
revenue and a loss of approximately HK$9.6 million would
be contributed to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B ER AR RTEE

40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40 REFTHFRE
Reconciliation from profit/(loss) before income tax to cash BRETERAREF, (EB) BELEmE
generated from operations: R HIK:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$M HK$M
BEART AEBT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMERENE
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETISH AR T (BE) 546.2 (443.6)
Adjustments for: RATBIBFE:
Finance costs (Note 10) WIS RA (FE5E10) 416.1 82.0
Finance income (Note 10) BRI A (M15E10) (38.8) (47.9)
Dividend income (Note 6) BB A (KizE6) (6.1) (8.5)
Losses on fair value change of financial R AFEFFAEBHE 2
assets at fair value through profit or PHEEZANTEE L
loss (Note 7) B8 (fFE7) 1.7 105.3
Depreciation of investment properties wEMERE (M5E16)
(Note 16) 4.9 4.0
Depreciation of property, plant and Y WE RERETE
equipment (Note 14) (PFzE14) 369.5 41.9
Amortisation of leasehold land and THE b Jo o+ b 50 A 4
land use rights (Note 15) BiH (MIEE15) 13.2 14.8
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) &2 & E #85 (Fi5£17) 11.5 -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE R&EZ
plant and equipment (Note 7) (Wezs) / BB (HE7) (16.0) 0.9
Loss on disposal of leasehold land and HERE i ]2 + o AR
land use rights (Note 7) Z &8 (fEE7) - 37.4
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYEZ Was (MFE7)
properties (Note 7) (254.5) -
Gain on disposal of assets classified PESBEARBIELELE
as held for sales (Note 7) ZWas (fFEE7) (38.5) -
Provision for impairment of trade and B 5 REMEWKFIEZ
other receivables, net of reversal AR (R EE)
(Note 7) (FF7E7) 49.3 (6.6)
Provision for/(utilisation of provision for) 77 &%, (SR &)
inventories (Note 8) (FI5E8) 5.4 (76.0)
Provision for impairment of property, ME BB &R A2 R E R
plant and equipment (Note 7) (FfF7E7) 14.3 -
Provision for impairment of leasehold HELH kL FRAE L
land and land use rights (Note 7) MERE (MFE7) 92.4 -
Gain on bargain purchase on RWEBEFRAIZ
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 7) HEEREE W (MEE7) (96.8) (88.9)
Share of profit of an associate JE 4l Bt 2 1 &) g A (0.2) (0.4)
Share of profit of joint ventures FE(REa &R (108.6) -
Gain on fair value of embedded AR ES 2 R AR ITE D
derivative components of 2 A EWE (KEE7)
convertible bonds (Note 7) - (9.6)
Non-cash post-employment benefit R IRRBN XL
expenses (0.4) -
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses SNE (Mz=) /EBFE (9.7) 296.1
954.9 (99.1)
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R SRR EE

40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40 REFIRE (&)
(continued)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$M HK$M
HEBT BEAT
Changes in working capital HEESEY
Increase in inventories fF &8N (320.5) (174.0)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 % Fo i JE SR TE R > 21.7 125.0
Increase in derivative financial instruments  $74 & 8 T A& 40 (3.0) (1.3)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 I CE b JE AT SRIEIE AN 197.2 241.3
Cash generated from operations KEFRERS 850.3 91.9
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale REZFeREeEneER HEVE BE
of property, plant and equipment comprise: PELCERCE 2R
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E-RE
HK$M HK$M
BEER BEBT
Net book amount (Note 14) REDFE (KMisE14) 122.8 23
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, tlj%'#%% 5 N &2
plant and equipment %,/ (E58) 16.0 (0.9)
Proceeds receivable Wﬂ&ﬁﬂ%?&( (12.4) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVNE BERRE
plant and equipment FBE 126.4 1.4
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RE SRR

40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40 KEFTSIRE (58)
(continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale REZGERERER HEDEARE
of assets classified as held for sale comprise of: HEEEFAERIBERIE:
2017 2016
—E—+F —ZE—RF
HK$M HK$M
AEBT BEET
Net book amount (Note 21) BREFE (MEFE21) 33.5 -
Gain on disposal of assets classified as EESHEABIELEEE
held for sale 2 Wz 38.5 -
Proceeds from disposal of assets HESEABHELEEE
classified as asset held for sale Z T8 E 72.0 -
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale REZzFaRenes HEHELT AR
of leasehold land comprise: SRR

2017 2016

—E—tF —ZE—RF

HK$M HK$M

BEAT BAEBT

Net book amount (Note 15) BRmEE (BIsE15) - 45.1

Loss on disposal of leasehold land HEMEE T2 B8 - (37.4)
Proceeds from disposal of HERE + it 5

leasehold land - 7.7
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e BB ERARMIEE

o N
40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40 KEMBEE (8)
(continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sales RamalleREgX HERE
of investment properties comprise of: YFE TS HIEEE
2017 2016
—E—tF NS
HK$M HK$M
BEERT BAEBTT
Net book amount (Note 16) AREF(E (MizE16) 76.2 -
Gain on disposal of investment properties &R E Y E 2 Wk 254.5 -
Proceeds receivable JEUR P 1S R E (228.7) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYEZFREBNRE
investment properties 102.0 -
(@) Net debt reconciliation (a) EHFHEHR
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the Zliﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘“’m RS
movements in net debt for each of the periods presented. FHHERFREY
Liabilities from financing activities
BEFHELHER
Amount Amount
Finance lease Bank Bank Other Other Note Note  Convertible  duetothe  duetoan
liabilities due ~ Finance lease  borrowings  borrowing  borrowings  borrowing  payable due  payabledue  bondsdue  immediate intermediate
within liabilities due  duewithin ~ dueafter  duewithin  due after within after within holding holding
Tyear after 1 year 1 year 1year 1year 1 year 1year 1year 1 year company company Total
R-FRHE R-F438
HREEE  NRER W-FAEE R-S4DE R-EREE R-SR3E R-FAEE R-F4DE R-EREE ENERER EGMEER
1 RRE  OBAER  OROER  NREER  OEBER  NERRE  NBGRE NURRRE  QERE A9RE #it
HKS'™ HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'™ HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
EE%T  EEET  BERT  BE®R  EAET  BEER FEEEn BEER EEE BEER EEER EAER
Net debt as at
31 December 2016
304 1615 2849.7 3339 1106 - - 14648 670 197.0 101 52250
Proceeds/additions 82 343 22744 2753 2850 4189 - - - 127 - 33088
Repayments (@17 - (4.4478) - (456) - - (67.6) (209.8) (10.1) (4.8286)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WHAT SRS
(Note 39(b) 12 31 71 80.0 - - - - - - 1180
Other non-cash movement AbFREEY 780 (180) 1774 (1754 - - 14648 (1.4648) 06 - - 26
Currency translation differences gHunze 4 212 2016 582 291 18 - 01 - 394
Net debt as at RZB-t%
31 December 2017 TZAZt-R
HEBTE 85 1421 1,830 5720 3791 4189 14766 - - - - 41552
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 41 BEEBXRNMHEEBEE
Balance sheet of the Company rARZEERER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note HK$'M HK$'M
B E BERR AEBTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries, unlisted R FA A2 & LT 3,500.4 -
Loan receivables from a subsidiary fEUT A B E R 58.6 178.4
3,559.0 178.4
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H i & W R IE 339.4 317.3
Amounts due from subsidiaries ~ FEUL T2 &I FIE 2,961.3 6,198.7
Amount due from a related party & Ut B4 75 318 0.6 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFE&EEIER 40.6 42.6
3,341.9 6,558.6
Total assets EEHAE 6,900.9 6,737.0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BaRkAE
Equity attributable to AATREEGERE
shareholders of the Company
Share capital [N 27 16.1 16.2
Reserves i (a) 4,511.6 4,565.1
Total equity w 4,527.7 4,581.3
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R SRR EE

41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 41 BEEBBRMFEEBEEZE (B)
MOVEMENT(continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) KPR zEEEER (H)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Note HK$'M HK$'M
B E BERT AEBT
LIABILITIES a8
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Other borrowings Hh & 5K 431.6 1,464.9
431.6 1,464.9
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A I H A JE N 5R0E 48.2 55.2
Amounts due to subsidiaries TR RIFIA 411.9 324.8
Amount due to the immediate e EEER AR RE
holding company - 197.0
Debt components of convertible [ &5 2 EH D
bonds - 67.0
Other borrowings HA AR 1,476.6 448
Current income tax liabilities BVEF SR aE 4.9 2.0
e 19496 @ 6908 _
Total liabilities wa® 23732 21557 _
Total equity and liabilities HEZRAE 6,900.9 6,737.0

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 28 March 2018 and was signed on its behalf:

ARBZBERBROEEZEN T
—NEFE=ZA T N\BHETRHATESE
RERBEE:

Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Qin Yongming

REESE RXKHALE
Director Director
=% EF
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RE RS R AR RE

41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 41 BEBBXREFEED (B)
(continued)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company M () A AR 2 REEZS
Capital Share
Share  redemption option Capital ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
EAER BRE
R EE 1] i EXGR 2iER it
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HKSM
AEATL BEATL BEBAT ABATL BEATL BBAT
(Note (i))
(H3E )

At 1 January 2016 WZE-~F-A—H 5,864.8 0.2 13 216.2 (649.8) 54327
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (979.8) (979.8)

Total comprehensive loss FNZAFELE
for the year - - - - (979.8) (979.8)
Issue of subscription shares BIRERN 114 - - - - 114
Exercise of share options I ERE 1.1 - (03) - - 08
Lapse of share options BRELN - - (1.0) - 10 -

At 31 December 2016 RZB-~F

+-A=+-H 59773 0.2 - 216.2 (1,628.6) 4,565.1
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R SRR EE

41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 4 BEEBBRMEHEZS (B)
(continued)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company (continued) MisE(a) N AR Z EHEES (58)
Capital
Share redemption Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
EXERE
R EE e EXRE By f ] @zt
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
HEER BEER EE Y0 HEET HEER
(Note (i)
(K=t (i)
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+F—A—H 5,977.3 0.2 216.2 (1,628.6) 4,565.1
Loss for the year FREE - - - 11.9 11.9
Total comprehensive ENZAFBBAE
loss for the year - - - 11.9 11.9
Subscription shares O R R BB
repurchased and
cancelled (65.4) 0.1 - (0.1) (65.4)
At 31 December 2017 R=ZF—+F+=-A=1+—H 5,911.9 0.3 216.2 (1,616.8) 4,511.6
Notes: B 5
(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the @ AREEEQIRAR-FE/\F

nominal value of the aggregate share capital and share premium
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company upon a group
reorganisation in 2008 and the nominal value of the Company's
shares issued in exchange and (b) a capitalisation of shareholders’
loans in 2010.
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RE SRR

—_ = =
42 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42 RRBIZFRAIFFS
COMPANY
(a) General information of principle subsidiaries (a) ETEFLARN—REHR
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/  registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Notes ~ operation establishment  capital held by the Group Principal activities
AL BRORARKRE AEEMREERAERR
FRARER Wi EERE /BIBE /BB RERE TREH
2017 2016
“E-tf ZTR%
Delco Europe B.V. The Netherlands ~ The Netherlands ~ EUR18,151 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
W W 18,15180C Group
FEEYRERE
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
BAX (EH)BRARA B Be B Group and wholesales
of metal scrap without
processing
AREERBRIEREN
IZE:R
Chiho Eco Protection Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment, management
BAGeRRERAR BE BE 10,0007 and trading
RE EERESH
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Metals Recycling Co., Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$35,000,000 100% 70%  Trading of metal scrap
Limited ("CTHK Metals") B B 35,000,000/ 7 BEEEE
Eaxi(FR)BLEBARAR
([BaE#2E])
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry Company The PRC The PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Limited* Ll HE 7,500,000% 7 metal scrap, production
AMEERILEEERAR and sales of metal
products
MIRHEESE £ER
HELBER
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals Company The PRC The PRC US$108,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Limited* HE # 108,000,0005 70 metal scrap, production
AMEERLEBERAR and sales of metal
products
NIRHERSE £ER
HELBER
Chiho-Tiande (YanTai) Resources Recycling The PRC The PRC US$40,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Co. Limited* H H 40,000,000% 7T metal scrap
EaXi (E8)BEERERAR MIRHEREE
*  For identification purpose only * EHEF)

EERREEGFRLE —Z-tFER
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R SRR EE

== NS E (4
42 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42 RRBIZFRAFE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) General information of principle subsidiaries (a) EEFLARN—REHR (F)
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/  registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Notes  operation establishment  capital held by the Group Principal activities
AL BRARBERS FERERBEEREERR
FRARER Wi EEBE /RIS /ERBA REE TEEH
2017 2016
-t 3%
Chiho-Tiande (Yantai) Environmental ()  ThePRC The PRC 5$28,999,955 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Technology Co., Limited* # # 28,999,955% 7T metal scrap
BEXM (ER)RRERERAR NIRHEESE
Yantai Liheng Environmental Protection The PRC The PRC RMB55,150,000 60% 60%  Processing and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd* HE HE AR #55,150,0007 ubricating oil
EaUERRNBEARAA MIRHERER
Chiho-Tiande (Ningbo) Metals Recycling () ThePRC The PRC $$20,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Co., Limited* # # 20,000,000 T metal scraps
EaXi (BR)BELBARARA MIRHEREE
Shanghai Chiho-Tiande Resource Recycling The PRC The PRC RMB52,000,000 51% 51%  Processing and sales of
Co., Limited ("CT Shanghai")* H H ARH52,000,0007 metal scrap
HEBARNBEERERAR NIRHERSE
Dalian New Green Recycle & Resources The PRC The PRC JPY 8,556,011,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Corporation* HE HE 8,556,011,0008 metal scrap
REFEBEERNIARAR MIRHEREE
Eisenbahn-Handels-Ges. mbH & Co.KG Germany Germany EUR20,000 50% 50%  Processing and sales of
zE (1 20,00080 7 metal scrap
MIRHEREE
Fegert Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR84,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Ze e 84,0008 7T metal scrap
NIRHERSE
Scholz Industrieservice GmbH Germany Germany EUR50,000 100% 100%  Providing industrial and
&E 3] 50,0008 70 logistic services
RETERMTRS
Scholz Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR100,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
fzE =8 100,000,008 7T metal scrap
MIRHEREE
*  For identification purpose only * EHHF
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RE SRR

== =2 (s
42 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42 RRBIZFRAFE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) General information of principle subsidiaries (a) EEFRARN—REHR (F)
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/  registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Notes  operation establishment  capital held by the Group Principal activities
A BRARBERS REEREEEREERR
FRAREH Wi EEBE /BIBE /ERBA REE TEEH
2017 2016
—E-tf 3%
SIV Immobilien Verwaltungs-GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Purchase and administration
&R &R 25,0008 7 of real estate
BELEERLE
SRW metalfloat GmbH Germany Germany EUR1,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
&E &8 1,000,000 70 metal scrap
MIRHEREE
Diamond Hurwitz Scrap LLC USA USA US$7,095,600 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
E E3] 7,095,600% ¢ metal scrap
MIRHEREE
Interstate Shredding LLC USA USA US$100 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
EL) *8 10057 metal scrap
MIREEELR
Liberty International Trading, Inc USA USA US$100 100% 100%  Trading of metal scrap
Ed e 100%7T BEEBRS
Liberty Iron & Metal Erie, LLC USA USA US$23,879,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
e e 23,879,005 7 metal scrap
MIRHEREE
Liberty Iron & Metal Southwest LLC USA USA US$8,419,800 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
%H %H 8,419,800% 7 metal scrap
MIRHEREEE
Mercer Co., LLC USA USA US$43,965,600 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
%H e 43,965,6005 T metal scrap
NIRHERSE
Premier Metals Group LLC USA USA US$952,100 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
%68 %68 952,100% T metal scrap
MIRHERESE
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R SRR EE

== e =
42 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42 RRBIZFRAFE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) General information of principle subsidiaries (a) EEFLARN—REHR (F)
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/  registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Notes  operation establishment  capital held by the Group Principal activities
AL BRARBERS FERERBEEREERR
FARER Wi SERE /RIS /ERBA RER TEER
2017 2016
ZE2-tf 2R
Uniscrap A/S Denmark Denmark DKK20,003,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
& & 20,003,000 & %2 £ metal scrap
MIREERLR
Uniscrap Sverige AB Sweden Sweden SEK100,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
gl ok} 100,000% 72 57 metal scrap
MIRHEREE
Scholz Polska Sp. z.0.0. Poland Poland PLN88,501,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
it it 88,501,000% %12 metal scrap
MIRHEREE
Kovosrot Group CZ s.r.0. Czech Republic ~ Czech Republic ~ CZK499,834,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
R LME R LME 499,834,000% 2 2 58 metal scrap
MIREEELR
Sberne suroviny, a.s. Czech Republic ~ Czech Republic  CZK61,217,000 79.6% 79.6%  Processing and sales of
R LA R LHE 61,217,0008 7 2 5 metal scrap
MIRHEREE
Dinos d.d. Republic of Republic of EUR2,279,700 100% 61.1%  Processing and sales of
Slovenia Slovenia 2,279,700807¢ metal scrap
HEXRTANE MEXETAANE MIRHEREE
Note: ks
(i) These entities are wholly-foreign owned enterprises established in the (i) ZEERRRPBEKLZ NGB
PRC. Ho
(b) Details of n_on-wholly own.ed s.ub5|d|ar|es that (b) BEEAFEBRERZEEZETF
have material non-controlling interest AT
The non-controlling interests of all non-wholly owned 2EIEL BT NT T IEERRRER
subsidiaries are individually not material to the Group. HWAEESBMS L REA-
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43 CONTINGENCIES

(a)

The Company is a defendant to a legal claim by Delco (the
Claim”) regarding an alleged non-payment of the loan
advanced by Delco Asia Company Limited (“Delco Asia”) to
subsidiaries of the Company, amounting to approximately
HK$57.8 million together with interest and costs. Delco
alleged that it acquired the assets and liabilities of Delco
Asia in 2011. Delco Asia was dissolved by deregistration
in 2012. Each of Mr. Fang and HWH undertook to the
Company to indemnify and hold the Company harmless
on demand against all losses arising out of, inter alia, the
Claim in accordance with the terms of a letter of indemnity
signed by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour of the Company on
17 December 2015 (the “Indemnity”). In addition, HWH
has paid the amount of HK$57.8 million to a lawyer in an
escrow account (“Escrow Account”) as security for any
liability of the Company in respect of, inter alia, the Claim.

The court case is still in progress. The directors of the
Company, after taking legal advice from its legal advisers
and in review of the Indemnity and the Escrow Account,
are of the opinion that it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the Claim. Accordingly, no provision of the claim has
been made.

AR B ER AR RTEE

43 THIREIR

(a)

EeRREBERAH

XA R BDelcost B 1 K B &
Delco Asia Company Limited
([Delco Asial)®8ff FAREF
NAIKERE L5780 B T
ERNEREAEAMmMZENE
BRE([ZFROEEA-
DelcofB EE R T ——F KB
Delco AsiaIEERBE-R_F
— Z%F > Delco AsiabABUE T
NER AN © 77 St A RHWHE B [A1 AR
AR FCE IR IR 77 58 A B HWHEA
RRABAEXmARET—HF
TZATEBEEZNBERED
G BEARARRERERBEZ
FAREENABERRIREARRD
AINZEER ([HE]) o tboN -
HWHE 7] 12 B 3% 115,780 7 7T
WEFERP ([ME5ERP) 1ER
RATEME (P ELE)ZFRAN
FREFENER-

RABLEETH - BEEARD
BERBERNEZRERNENR
BEREAEFR ARAEER
RBEITZF DA G R
AR o FE - WL REE(E
B
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R SRR EE

43 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(b)

(@

The Company is a defendant to a legal claim by Delco
(the “Claim”) regarding an alleged breach of a letter of
undertaking in relation to a convertible bond issued by
the Company and subscribed for by Delco. Delco further
claimed against Chiho-Tiande (HK) limited (“CTHK") for a
sum of US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to
CTHK. Delco further claims interests, costs and further or
other relief of HK$6.3 million.

The court case is still in progress. The directors of the
Company, after taking legal advice from its legal advisers,
are of the opinion that it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the Claim. Accordingly, no provision of the claim has
been made.

The Group has contingent liabilities of approximately
HK$42.5 million (2016: HK$27.5 million) which consist of
non-financial guarantee in favour of investee entities.
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43 FHAFEE(F)

(b)

(0)

A B) ADelcoit B & R AN A
FT 8547 K& DelcoPT R 8 < AT #2 i
BT K 2 A B 1 T 4R HE Y
KRR ([ZFADBEEA-
Delcoit — M B A& KH#H (FH)
BERAR([BEEB]BERS
1008 XL %ZNERBEAR
Delco Asia# s T 75 & B  Delco
BRRAE RBR#E—FPHE
thER I REFE30E BT

RBRREAEETH -BEBAR
AERERNERERR AR
BEERRETZFATAES
BUG BN 21 #7 B Bt 3 st
REEEH A -

REBHEABXABEL H4,250
BAET(ZE—RF:2,7508%
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5-Year
Financial Summary

IFEPBRE

Summary of selected items of consolidated statement of FEERRETHANE
profit and loss

For the year ended 31 December

HETZ_A=1t-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Bt TR —T-HF —T-NF —T-=F

HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BERR HEET HEAT HEAET  HEBR

Revenue Wz 18,491.0 32114 3,136.6 5,878.0 7,222.0

Profit/(loss) before income BRETEB AR/ (BE) 546.2 (4436)  (1,1437)  (1,067.6) (381.8)

Income tax (expense)/credit FEH (%) /B4 (110.6) 0.4 (0.3) (3.6) (25.7)
Profit/(loss) for the year NTEAEEEA
attributable to: #@F/(ER):

Shareholders of the Company ARAIRE 426.8 (439.9) (1,138.8) (1,058.0) (382.9)

Non-controlling interests TR 8.8 (3.3) (5.2) (13.2) (24.6)

435.6 4432)  (1,144.0)  (1,071.2) (407.5)

Summary of selected items of consolidated balance sheet #HREEESEBERBRTEHEME

As at 31 December

R+-A=1+—8H

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+F TR F —T-1Ff —ZT-NF —T-=F%
HKS$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BE®T BEAT EBEEAT  BEET GHEAR

Asset BE
Current assets REEE 6,022.2 6,602.3 4,9203 2,659.1 4,063.4
Non-current assets FERHEE 6,071.5 5,183.4 1,117.6 981.9 853.9
Total assets AEHRE 12,093.7 11,785.7 6,037.9 3,641.0 49173

Liabilities =1
Current liabilities mEEE 5,365.2 5,032.9 1,481.1 2,960.2 2,401.3
Non-current liabilities *RBEE 1,681.4 2,668.4 143.0 37.5 809.3
Total liabilities BERE 7,046.6 7,701.3 1,624.1 2,997.7 3,210.6
5,047.1 4,084.4 44138 643.3 1,706.7

Equity attributable to: BT

Shareholders of the Company ARARRE 5,073.1 41172 4,487.9 7240 1,774.4
Non-controlling interests R (26.0) (32.8) (74.1) (80.7) (67.7)
5,047.1 4,084.4 4,413.8 6433 1,706.7
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Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Mr. Qin Yongming
(Chairman, appointed on 17 July 2017)
(Chief Executive Officer, appoint as CEO on 11 October 2017)

Mr. Tu Jianhua
(resigned as chairman but remained as a member on 17 July 2017)

Mr. Wong Wun Lam
(appointed on 11 October 2017)
Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong
(appointed on 7 April 2017 and resigned on 11 October 2017)

Mr. Liu Huaiyu
(resigned on 7 April 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Loke Yu
Mr. Zhu Dajian
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Zhu HongChao
(appointed on 18 April 2018)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming
(Chairman, appointed as chairman on 17 July 2017)

Mr. Tu Jianhua
(resigned as chairman but remained as a member on 17 July 2017)

Mr. Wong Wun Lam
(appointed on 11 October 2017)
Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong
(appointed on 7 April 2017 and resigned on 11 October 2017)

Mr. Liu Huaiyu
(resigned on 7 April 2017)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman)
Mr. Zhu Dajian
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Zhu HongChao
(appointed on 18 April 2018)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming
(Chairman, appointed on 17 July 2017)
Dr. Loke Yu
Mr. Zhu Dajian
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Zhu HongChao
(appointed on 18 April 2018)
Mr. Tu Jianhua
(resigned as chairman and member on 17 July 2017)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhu HongChao
(Chairman, appointed on 18 April 2018)
Mr. Zhu Dajian
(resigned as chairman but remained as a member on 18 April 2018)

Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Qian Liping

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming
(Chairman, appointed as chairman on 17 July 2017)

Mr. Tu Jianhua
(resigned as chairman but remained as a member on 17 July 2017)

Mr. Wong Wun Lam
(appointed on 11 October 2017)
Mr. Goh Kian Guan
Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong
(appointed on 7 April 2017 and resigned on 11 October 2017)

Mr. Liu Huaiyu
(resigned on 7 April 2017)
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PRICING COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming
(Chairman, appointed on 11 October 2017)
Mr. Wong Wun Lam
(appointed on 28 August 2017)
Mr. William Thomas Bird
(appointed on 4 January 2018)
Mr. Udo Langhans
(appointed on 4 January 2018)
Mr. Goh Kian Guan
(retired on 4 January 2018)
Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong
(resigned as chairman and member on 11 October 2017)

Mr. Koon Wai Hung
(resigned on 28 August 2017)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Tu Jianhua
Mr. Koon Wai Hung

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Wong Wun Lam
(appointed on 10 August 2017)

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Mr. William Thomas Bird
(appointed on 20 November 2017)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Koon Wai Hung

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
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LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Cayman Islands)
DLA Piper Hong Kong

Deacons (Hong Kong)

Dechert LLP (Hong Kong)

Zhejiang Xingce Law Firm (China)
Latham & Watkins LLP (Germany)

CMS Hasche Sigle (Germany)

Menold Bezler (Germany)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China

Agricultural Bank of China

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

KeyBank National Association

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

48 Wang Lok Street
Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

GROUP HEADQUARTERS

23/F., Infinitus Plaza
199 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 8, Baijin Road

Taizhou Renewable Metal Resources Industry Base
Lugiao, Taizhou

Zhejiang

The PRC

Corporate Information

NAEIER
ES=i
Conyers Dill & Pearman (A2 & &)
EREERAVERAT (BE)
HRT AT ()
EARERMEBRR (BE)

AT EMEEEHA (PE)
Latham & Watkins LLP (1= E1)
CMS Hasche Sigle (12E7)
Menold Bezler (=[] )

T EREKRTT
BITRIT (BB)HRD A
BELIEELRITERADA
b B R 1T

o B AR (T
LIERRBERIRT

KeyBank National Association
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REER

HEADQUARTERS IN EUROPE

Berndt-Ulrich-Scholz-Str. 1
73457 Essingen
Deutschland

HEADQUARTERS IN NORTH AND CENTRAL
AMERICA

2144 W. McDowell Road
Phoenix, AZ 85004
USA 85009

* For business addresses of other principal operational bases of the Group, please refer
to the Company’s website

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

WEBSITE

www.chihogroup.com
(changed on 23 June 2017)

STOCK CODE
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 976
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CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED
EERAREEERQF

48 Wang Lok Street,
Yuen Long Industrial Estate, Hong Kong

FETUH T EIPRLEAT4858

Tel EB5&: (852) 2587 7700 / (852) 2589 3500 Fax {5H: (852) 2587 7799
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